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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 000-28275

PFSWEB, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cégrt

Delaware 75-283705¢
( State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization Identification Number
500 North Central Expressway, Plano, Texa 75074
(Address of principal executive office (Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
972-881-2900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
Common Stock, par value $.001 per share
Indicate by check mark if the registrant isell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ruleot@®e Securities Act. YeBI No M
Indicate by check mark if the registrant i$ remuired to file reports pursuant to Section £3%(d) of the Act. Ye§&l No M

Indicate by check mark whether the regist(ahtas filed all reports required to be filed bgc8on 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was requaodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastg@s. Ye NoO

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrast $ubmitted electronically and posted on its catgowebsite, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRuie 405 of Regulation S-T (8 232.405 of thisptkg) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasiired to submit and post such files). Yé€s No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delieqt filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation $Kot contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 1l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 108&.

Indicate by check mark whether the registraiatlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated ditex non-accelerated filer. See definition of
“large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” atemaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thecBange Act.

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filer™d Non-accelerated fileEl Smaller reporting companid
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicated by check mark whether the registimatshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 efAlt). Yesd No M

The aggregate market value of the voting stk by non-affiliates of the registrant as of d@0, 2009 (based on the closing price as
reported by the National Association of Securileslers Automated Quotation System) was $13,102,106

At March 31, 2010, there were 9,954,957 shafdlse registrant’'s Common Stock issued, $.001vpare.
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The information required by Part Ill of thi:iAual Report, to the extent not set forth heraincorporated herein by reference from the
registrant’s definitive proxy statement relatinghie annual meeting of shareholders, which defi@igroxy statement shall be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 ddtgs the end of the fiscal year to which this AahReport relates.
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PART |

Iltem 1. Business
General

PFSweb is an international business proces®orcing provider of end-to-end eCommerce solsti®tSweb provides these solutions to
major brand name companies seeking to optimize sugiply chain and to enhance their traditional amiéhe business channels and initiati
Through our eCOST.com® business unit, we are alsading multi-category online discount retailemefv, “close-out” and recertified brand-
name merchandise. We derive our revenues from tusiaess segments: 1) eCommerce and businessgmatsourcing, 2) master
distribution and 3) online discount retailing.

First, in our eCommerce and business procgs®orcing business segment operated by our Brieuifillment Services subsidiaries
(“PFS™), we derive our revenues from a broad raofggervices as we process individual businessacims on our clients’ behalf. These
business transactions may include the answeriagpbfone call or an e-mail, the design and hostirgalient web-site, supporting an email
marketing campaign, the deployment of an eCommtexteology platform, the receipt and storage dfemt's inventory, the kitting and
assembly of products to meet a client’s specificetj the shipping of products to our client’s costo base, the management of a complex set
of electronic data transactions designed to keegl@nt’'s suppliers and customers accounting sar balance, and/or the processing of a
returned package. In the eCommerce and businessgzroutsourcing segment, we do not own the inneotothe resulting accounts
receivable, but provide management services faretltient-owned assets.

In our second business segment operated b8upplies Distributors’ subsidiaries we act as ateradistributor of product for InfoPrint
Solutions Company (“IPS”), a joint venture compamyned by Ricoh and International Business Mach{Hi&M"), and certain other clients.
In this capacity, we purchase and resell for oun @scount, IPS and other manufacturers’ inventacgordingly, in this business segment, we
recognize product revenue and own the accounts/edate and inventory.

Our third business segment is eCOST.com® (“8TY an online discount retailer of new, “closetoand recertified brand-name
merchandise. This web-commerce product revenue Inefteeused on the sale of products to a broagead consumer and business
customers. We currently offer approximately 300,p68ducts in several primary merchandise categariekiding computers, networking,
electronics and entertainment, TV’s, monitors arajgetors, cameras and camcorders, memory andystofféor the Home” and sports and
leisure.

We are headquartered in Plano, Texas wherexagautive and administrative offices and our printachnology operations and hosting
facilities are located. We have an office in El @egp, California, which consists of sales, marlgtind purchasing operations for our online
discount retailer segment. We operate state-oftheall centers from our U.S. facilities located®lano, Texas, and Memphis, Tennessee, anc
from our international facilities located in ToronCanada, Liege, Belgium and Manila, Philippin&e lease or manage warehouse facilitie
approximately 1.8 million square feet, many contagrhighly automated and state of the art maté@adling and communications equipment,
in Memphis, Tennessee, Southaven, Mississippi, &iap, Texas, Toronto, Canada and Liege, Belgillowang us to provide global
distribution solutions.

ECOMMERCE AND BUSINESS PROCESS OUTSOURCING SEGMENT

PFS is a global provider of end-to-end eConue@and business process outsourcing solutions. dttlas?FSweb’s End2End eCommerce
® platform, PFS’ services breadth includes offesisgch as eCommerce technology and integratioiicsspinteractive marketing services,
global logistics and order fulfillment, freight atrdnsportation management, real-time order managgrkitting and assembly, customer care,
facility operations and management, turn-key welmht@rce infrastructure, payment processing and fiaaservices. Collectively, we define
our offering as End-to-End eCommerce and BusinesseBs Outsourcing because we extend our clienftsistructure and technology
capabilities, addressing an entire business tréinosacycle from demand generation to product deliv®ur solutions support both business-to-
business (“B2B”) and business-to-consumer (“B2Gilgs channels.
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PFS serves as the “brand behind the brand®dmpanies seeking to increase efficiencies, erermarkets or launch optimized sales
channels. As an eCommerce and business processimgs we offer scalable and cost-effective sohgifor manufacturers, distributors,
online retailers and direct marketing organizatiaosss a wide range of industry segments. We geoviir clients with seamless and
transparent solutions to support their businesdegjies, allowing them to focus on their core campees. Leveraging PFS’ technology,
expertise and proven methodologies, we enabletaigyanizations to develop and deploy new prodantsimplement new business strategies
or address new distribution channels rapidly afidieftly through our optimized solutions. Our cite engage us both as a consulting partner
to assist them in the design of a business solatsowell as a virtual and physical infrastructuaetiper providing the mission critical operations
required to build and manage their business salufiogether, we not only help our clients define/meays of doing business, but also provide
them the technology, physical infrastructure arafgssional resources necessary to quickly implertiesibusiness model. We allow our
clients to quickly and dramatically change how thgg-to-market.”

Each client has a unique business model aimplierstrategic objectives that often requires hjighistomized solutions. PFS supports clients
in a wide array of industries including fashion apg and accessories, consumer goods, luxury gfragsance and beauty products,
technology products, aviation, toys/education,emilbles, food and beverage and home furnishinigesd clients turn to PFS for help in
addressing a variety of business issues that inad@bmmerce, customer satisfaction and retentior;definite logistics, vendor managed
inventory and integration, supply chain compressomst model realignments, transportation manageamhinternational expansion, among
others. We also act as a constructive agent ofgeharoviding clients the ability to alter theirgent distribution model, establish direct
relationships with end-customers, and reduce tleaitime and costs associated with existing ittiston channel strategies. Our clients are
seeking solutions that will provide them with dyriasupply chain and multi-channel marketing effigiges, while ultimately delivering a
world-class customer service experience.

Our technology and business infrastructurerof is flexible, reliable and fully scalable. $Hiexibility allows us to design custom, varis
cost solutions to fit the business requirementsunfclients’ strategies.

Our capabilities are expansive. To offer trestmecessary and resourceful solutions to ountslieve are continually developing capabili
to meet the pressing business issues in the méaketpOur business objective is to focus on “Legdire Evolution of Outsourcing”.” As
our tagline suggests, we will continue to evolve service offering to meet the needs of the matkegpand the demands of unique client
requirements. We are most successful when we peavitew capability to enable a client to pursuewa imitiative and we are then able to
leverage that revolutionary development acrossratlient or prospect solutions, as it becomes “peattice” in the marketplace. Our team of
experts design and build diverse solutions forrentietailers, technology and consumer goods matuéas, aviation brands as well as other
major brand name clients around a flexible corezofinology and physical infrastructure that inckide

. Technology collaboration provided by our suitdexfhnology services that enable buyers and suppbefully automate their business
transactions within their supply chain. We suppadustry standard collaboration techniques andogais including XML real-time
application interfaces, secured text file excharayebstraditional electronic data interchan“EDI”);

. eCommerce technology solutions with managed hostimginternet application development serviceduiing web site desigt
creation, integration and ongoing maintenance, et@nd enhancement of web sit

. Interactive Marketing Services with professionaid gechnologies that can be integrated into a smthtion to support user experier
design, customer acquisition, analytics, custoratmtion and revenue generation objecti

. Order management, including order processing froynsaurce of entry, back order processing and éubuder processing, trackil
and tracing, credit management, electronic paymertessing, calculation and collection of salesatack VAT, comprehensive freight
calculation and email notification, all with mulgcurrency and language optio
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. Customer Relationship Manageme“ CRM”), including interactive voice respons‘IVR") technology and we-enabled custome
contact services through call centers utilizingcegie-mail, voice over internet protocol (“VOIPHdinternet chat communications
that are fully integrated with re-time systems and historical data archives to peeammplete customer lifecycle managem

. International fulfillment and distribution servigascluding warehouse management, inventory managenmnendor manage
inventory, inventory postponement, product warehrmysorder picking and packing, freight and tramsgiion management and
reverse logistics

. Facility Operations and Manageme"FOM”) that includes process reengineering, facility desigd engineering and employ
administration

. Kitting and assembly services, including lightexsbly, procurement services, supplier relationsfpagement, specialized kitting,
and supplier consigned inventory hub in our distiifn facilities or c-located in other facilities

. Product management and inspection services, imguaianagement of coupon programs-kitting and salvage operations &
inspection, testing and repackaging servi

. Information management, including r-time data interfaces, data exchange services aadmaing;

. Financial services, including secure online dredid processing related services, fraud protectiovoicing, credit management and
collection, and working capital solutions; &

. Professional consulting services, including a ctintive team of experts that customize solutionséoh client and continuously se
out ways to increase efficiencies and produce lisrfef the client

Industry Overview

Business activities in the public and priveg¢etors continue to operate in an environmentmitireechnological advancement, increasing
competition and continuous pressure to improveatjpey and supply chain efficiency while decreasingts. We currently see the following
trends within the industry:

. Manufacturers strive to restructure their supgigins to maximize efficiency and reduce costsihi8B2B and B2C markets and to
create a variable-cost supply chain able to sughertultiple, unique needs of each of their itii@s, including traditional and
electronic commerct

. Companies in a variety of industries seek outsogreis a method to address one or more businessofusithat are not within the
core business competencies, to reduce operatitg ot improve the speed or cost of implementa

Supply Chain Management Trend

As companies maintain focus on improving theisinesses and balance sheet financial ratiasfisant efforts and investments continue to
be made identifying ways to maximize supply chdfitiency and extend supply chain processes. Warkipital financing, vendor managed
inventory, supply chain visibility software solutig, distribution channel skipping, direct to consumecommerce sales initiatives, and comj
upstream supply chain collaborative technologypaeoglucts that manufacturers seek to help them eelyeeater supply chain efficiency.

A key business challenge facing many manufacsltand retailers as they evaluate their suppyncéifficiency is in determining how the
trend toward increased direct-to-customer busiaessity will impact their traditional B2B and B2€mmerce business models. Order
management and small package fulfillment and digtidon capabilities are becoming increasingly intpor processes as this trend evolves. We
believe manufacturers will look to outsource thr&in-core competency functions to support this miedibusiness model. We believe that
companies will continue to strategically plan foe impact that eCommerce and other new technoldggreeements will have on their
traditional commerce business models and theitiegisechnology and infrastructure capabilities.

3
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Manufacturers, as buyers of materials, are ialposing new business practices and policiehiein supplier partners to shift the normal
supply chain costs and risks associated with irorgrawnership away from their own balance sheetsoilgh techniques like Vendor Manay
Inventory or Consigned Inventory Programs (“CIRtianufacturers are asking their suppliers, as agbaine supplier selection process, to
provide capabilities where the manufacturer nedgcdnm, or even possess, inventory prior to the emamnent that unit of inventory is requit
as a raw material component or for shipping tostamer. To be successful for all parties, businesdels such as these often require a
sophisticated collection of technological capaieiitthat allow for complete integration and colletimn of the information technology
environments of both the buyer and supplier. Fangple, for an inventory unit to arrive at the pseciequired moment in the manufacturing
facility, it is necessary for the Manufacturing Besce Planning systems of the manufacturer to iategvith the CRM systems of the supplier.
When hundreds of supplier partners are involved,ftocess can become quite complex and technalibgichallenging. Buyers and suppliers
are seeking solutions that utilize XML based prote@nd traditional EDI standards to ensure an gystems platform that promote easier
technology integration in these collaborative sohs.

Outsourcing Trend

In response to growing competitive pressunestachnological innovations, we believe many comgs both large and small, are focusing
their critical resources on the core competendi¢Beir business and utilizing eCommerce and bssipgocess outsourcing to accelerate their
business plans in a cost-effective manner and panfmn-core business functions. Outsourcing camigeomany key benefits, including the
ability to:

. Enter new business markets or geographic areadlya

. Increase flexibility to meet changing business dbors and demand for products and servi
. Enhance customer satisfaction and gain competiivantage

. Reduce capital and personnel investments and cofixedl investments to variable cos

. Improve operating performance and efficiency;

. Capitalize on skills, expertise and technolodyaistructure that would otherwise be unavailablexgensive given the scale of the
business

Typically, many outsourcing service providare focused on a single function, such as infownatchnology, call center management,
credit card processing, warehousing or packageetgli This focus creates several challenges formpemmes looking to outsource more than
of these functions, including the need to managkiphel outsourcing service providers, to share infation with service providers and to
integrate that information into their internal srsis. Additionally, the delivery of these multipergces must be transparent to the customer
and enable the client to maintain brand recognitiod customer loyalty. Furthermore, traditional coence outsourcers are frequently
providers of domestic-only services versus intéoma solutions. As a result, companies requiritapbgl solutions must establish additional
relationships with other outsourcing parties.

Another vital point for major brand name comiga seeking to outsource is the protection of thind. When looking for an outsourcing
partner to provide infrastructure solutions, braathe companies must find a company that can etiseigsame quality performance and
superior experience that their customers expent fteir brands. Working with an outsourcing partregyuires finding a partner that can
maintain the consistency of their brand image, Wliscone of the most valuable intangible assetsrdwognized brand name companies
possess.

The PFS Solution
PFS serves as the “brand behind the branddorpanies seeking high performance sales channels.

Our value proposition is to become a seamigsh,integrated extension of our clients’ entespd by delivering superior solutions that drive
optimal customer experiences. On behalf of thedsame serve, we wish to increase and enhanceaadesarket growth, bolster customer
satisfaction and customer retention, and drivescost of the business through operations and téoynoelated efficiencies. We act as both a
virtual and a physical infrastructure for our cli®rbusinesses, embracing their brand values aategic objectives. By utilizing our services,
our clients are able to:
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Quickly Capitalize on Market Opportunitiedur solutions empower clients to rapidly implemtair supply chain and eCommerce
strategies and to take advantage of opportunitifeut lengthy integration and implementation effoWe have readily available advanced
technology and physical infrastructure that isifiin its design, which facilitates quick inteiom and implementation. The PFS solution is
designed to allow our clients to deliver consistgumlity service as transaction volumes grow asd & handle daily and seasonal peak
periods. Through our international locations, dients can sell their products throughout the world

Improve the Customer Experient®e enable our clients to provide their customets wihigh-touch, positive buying experience thereby
maintaining and promoting brand loyalty. Through ose of advanced technology, we can respond birectustomer inquiries by e-mail,
voice or data communication and assist them witmerordering and product information. We believe @ffer our clients a “world-clas$ével
of service, including 24-hour, seven-days-a-weekpVWgnabled customer care service centers, de@iRd reporting and exceptional order
accuracy. We have significant experience in thestbgment of eCommerce storefronts that allows us¢commend features and functions that
are easily navigated and understood by our clientsdomers. Our technology platform is designeehtsure high levels of reliability and fast
response times for our clients’ customers. Becaliserr technology, our clients benefit from beirgjeato offer the latest in customer
communication and response conveniences to thgiowers.

Minimize Investment and Improve Operating EfficieagOne of the most significant benefits that outsaugaian provide is the ability to
transform fixed costs into variable costs. By efiating the need to invest in a fixed capital infinasture, our clients’ costs typically become
directly correlated with volume increases or desdinFurther, as volume increases drive the demargtéater infrastructure or capacity, we
able to quickly deploy additional resources. Wevjge services to multiple clients, which enablesausffer our clients economies of scale,
resulting cost efficiency, that they may not haeerbable to obtain on their own. Additionally, besa of the large number of daily transacti
we process, we have been able to justify investsianevels of automation, security surveillancgality control processes and transportation
carrier interfaces that are typically outside tbals of investment that our clients might be abledst justify on their own. These additional
capabilities can provide our clients the benefitsrthanced operating performance and efficienaueed inventory shrinkage, and expanded
customer service options.

Access a Sophisticated Technology Infrastructdfe.provide our clients with ready access to a stjglated technology infrastructure that
is designed to interface seamlessly with theireayist We provide our clients with vital product angtomer information that can be
immediately available to them on their own systemthrough web based graphic user interfaces feiruglata mining, analyzing sales and
marketing trends, monitoring inventory levels ardfprming other management functions.

PFS Services

We offer a comprehensive and integrated sbtisiness infrastructure solutions that are taddoeour clients’ specific needs and enable
them to quickly and efficiently implement their gy chain strategies.

Technology CollaborationVe have created the Entente Suite(SM), which ilhies the level of electronic cooperation thatoisgible whei
we construct solutions with our clients using tieishnology service offering. This set of technolegyvices encompasses a wide range of
business functions from order processing and irrgneporting to total e-commerce design and imgletation. The Entente Suite(SM)
comprises five key services— EntenteWeb®, Entemtd®, EntenteMessage®, EntenteReport® and Entartted?Connect™.

End-to-End eCommerc&/e have integrated our services for contact centaragement, warehousing, logistics and fulfillmeith
Demandware eCommerce, a leading on-demand eComplat@m, to provide a single, flexible solutiopamning the eCommerce storefront,
delivery of goods and ongoing customer care. Desligpecifically for B2C brands, this offering reidet end-to-end eCommerce by enabling
retailers and branded consumer goods manufactwittrshe ability to employ a total outsourcing sadm customized to their particular
eCommerce strategy, without the loss of site onthi@ontrol associated with earlier end-to-end autsiag solutions.
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GlobalMerchant Commerceware® B2B Managed Hosting) laternet Application Developme@ur GlobalMerchant Commerceware®
service provides a complete e-commerce websiteigolfor our B2B clients. We engage collaborativedfyh our clients to design, build, host,
and manage fully branded, fully customized and/fiultegrated e-commerce web applications for B28netels. We offer a broad range of
hosting and support plans that can be tailored tbd needs of each client. Utilizing IBM’s eSerwx&eries servers, Microsoft's.NET
Technologies and our proprietary GlobalMerchant @erceware platform, we maintain a robust hostingrenment for our hosted client
B2B web sites.

Order Managemen®Our order management solutions provide clients witérfaces that allow for real-time informatiorirfeval, including
information on inventory, sales orders, shipmethtdivery, purchase orders, warehouse receiptspeigsthistory, accounts receivable and
credit lines. These solutions are seamlessly iatedrwith our web-enabled customer contact ceraéiaying for the processing of orders
through shopping cart, phone, fax, mail, email, wit, and other order receipt methods. As therimdtion backbone for our total supply
chain solution, order management services can é@ s a stand-alone basis or in conjunction withatlier business infrastructure offerings,
including customer contact, financial or distrilmutiservices. In addition, for the B2B market, @ahinology platform provides a variety of
order receipt methods that facilitate commerce iwitkarious stages of the supply chain. Our systerasgide the ability for both our clients and
their customers to track the status of orders wtiame. Our services are transparent to our clientstomers and are seamlessly integrated with
our clients’ internal systems platforms and webssiBy synchronizing these activities, we can aapéind provide critical customer
information, including:

. Statistical measurements critical to creating dityueustomer experience, containing rtime order status, order exceptions, b
order tracking, allocation of product based on iigof online purchase and business rules, the o&dttastomer inquiries to purchases,
average order sizes and order response

. B2B supply chain management information criticaét@luating inventory positioning, for the purpageeducing inventory turns, at
assessing product flow through and -consumer demani

. Reverse logistics information including customeap@nse and reason for the return or rotation adycband desired customer acti
. Detailed marketing information about what was swoid to whom it was sold, by location and prefereaod
. Web traffic reporting showing the number of vig“hits") received, areas visited, and products and infoomatquestec

Customer Relationship Managemeéme offer a completely customized CRM solution fiemts. Our CRM solution encompasses a full-
scale customer contact management service offaBgiell as a fully integrated customer analysigm. All customer contacts are captured
and customer purchases are documented. Full-ssabeting on all customer transactions is availétesvaluation purposes. Through each of
our customer touch-points, information can be aredyand processed for current or future use imiegsievaluation, product effectiveness and
positioning, and supply chain planning.

An important feature of evolving commercehs ability for the customer to speak with a livatouner service representative. Our
experience has been that a majority of consuménsstéhey visited the web location for informatjdout not all of those consumers chose to
place their order online. Our customer care sesvitiize features that integrate voice, e-mailndard mail, data and Internet chat
communications to respond to and handle custonggiiries. Our customer care representatives ansarégyus questions, acting as virtual
representatives of our client’s organization, rdgey order status, shipping, billing, returns amoduct information and availability as well as a
variety of other questions. For certain clients,haadle Level | and Level Il technical support. Eeltechnical support involves assisting
clients’ customers with basic technical issues,coenputer application issues. Level Il support rimsplve a more in-depth question and
answer session with the customer. Our web-enahistmer care technology identifies each custometact automatically and routes it to the
available customer care representative who is iddally trained in the client’s business and praduc

6




Table of Contents

Our web-enabled customer care centers argrissiso that our customer care representativekaradie several different clients and
products in a shared environment, thereby crea@mmomy of scale benefits for our clients as weh@hly customized dedicated support
models that provide the ultimate customer expedend brand reinforcement. Our advanced technatsgyenables our representatives to up-
sell, cross-sell and inform customers of other potsland sales opportunities. The web-enabled mgstoare center is fully integrated into the
data management and order processing system, ajdwll visibility into customer history and custemtrends. Through this fully integrated
system, we are able to provide a complete CRM iswiut

With the need for efficiency and cost optinti@a for many of our clients, we have integratedRI®s another option for customer contacts.
IVR creates an “electronic workforce” with virtuadients that can assist customers with vital inféionaat any time of the day or night. IVR
allows for our clients’ customers to deal intereely with our system to handle basic customer irigsj such as account balance, order status,
shipment status, catalog requests, product and pripiries, and routine order entry for establishestomers. The inclusion of IVR in our
service offering allows us to offer a cost effeetivay to handle high volume, low complexity calls.

International Fulfillment and Distribution Service&n integral part of our solution is the warehousamgl distribution of inventory either
owned by our clients or owned by us. We currendlyehapproximately 1.8 million square feet of leasethanaged warehouse space
domestically and internationally to store and pssceur and our clients’ inventory. We receive dliementory in our distribution centers,
verify shipment accuracy, unpack and audit packéggsocess that includes spot-checking a smatigmage of the client’s inventory to
validate piece counts and check for damages thathaae occurred during shipping, loading and uritogid Upon request, we inspect for ot
damages or defects, which may include checkingdastitching and zippers for soft goods, or ‘tegtipower-up capabilities for electronic
items as well as product specifications. We gehesadck for sale within one business day of uningdOn behalf of our clients, we pick, pe
and ship their customer orders and can provideomiged packaging, capabilities of high volume skpackaging, inserts and promotional
literature for distribution with customer ordergrfnany clients, we provide gift-wrapping servigesluding customized gift-wrapping paper,
ribbon, gift-box and gift-messaging.

Our distribution facilities contain computextzsortation equipment, highly mobile pick-to-ligiatrts, powered material handling equipment,
scanning and bar-coding systems and automated yors/and in-line scales. Our distribution complexetude several advanced technology
enhancements, such as radio frequency technologoduct receiving processing to ensure accuracwel as an automated package routing
and a pick-to-light paperless order fulfillment . Our advanced distribution systems provide itis thie capability to warehouse an
extensive number of stock keeping units (SKUs)olar clients, ranging from large high-end laser fgtis to small cosmetic compacts. Our
facilities are flexibly configured to process B2Bdasingle pick B2C orders from the same centrattioo.

In addition to our advanced distribution sys$e our pick-to-light carts, stationary pick-toHigareas and conveyor system controls provide
real time productivity reporting, thereby providingr management team with the tools to implemeodipetivity standards. This combination
of computer-controlled equipment provides the seamintegration of our pick-to-light systems andsnsortation capabilities. This unique
combination of technologies ensures high order moyufor each and every customer order.

Our primary B2B facility is in Southaven, Missippi, containing almost 400,000 square feepafs. The Southaven facility has clear
height added cubic space utilization, state-ofahdighting that increases the quality and voluhéght while reducing energy costs, and
certain long-term tax incentives offered by thet&ta Mississippi. Southaven maintains the sameiprity to all modes of transportation
compared with our Memphis facilities.

During 2009, we warehoused, managed andladfiinore than $2.0 billion in merchandise and tatisns. Much of this does not represent
our revenue, but rather the revenue of our cligiotsivhom we provided eCommerce and business psamgsourcing solutions. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.”

Based upon our clients’ needs, we are ableki® advantage of a variety of shipping and dejivgtions, which range from next day service
to zone skipping to optimize transportation co®st facilities and systems are
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equipped with multi-carrier functionality, allowings to integrate with all leading package carréard provide a comprehensive freight and
transportation management offering. In additionirmmeasingly important function that we provide éwr clients is reverse logistics
management. We offer a wide array of product resemvices, including issuing return authorizatioeseipt of product, crediting customer
accounts, and disposition of returned product.

Our domestic clients enjoy the benefits ofihg\their inventory assets secured by trained lafereement professionals from our security
headquarters in Memphis, Tennessee and SouthavssisMppi. Continual validation ensures that welemthe latest in security processes
and procedures to further enhance our surveillandedetection capabilities. Our security programtiooies to gain trust and confidence from
our clients as we protect their products and assets

Facility Operations and Manageme@ur FOM service offering includes distribution fi#tgi design and optimization, business process
reengineering and ongoing staffing and managenddorg with our operations in Mississippi and Tersess we also manage an aircraft parts
distribution center in Grapevine, TX on behalf okoof our clients. Our expertise in supply chaimagement, logistics and customer-centric
fulfillment operations extends through our manageneé client-owned facilities, resulting in costliteetions, process improvements and
technology-driven efficiencies.

Kitting and Assembly Servicg3ur expanded kitting and assembly services enableli@nts to reduce the time and costs associaitbd
managing multiple suppliers, warehousing hubs, I manufacturing partners. As a single sourajater, we provide clients with the
advantage of convenience, accountability and speedcomprehensive kitting and assembly servicesige a quality one-stop resource for
any international channel. Our kitting and assensklyices include light assembly, specializedngtiind supplier-consigned inventory hub
either in our distribution facilities or co-locatetsewhere. We also offer customized light manuféog and Supplier Relationship
Management.

We will work with clients to re-sequence certaupply chain activities to aid in an inventorysgponement strategy. We can provide kitting
and assembly services and build-to-stock thousahdsits daily to stock in a Just-in-Time (“JIT"heironment. This service, for example, can
entail the procurement of packaging materials idicig retail boxes, foam inserts and anti-staticsbdgpese raw material components would be
shipped to us from domestic or overseas manufastuaad we will build the finished SKUs to stock fbe client. Also included is the custom
configuration of high-end printers and servers s®irategy allows manufacturers to make a smailerstment in base unit inventory while
meeting changing customer demand for highly custabié product.

Combining our assembly services with our sigpgwned inventory hub services allows our cligntseduce cycle times, to compress their
supply chains and to consolidate their operatiokssapplier management functions. We have supiphentory management, assembly and
fulfillment services all in one place, providingegter flexibility in product line utilization, aselN as rapid response to change orders or
packaging development. Our standard capabilitielsidte: build-to-order, build-to-stock, expeditedi@rs, passive and active electrostatic
discharge (“ESD”) controls, product labeling, senamber generation, marking and/or capture, lohber generation, asset tagging, bill of
materials (“BOM”) or computer automated design (‘@A engineering change processing, SKU-level pgcamd billing, manufacturing and
metrics reporting, first article approval processesl comprehensive quality controls.

Our kitting and assembly services also inclpaeEurement. We work directly with client suppsi¢o make JIT inventory orders for each
component in client packages, thereby ensuringawseive the appropriate inventory quantities attustright time and we then turn them
around JIT to customers.

Kitting and inventory hub services enablertiéeto collapse supply chains into the minimal stepcessary to prepare product for distribt
to any channel, including wholesale, mass mercteail, or direct to consumer. Clients no longevéhto employ multiple providers or require
suppliers to consign multiple inventory cachesdach channel. We offer our clients the opportuttitgonsolidate operations from a channel
standpoint, as well as from a geographic perspecOwur integrated, global information systems amerhational locations support client
business needs worldwide.
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Product Management and Inspection Servitks.also operate a coupon management system andcprodnagement program. Coupons
are managed and activated by a unique serial nuthbersignificantly reducing fraudulent activityuOcapabilities also extend into salvage
operations, allowing our clients to reclaim valwatdw materials and components from discontinuezbeolete inventory.

We operate a test and repair center whereisuaNy inspect items for cosmetic defects. Thésms are put through rigorous testing that
includes: functionality, durability, accessory iesfion and packaging. Items that pass the testmgepackaged and resold with a noted
exception of “open-box” merchandise. Items thdttfa inspection are disassembled and working spairts are saved for future use in repairs.

Information Management®We have the ability to communicate with and transformation to and from our clients through a widariety
of technology services, including real-time welvgar enabled data interfaces, file transfer mettasdselectronic data interchange. Our
systems are designed to capture, store and elezhgrforward to our clients critical informatiaiegarding customer inquiries and orders,
product shipments, inventory status (for examgheells of inventory on hand, on backorder, on pwet@der and inventory due dates to our
warehouse), product returns and other informatur. systems are capable of providing our clientd wiistomer inventory and order
information for use in analyzing sales and markgetiends and introducing new products. We alsor @ffistomized reports and data analyses
based upon specific client needs to assist thetimein budgeting and business decision process.

Financial ServicesOur financial services are divided into two majogas: 1) billing, credit, collection and cash apgiion services for
B2B clients and 2) fraud review, chargeback managerand processing and settlement credit cardcges¥or B2C clients.

We offer secure credit and collections sewviime both B2B and B2C businesses. SpecificallyBBC clients, we offer secure credit card
processing related services for orders made vigmat eveb site or through our customer contacteee offer manual credit card order
review as an additional level of fraud protectidve also calculate sales taxes, goods and serées br value added taxes, if applicable, for
numerous taxing authorities and on a variety ofipots. Using third-party leadingdge fraud protection services and risk managesystéms
we can offer high levels of security and reducelével of risk for client transactions.

For B2B clients, we offer full-service accasinéceivable management and collection capabilitietuding the ability to generate
customized computer-generated invoices in our isrames. We assist clients in reducing accowgtsivable and days sales outstanding,
while minimizing costs associated with maintainargin-house collections staff. We offer electromiedit services in the format of EDI and
XML communications direct from our clients to thegndors, suppliers and retailers.

Professional Consulting Servicess part of the tailored solution for our clientse wffer a full team of experts specifically desitgthto
focus on our clients’ businesses. Team membersgtansultative role, providing constructive evéilug analysis and recommendations for
the client’s business. This team creates custonsinidions and devises plans that will increaskieficies and produce benefits for the client
when implemented.

Comprised of industry experts from tog@r consulting firms and industry market leaders, team of professional consultants provides t
service focus and eCommerce, customer care, logiatid distribution expertise. They have built 8ohs for Fortune 1000 and Global 2000
market leaders in a wide range of industries, iticlg multi-channel retailers, apparel, technoldglecommunications, cosmetics, aviation,
housewares, high-value collectibles, sporting gppbarmaceuticals and several more. Focusing oauvbling infrastructure needs of major
corporations and their business initiatives, oantéhas a solid track record providing consultinyises in the areas of interactive marketing
eCommerce, supply chain management, distributiahfalfillment, technology interfacing, logistics @customer support.

Technology CollaboratiorOur suite of technology services designed to imtegour technology platform with our clients aneitlbusines:
partners encompasses a wide range of businessoiusftom order processing and inventory reportmgch content management
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EntentePartnerConnect™ is a data repositayretnieval service for providing our clients wahcess to comprehensive product and service
information across a wide variety of product anviee categories. This information is aggregatednfmultiple sources including PFS
business partners such as Etilize that specializegating product content in certain categories.algo rely on other relationships and public-
domain information sources to supply raw datalfiés service. Access to this information is providiedugh technology interfaces and web
sites created using PFSweb’s End2End eCommercedf®npia We also provide the EntentePartnerConneaftise to our wholly-owned
subsidiary eCOST via the eCOST.com® web site enghilie effective merchandising of the wide-rangprofiucts offered on eCOST.com®.
The information available from EntentePartnerComnftetor additional product categories offers eCOBd& dpportunity to increase revenues
through an expanded product offering and potefitake product category expansion.

Our collaboration technologies operate in parosystems environment and feature the use o$indstandard XML and SOA web servic
enabling customized e-commerce solutions with mathiomanges to a client's systems or our EnterfiRissource Planning (“ERP”) systems.
The result is a faster implementation process. & support information exchange methods such & EDI, MQ Series, ALE, HTTP, and
HTTPS.

Clients and Marketing

Our target clients include online retailersnedl as leading technology and consumer goodsdsréooking to quickly and efficiently
implement or enhance business initiatives, adagit §o-to-market strategies, or introduce new potglor programs, without the burden of
modifying or expanding their technology, customares supply chain and logistics infrastructure. €alutions are applicable to a multitude of
industries and company types and we have provididiaens for such companies as:

IBM (printer supplies in several geographieaa), Xerox (printers and printer supplies), R&@#sada LTD. (apparel), Hewlett-Packard
(printers and computer networking equipment), Haveechcraft Corp. (FOM and time-definite logistiegoporting parts distribution),
Riverbed Technologies (technology products) and OE8and Retail (toys) amongst many others.

We target potential clients through an extemgitegrated marketing program that is comprideal variety of direct marketing techniques,
email marketing initiatives, trade event participat search engine marketing, public relations asdphisticated outbound tele-sales lead
generation model. We have also developed an it¢riteessaging matrix that defines our various eCoroena@nd business process outsourcing
solutions and products, the vehicles we utilizdagbver marketing communication on these solutipreducts and the target audience segments
that display a demand for these solutions/prodUdis messaging matrix allows us to deploy highlgeted solution messages to selected key
vertical industry segments where we feel that veeadnle to provide significant service differentatiand value. We also pursue strategic
marketing alliances with consulting firms, softwananufacturers and other logistics providers todase market awareness and generate
referrals and customer leads.

Because of the highly complex nature of tHat&ms we provide, our clients demand significaminpetence and experience from a variety
of different business disciplines during the salgde. As such, we utilize a selected member ofsemior executive team to lead the design
proposal development of each potential new clienthoose to pursue. The senior executive is sugghbst a select group of highly
experienced individuals from our professional ssggigroup with specific industry knowledge or eig&se to the solutions development
process. We employ a team of highly trained impletaiion managers whose responsibilities includeothlegsight and supervision of client
projects and maintaining high levels of client sfaittion during the transition process betweenvdr®us stages of the sales cycle and steady
state operations.

Competition

We face competition from many different sosrdepending upon the type and range of serviceested by a potential client. Many other
companies offer one or more of the same servicegraxdde on an individual basis. Our competitordude vertical outsourcers, which are
companies that offer a single function solutiorghsas call centers, public warehouses or credit pescessors. We occasionally compete with
transportation logistics providers, known in thdustry as 3PL’s and 4PL’s (third or fourth partgiktics providers), who offer product
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management functions as an ancillary service tio linary transportation services. We also compefainst other eCommerce and business
process outsourcing providers, who perform vargrrsices similar to our solution offerings.

In many instances, we compete with the in-eaygerations of our potential clients themselvexalionally, the operations departments of
potential clients believe they can perform the saamgices we do, at similar quality levels and spatile others are reluctant to outsource
business functions that involve direct customertacin We cannot be certain we will be able to campeccessfully against these or other
competitors in the future.

Although many of our competitors offer onenaore of our services, we believe our primary coritipetadvantage is our ability to offer a
wide array of customized services that cover adspectrum of eCommerce and business processkglimgweb-site design and hosting,
kitting and assembly, order processing and shipnoeatlit card payment processing and customercerthiereby eliminating any need for our
clients to coordinate these services from man\eréfit providers. We believe we can differentiateselves by offering our clients a very broad
range of eCommerce and business process servatesdiiress, in many cases, the entire value clnain,demand to delivery.

We also compete on the basis of many otheoitapt additional factors, including:
. operating performance and reliabili
. ease of implementation and integrati
. experience of the people required to successfulliyedficiently design and implement solutio
. experience operating similar solutions dynamic:
. leading edge technology capabilitir
. global reach; an
. price.
We believe we can compete favorably with respemany of these factors. However, the markebto services is competitive and
continually evolving, and we may not be able to peta successfully against current and future coitopgt
MASTER DISTRIBUTOR SEGMENT

Our Supplies Distributors subsidiaries ach asaster distributor of product for IPS and certalrer clients. In this capacity, we purchase
from IPS or other manufacturers and resell to tbleémnel partners and end users.

Through Supplies Distributors, we can creai immplement client inventory solutions, which nenable manufacturers to remove inven
and receivables from their balance sheets througluse of third party financing. We have yearsxplegience in dealing with the issues related
to inventory ownership, secure inventory managenreptenishment and product distribution. We cdergfrospective clients a management
solution for the entire customer relationship, irdthg ownership of inventory and receivables. ThloCIP, we utilize technology resources to
time the replenishment purchase of inventory with simultaneous sale of product to the end usém#rfaces are done electronically and
almost all processes regarding the financial tretitsas are automated, creating significant supphirc advantages.

We are experienced in the complex legal, agtiog and governmental control issues that canupdlés in the successful implementation of
working capital financing programs. Our knowledgel &xperience help clients achieve supply chairfitsnwhile reducing inventorgarrying
costs. Substantial benefits and improvement tongpamy’s balance sheet can be achieved through thekéng capital solutions.

While we generally recognize product reversia aesult of our inventory ownership through thetationships, operationally this segment
is virtually the same as our eCommerce and BusiRessess Outsourcing Segment. See the precediogsdien for an overview of that
segment.
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ONLINE DISCOUNT RETAILER SEGMENT

Through eCOST.com®, we operate a leading reatiégory online discount retailer of high qualigw, close-out and recertified brand-
name merchandise. We currently offer approxima®@ly,000 products in several primary merchandisegcaies, including computers,
networking, electronics and entertainment, TV'spitars and projectors, cameras and camcorders, myeanad storage, “For the Home” and
sports and leisure. Additionally, we offer seveatiler categories of products and services to coasamd small business customers through
what we believe is a unique and convenient buykpmeeence, offering multiple shopping formats: gvday low price and our proprietary
Bargain Countdown®, Outrageous Offer, Secret SadeMake an Offer. This combination of shopping fatsnhelps attract value-conscious
customers to our eCOST.com website who are lookingigh quality products at low prices. Additiolalwe offer a fee-based membership
program to develop customer loyalty by providingstribers exclusive access to preferential offadsfeee freight offers. We also provide
rapid response customer service utilizing a stiedédly located distribution center and third-paftyfillment providers, as well as customer
support from online and on-call sales represergatiWe offer suppliers an efficient sales chanmeiferchandise in all stages of the product
life cycle. We carry products from leading manufets such as Sony, JVC, Canon, Hewlett-PackamdpmeCuisinart, Sennheiser, Garmin,
Panasonic, Toshiba and Microsoft and have accesbtoad and deep selection of merchandise, imgyudéw and deeply discounted close-out
and recertified brand-name merchandise.

Our Strengths

We have developed a differentiated businesgetavhich provides our customers and vendors wittmerous benefits. We provide
consumers and businesses with quick and convemerss to high quality, new, close-out and rededtibrand-name merchandise at discount
prices similar to a traditional discount retaileéth@ut the stocking limitations and store locat@mstraints. We believe we are unlike many
online retailers because we market multiple merdisgncategories and product types, serve both $msihesses and consumers and offer
multiple ways to purchase products: every day loiwepand our proprietary Bargain Countdown®, Outiags Offer, Secret Sale and Make an
Offer.

We offer the following key benefits to custamshopping on our website:

. Broad and deep product selectilWe sell high quality products across a broad selectf merchandise categories. Most of
products offered on our website are from well-knptwand-name manufacturers. We currently offer axiprately 300,000 different
products in several categories. Our product offgriare updated continually to reflect new prodwenids, keeping our merchandise
selection relevant for our customers so they coetito visit our website

. Compelling price-to-value propositioAs part of our strategy to appeal to the high fezoy value-oriented shopper, we offer low
prices on new products and deeper discounts oasaartment of close-out and recertified merchandlissemploy aggressive
promotional strategies to provide incentives for customers to purchase merchandise on our wedrsitduild customer loyalty. We
also offer a fee-based membership program to remastbmer loyalty by providing exclusive accespreferential offers and free
freight to members.

. Multiple shopping formats on our websiWe appeal to a broad customer base by offeringipteishopping formats designed
attract frequent visits to our website: every day price and our proprietary Bargain Countdown®tr@geous Offer, Secret Sale and
Make an Offer. For the shopper who wants new aoentty released products from leading manufactureesoffer discounted
merchandise in an everyday low price format. Ferliargain shopper interested in close-out and tifedrmerchandise, we market
products using our Bargain Countdown® format, whHiditures time- and quantitynited offers of selected merchandise that aree
deeply discounted. Multiple times weekly we cremfeenzied shopping environment by offering vengited quantity offers at
significantly discounted prices through our Outiage Offer and Secret Sale shopping formats. Trarsedfts are primarily targeted to
attract new customers to eCOST.com. For final sali¢s of an item we also offer a Make an Offer phmapformat where consumers
can offer a price of their choosing and we subsetyecide to accept or decline the oft
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. Rapid response order fulfillmerwe ship a majority of customer orders from inveptar our distribution facility located in Memph
Tennessee. We also utilize virtual warehouse tdolggdo access merchandise that is not in stocugatistribution facility.

. Responsive customer service and positive shoppimgrience We believe our customer service differentiateshiinging experience
for our customers. Our experienced team of inb@ales representatives and customer service repagisen assist our consumer
customers by telephone and e-mail. We also haaioeship managers who are assigned to many adraall business customers to
service their needs and increase future sales appties. Our website contains helpful featureshsa in-depth product information,
inventory levels and order status. In addition,a@atinually monitor website traffic and order adthvand periodically update our
website to enhance the shopping experience focugstomers

. Appealing features for small business custonWe offer our small business customers dedicatedioelship managers to provide
personalized service to their unique business ni

We provide manufacturers and other vendors aitonvenient channel to sell both large and squalhtities of new, close-out and
recertified inventory. We offer manufacturers areaidors the following key benefits:

. Single point of distributiorManufacturers and other vendors often use sepelatmels to sell new, recertified and c-out products
because most retailers offer products in only @agesof the product life cycle. Through our mukighopping formats, we offer
manufacturers and other vendors the flexibilityse eCOST.com to sell products in a brand sensitasener in any stage of the
product life cycle

. Efficient distribution and sales channOur centralized distribution capability reducesd@ncosts in shipping product to us. Our
ability to rapidly sell inventory is a benefit todse vendors that offer us protection against miosion. Our centralized product
management and feedback to vendors on produdtseligh and inventory position allow vendors taciitly monitor product
movement and placement, eliminating the need &yuent visits by vendor representatives to physetail locations

. Customized manufacturer stor&¥ith our in-house design and merchandising teanproeide manufacturers the opportunity to
showcase their full assortment of products andssmées by establishing virtual stores on our welibiat are specific to individual
manufacturers. We believe this allows manufactuemaximize sales and branding of their produats.promote these manufacturer
stores to our customer base through our integratatieting strategy, including targeted e-mails higtiing a specific manufacturer
and its products and directing customers to thatufeecturer store on our websi

. Speed to market for newly released prodiWe respond rapidly to new product releases fromufeaturers through our ability
quickly post and market new products on our welssiig satisfy immediate customer demand throughiapid response order
fulfillment capabilities.

Our Customers

We focus on consumers and business custonteroften display similar consumer buying charast@s. We believe our consumer
customers are savvy, online shoppers, who are madgrice conscious, and interested in new tedgyolOur business customers include
small and medium sized businesses that we beli@veusrently underserved by other multi-categorin@nretailers. While our business
customer relationship managers focus on sales &l amd medium sized businesses who are seekipgrthase products for use in their
business, they also service certain resellersobint@ogy products. We offer these small and mediizad business customers superior and
personalized customer service and new and cuelase-out and recertified merchandise at competjbinices.
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Our Website

Our website is comprehensive, easy to usgpemddes an exciting shopping experience that eragms customer loyalty and repeat visits.
We strive to add hundreds of new products to olinemproduct mix weekly. Our website features hggrality product images, detailed prod
information and manufacturer specifications, ad aehighlights of bestelling products and suggested accessories. Waaally incorporat
new technologies to improve the ease of use ohvalnsite.

Currently, the products available on the estagyylow price portion of our website are organiized several primary product categories:
computers, networking, electronics and entertainipnT&'s, monitors and projectors, cameras and caders, memory and storage, “For the
Home” and sports and leisure. We also offer theesproducts, if they meet certain criteria, on theppetary Bargain Countdown® section of
our website where we feature more than 100 linited and limited quantity product “deals” across btoad merchandise categories. In
addition to being able to use keyword searchesdaté specific products on our website, customensdbcowse or search the products available
on the everyday low price portion of our websitenayigating the subcategories contained in our @nnproduct categories and our featured
manufacturer product showcases. Products thawfdin more than one subcategory on our websiteofien posted on more than one web
page, which we believe increases the visibilityhaf products and assists the customer in findirsgreld merchandise.

Everyday low priceOur multi-category merchandise assortment is abigilen an everyday low price retail format. Produate organized
by subcategory under each major category tab. Eegbr category includes informative and shoppeflly “showcases” organized by
manufacturer, new technology, best sellers, sedgiftiguides, and new products. This shopping fatrfieatures discounted new products and
recently released products from leading manufacsure

Bargain Countdowi®. Our proprietary Bargain Countdown® shopping fatroffers more than 100 close-out, recertified laigthly
allocated “deal” products in limited quantities fofimited time. The Bargain Countdown® featurdésigned as a purchasing marketplace for
consumers that creates purchase urgency by uniqaitating the quantity of items remaining forwrent offer and the time remaining to
purchase the product. Based on the popularity afen, an animated graphic icon will appear tatetlee customer of the item’s current sales
velocity. After the offer has expired, the prodisctemoved from Bargain Countdown® and may no loitgeavailable at the previously deeply
discounted price. Our Bargain Countdown® shoppargnfit encourages repeat visits to our website dtiget rapidly changing mix of
merchandise deals, the animated graphics, the emigilection of close-out deals and the searclbéogains. We also have theme-based
Bargain Countdown® tabs throughout the year, indgdHoliday Countdown, Watches and Jewelry Countdoand Game of the Year
Countdown. Our Clearance Countdown tab is primarilgd to liquidate overstocked and excess invergonyss all product categories. Our
Bargain Countdown Platinum Club® format is a vemsié Bargain Countdown® and offers exclusive piicon select merchandise to our fee-
based members.

Other key features of our website include:aambed search, online order status retrieval, opaynent, shipping alternatives, online
registration for promotions and catalogs and ondixiended service agreement recommendations.

As a commitment to our small and medium sizesiness customers, we offer them access to oimdsasscustomer relationship
management team, credit terms of up to net 30-ftayualified customers, software licensing, congplystem configurations and extended
payment term alternatives.

Our Merchandise

We strive to offer our customers an expanselection of varied types of merchandise and ctigreffer approximately 300,000 products
several primary merchandise categories. While oodyrct offerings change on a regular basis dueddyzt availability and customer dema
we continually offer a wide variety of merchandise.

Computers and Networkin@ur computers and networking product categoriesabos several subcategories including systemsyaoét
and networking equipment. In these subcategorismmers can find products such as desktop, notedodlhandheld computers; servers;
personal digital assistants; various hardwareudio CD and
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DVD drives and burners, flat screen monitors, ctdser printers, scanners; and business, educatidentertainment software.

Electronics and Entertainmer@ur electronics and entertainment product categonjains subcategories for DVD movies and gaming,
audio systems, video systems and accessories.ithse subcategories, customers can find productsas DVD players; DVD movies and
gaming; personal audio systems; speakers; digiabwecorders that pause, rewind and replay #levision; digital music players and a
variety of accessories such as cables, remoteaisrind headphones.

TV’s, Monitors and Projector©ur TV's, monitors and projectors product categmomptains subcategories for monitors, projectors and
accessories.

Cameras and Camcorder®ur cameras and camcorders product category centargucts including digital still cameras; videoreras
and camcorders in MiniDV format; drawing tablets digital photo editing; digital photo and imageted) software and photo printers.

Memory and Storag®ur memory and storage product category contaimguats including media formats such as Blu Ray,a&@D DVD
R/W as well as flash and system memory.

For the HomeOur “For the Home” product category offers custasritbe ability to shop in subcategories dedicatdtbtoe and
housewares, personal care, home improvement, aytaatmmotive and apparel including watches andjlssses. Within this portion of our
website consumers can find products such as toadithousehold appliances including blenders, éoastnd vacuum cleaners, professional
guality cookware and gourmet kitchen appliance$ sisccoffee grinders.

Sports and Leisuréur sports and leisure product category offers petslthat range from various sports accessorigsaeeball, football
and numerous other activities to toys, musicarimsents and wedding accessories.

We continually evaluate expanding into addisibcategories to attract new customers and offepader variety of merchandise to our
existing customers. We also plan to increase opthd@ our current categories by adding new sulgcates, brands and products and
continuing to develop and increase the numberfdicaé categories.

Sales and Marketing

We currently focus our advertising effortsedficient and effective marketing campaigns aimedcguiring new customers, encouraging
repeat purchases and establishing the eCOST.camd.l®aur online prospecting activities may includsteper-click arrangements that include
displaying our products within various price conipan sites and search engines such as Shopziltapsdift Live Search Cashback and
Google, strategic online banner advertising, dffieimail programs and participation in variousialaffiliate marketing programs. From time
to time we test other prospecting vehicles inclgdiadio and magazine advertising. We send our sticgstomers targeted e-mails focused on
new product and category launches, special promstiand product-related add-on and accessory pffensell as cooperative manufacturer
branding campaigns.

Vendors

We purchase products for resale both dirdobipn manufacturers and indirectly through distridrstand other sources, all of whom we
consider our vendors. We provide vendors with aseairent channel to sell both large and small qtiastof new, closeout and recertified
inventory. We offer significant advantages for vers] including a single point of distribution, eféint channel relationships, customized
manufacturer stores and speedy release of theiestenerchandise. Our vendors provide us with breamde new and current products, close-
out models and manufacturer recertified producte.alg¢o have arrangements with third-party provitlemsugh which we receive commissions
for products in certain categories, such as cellpif®nes and service, as well as other marketidgpasmotional services generated through
eCOST.com website.
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We offer products on our website from numeriirsl-party vendors. In general, we agree to gff@ducts on our website and the
manufacturers agree to provide us with informatibout their products and honor our customer sepatieies. We have established direct
vendor relationships with many key suppliers andnd to continue to seek direct relationships wéhdors and suppliers.

Competition

The market for our products is intensely cotitipe, rapidly evolving and has relatively low bigrs to entry. New competitors can launch
new websites at relatively low cost. We believe ttanpetition in our market is based predominaatly

. price;

. product selection, quality and availabili

. shopping convenienc

. customer service; ar

. brand recognition

We currently or potentially compete with aiesr of companies that can be divided into sevierahd categories:

. other mult-category online retailers and liquidatic-tailers;

. online discount retailers of computer and consuahestronics merchandise such as Buy.com, NewEgd eyatDirect;
. consumer electronics and office supply superstsuel as Best Buy, Office Depot, OfficeMax and Stapanc

. manufacturers such as Apple, Dell, Gateway, He-Packard and IBM, who sell directly to custom:

Our largest manufacturers have sold, and roetio intensify their efforts to sell, their prads directly to consumers. To the extent
additional manufacturers adopt this selling forwrathis trend becomes more prevalent, it could exbhg affect our sales growth and
profitability.

Intellectual Property

We have five trademarks and/or service marasswe consider to be material to the successfetaijpn of our business: eCOST®,
eCOST.com®, eCOST.com Your Online Discount Supezsiy Bargain Countdown® and Bargain CountdowniRlah Club®. We currently
use these marks in connection with telephone, andér, catalog, and online retail services, as aglvith various business services. We have
registrations in the United States for eCOST® aD@8T.com® for telephone, mail order, catalog, amihe retail order services, and a
registration for Bargain Countdown® for online tietader services. We also have a registratiom@Wnited States for Bargain Countdown
Platinum Club® for business services, namely, ptimyathe goods and services of others by meansaétomer loyalty program featuring
information, incentives, discounts and rewards.\&'ee registrations in Canada and in the United #amg for eCOST®, eCOST.com® ,
Bargain Countdown® and eCOST.com Your Online Dist¢@uperstore!® . We own an additional registratio@anada for Bargain
Countdown Platinum Club® .

We have received a patent from the U.S. PatethfTrademark Office for our proprietary Bargaimu@tdown® technology, although we
cannot provide any assurance that effective patethtrademark protection will be available in alitances, including in other countries in
which our products and services may be available.

ALL BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Technology

We maintain advanced management informatistesys and have automated key business functiong asline, reatime or batch systerr
These systems enable us to provide informationermity sales, inventory status, customer paymertther operations that are essential for
us and our clients to efficiently manage
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electronic commerce and supply chain business anogirOur systems are designed to scale rapidlgridle the transaction processing
demands of our clients and our growth.

We employ technology from a select group ofdas. For example, we deploy IBM e-servers andioi printers in appropriate models to
run web site functions as well as order managelmeatistribution functions. We utilize Avaya Comneation for telephone switch and call
center management functions and to interact witftazuers via voice, e-mail or chat. Avaya Commumicatechnology also allows us to share
web pages between customers and our service repaitiges. We have the ability to transmit and reeefoice, data and video simultaneously
on a single network connection to a customer toeneffiectively serve that customer for our clierte@s’ interest in using this technology
stems from its ability to allow shoppers to consuith known experts in a way that the customer sesrior to purchasing. Our sophisticated
computer-telephony integration has been accompliblgecombining systems software from IBM and Av&@mmunication together with our
own application development. We use AT&T for ouwvpte enterprise network and long distance carvige.use Oracle’s J.D. Edwards as the
software provider for the primary ERP applicatidingt we use in our operational areas and finareceds. We use Dematic/Rapistan Materials
Handling Automation for our automated order setattautomated conveyor and “pick-to-light” (invemtoetrieval) systems, and Symbol
Technologies/Telxon for our warehouse radio fregyepplications. Our Warehouse Management SystewAS”) and Distribution
Requirements Planning (“DRP”) system have beenldped in-house to meet the varied unique requirésneinour vertical markets. Both the
WMS and DRP are tightly integrated to both the Nd@kimerican and European deployments of our J.D.dds system.

Many internal infrastructures are not suffitieo support the explosive growth in e-businessiagketplaces, supply chain compression,
distribution channel realignment and the correspandemand for real-time information necessarystoategic decision-making and product
fulfilment. To address this need, we have cre@E8web’s End2End eCommefplatform to enable companies with little or no ercoerce
infrastructure to speed their time to market andimize resource investment and risk, and allowsa@athpanies involved to improve the
efficiency of their supply chain.

Using the various components of our collalioratechnology suite, we can assist our clientsaisily integrating their web sites or ERP
systems to our systems for real-time web serviedlea transaction processing without regard foir terdware platform or operating system.
This high-level of systems integration allows oliemts to automatically process orders, customta dad other e-commerce information. We
also can track information sent to us by the clanit moves through our systems in the same manoairier would track a package
throughout the delivery process. Our systems enabte track, at a detailed level, information reed, transmission timing, any errors or
special processing required and information seck bathe client.

We provide technology interfaces to our baffice applications including our customized J.Dwdds order management and fulfillment
application. We utilize Gentran Integration Suit¢"®@IS”) as our technology platform for Enterprisg@lication Integration with our clients
and client’s trading partners. With GIS, we haveaglly increased our ability to quickly design amghldy customized B2B and B2C e-
commerce solutions for our clients by utilizingadust business process modeling tool and a higialable operating infrastructure. This
platform facilitates the efficient and secure exa®of electronic business transactions/documardsaide variety of formats (i.e. XML, X.12
EDI, delimited text, IDOCS) and communication piaits (i.e. FTP/SFTP, AS2/HTTP/HTTPS, AS1 SMTP, M€i& and SOA Web
Services).

We have invested in advanced telecommunicgtioomputer telephony, electronic mail and messggagintomated fax technology, IVR
technology, barcode scanning, wireless technolfiggr optic network communications and automateimory management systems. We
have also developed and utilize telecommunicatieasnology that provides for automatic customelrreslognition and customer profile rec
for inbound customer service representatives.

The primary responsibility of our systems depenent team of IT professionals is directed atlenpenting custom solutions for new clients
and maintaining existing client relationships. @ewelopment team can also produce proprietary systefrastructure to expand our
capabilities in circumstances where we cannot @getstandard solutions from commercial providers.afgo utilize temporary and/or conti
resources when needed for additional capacity.
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Our information technology operations andasfructure are built on the premise of reliabititd scalability. We maintain diesel generators
and un-interruptible power supply equipment to ptewconstant availability to computer rooms, caliters and warehouses. Multiple Internet
service providers and redundant web servers prduida high degree of availability to web sitesttimerface with our systems. Capacity
planning and upgrading is performed regularly tovalfor quick implementation of new clients and &l/tme-consuming infrastructure
upgrades that could slow growth rates. In the egéatdisastrous situation, we also have a Dis&teovery Plan that provides geographically
separated and comparably equipped data centeraréhable to recover stored data in a reasonableféective manner.

Strategy

We continue to maintain our simple but effeetstrategy statement to drive our actions, QGIs atronym stands for Quality, Growth and
Profit. We believe that if we can achieve outstaggierformance on these three basic elementsyitigyrovide for a stable foundation for o
future. As the evolution of our business model turgs, we will remain focused on these three furetgais:

Quality : To exceed our client’s service level requirememts enhance the value of their “brandiile providing their customers a positit
memorable and efficient experience.

Growth: To increase our revenue and gross profit fronsutsent levels. To aggressively market simplifigdduct messages to drive new
clients and revenue and profit growth. To becorfeg@er company and create career and additionaloyment opportunitiesEmbrace
strategic partnering to accentuate strengths anénizie weaknesses.

Profit: To generate positive cash flow and continue teetior consistent profitable results. To incredsevalue of our company for all of
its stakeholders while rewarding our team membéifs ehallenging, fun and memorable life experiences

The successful balance of the execution cfdtiendamental strategies is targeted to restiidrformation of a solid strategic and financial
foundation and provide us a sustainable and phdéitausiness model for the future.

See “Risk Factors” for a complete discussibrigk factors related to our ability to achiever abjectives and fulfill our business strategies.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximate€dd0 employees, of which approximately 800 weoated in the United States. We have
never suffered an interruption of business as @trea labor dispute. We consider our relatiopshith our employees to be good. In the U.S.,
Canada and Philippines, we are not a party to aligative bargaining agreements and while our Eeappsubsidiaries are not a party to a
collective-bargaining agreement, they are requioecbmply with certain rules mentioned in colleetivargaining agreements agreed upon by
representatives of their industry (logistics) amibas.

Our success in recruiting, hiring and trainigigge numbers of skilled employees and obtainéngd numbers of hourly employees during
peak periods for distribution and call center opiers is critical to our ability to provide high glity distribution and support services. Call
center representatives and distribution persoretdive feedback on their performance on a regualsistand, as appropriate, are recognized for
superior performance or given additional traini@gnerally, our clients provide specific productrtiiag for our customer service
representatives and, in certain instances, orch#et personnel to provide specific technical sapplo maintain good employee relations and
to minimize employee turnover, we strive to offermpetitive pay, hire primarily full-time employee#o are eligible to receive a full range of
employee benefits, and provide employees with clésible career paths.
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Internet Access to Reports

We maintain an Internet website, www.pfswetmcd@ur annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly report Form 10-Q, and current reports
on Form 8-K (and amendments, if any, to those tsfdded or furnished pursuant to Section 13(al®d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934) are made available, free of charge, throhghrvestor relations section of this website assas reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material, or furnish itttee Securities and Exchange Commission. We alsptaia an Internet website for our online
discount retailer, www.ecost.com. The informationtbese websites is not incorporated in this report

Government Regulation

We are subject to federal, state, local amelidm consumer protection laws, including laws ecting the privacy of our customers’
personally identifiable information and other naubfic information and regulations prohibiting unfand deceptive trade practices.
Furthermore, the growth and demand for online cormmbas and may continue to result in more stringensumer protection laws that
impose additional compliance burdens and greatesfies on online companies. Moreover, there igiad toward regulations requiring
companies to provide consumers with greater inftionmaegarding, and greater control over, how tpeirsonal data is used, and requiring
notification where unauthorized access to such dedars. For example, many states currently requir® notify each of our customers who
are affected by any data security breach in whichreauthorized person, such as a computer hadiiins such customer’'s name and one or
more of the customer’s social security number,atts/license number, credit or debit card numbestber similar personal information. In
addition, several jurisdictions, including foreigountries, have adopted privacy-related laws thstrict or prohibit unsolicited email
promotions, commonly known as “spam,” and that isgsignificant monetary and other penalties fotations. One such law, the “CAN-
SPAM” Act of 2003, became effective in the Unite@t8s on January 1, 2004 and imposes complex, hswdee and often ambiguous
requirements in connection with our sending comimégsenail to our customers and potential customdyeover, in an effort to comply with
these laws, Internet service providers may increggiblock legitimate marketing emails. These consuprotection laws may become more
stringent in the future and could result in subséugcompliance costs and could interfere with ¢baduct of our business.

We collect sales or other similar taxes fdpstents of goods in certain states. One or moral |atate or foreign jurisdictions may seek to
impose sales tax collection obligations on us ahéroout-of-state companies that engage in onlkimengerce. If sales tax obligations are
successfully imposed upon us by a state or othidjotion, we could be exposed to substantialitbilities for past sales and fines and
penalties for failure to collect sales taxes anccaudld suffer decreased sales in that state agdiation as the effective cost of purchasing gt
from us increases for those residing in that stajerisdiction. In addition, new legislation orgation, the application of laws and regulations
from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apg our business or the application of existingdand regulations to the Internet and
commercial online services could result in sigrifitadditional taxes or regulatory restrictionsoon business. These taxes could have an
adverse effect on our cash flows and results ofatjpas. Furthermore, there is a possibility thatmay be subject to significant fines or other
payments for any past failures to comply with thesglirements.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS
Our business, financial condition and operatingulés could be adversely affected by any or alheffollowing factors, in which event the
trading price of our common stock could declined gou could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to All Our Business Segments

Our business and future growth depend on our contéd access to bank and commercial financing. An en@in or recessed economy may
negatively impact our business, results of operaspfinancial condition or liquidity.

During the past two years, the credit markeid the financial services industry have been éapeing a period of unprecedented turmoil
and upheaval characterized by the bankruptcy,riailkollapse or sale of various financial

19




Table of Contents

institutions and an unprecedented level of intetie@from the United States and foreign governmefitsuncertain or recessed economy ci
also adversely impact our customers’ operatiorebdity to maintain liquidity, which may negativeisnpact our business and results of
operations.

Our business and future growth currently dejpgmour ability to access bank and commerciakliokcredit. We currently depend on an
aggregate of approximately $111 million in linecoédit facilities provided by various banks and ceencial lenders. These lines of credit
currently mature in at various dates through Ma¥y128@nd are secured by substantially all our as@etsability to renew our line of credit
facilities depends upon various factors, includimg availability of bank loans and commercial crédigeneral, as well as our financial
condition and prospects. Therefore, we cannot giieeathat these credit facilities will continuedi® available beyond their current maturities
on reasonable terms or at all. Our inability toeneror replace our credit facilities or find altetima financing would materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition, operating ressatid cash flow.

Our clients and customers may be unable to pay arsdur products and services

Our clients and customers include some conggahiat may from time to time encounter financidflallties, especially in light of the
current economic environment and the turmoil indredit markets. If a client’s or customer’s finaidifficulties become severe, they may be
unwilling or unable to pay our invoices in the oraiy course of business, which could adverselycaffellections of both our accounts
receivable and unbilled services. The bankruptcy clfent or customer with a substantial accouceirable could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oéogtions. In addition, if a client or customer @deek bankruptcy after paying us certain
invoices, a court may determine that we are ngpgng entitled to that payment and may require yepent of some or all of the amount we
received, which could adversely affect our finahc@ndition and results of operations.

We anticipate incurring significant expenses in tHereseeable future, which may reduce our abilitydachieve or maintain profitability.

To reach our business growth objectives, wg imerease our operating and marketing expensesethsas capital expenditures. To offset
these expenses, we will need to generate additpppéitable business. If our revenue grows slovaanteither we anticipate or our clients’
projections indicate, or if our operating and mérigeexpenses exceed our expectations, we mayemetrgte sufficient revenue to be profite
or be able to sustain or increase profitabilityaoguarterly or an annual basis in the future. Adddlly, if our revenue grows slower than either
we anticipate or our clients’ projections indicates may incur unnecessary or redundant costs andpauating results could be adversely
affected.

Changes to financial accounting standards may affeair reported results of operations.

We prepare our financial statements to confartdnited States generally accepted accountingiplies, or GAAP. GAAP is subject to
interpretation by the Financial Accounting StandadBdard, the SEC and various bodies formed topné¢iand create appropriate accounting
policies. A change in those policies can have aiiggnt effect on our reported results and mayneafect our reporting of transactions that
were completed before a change is announced. Atoguniles affecting many aspects of our businiessuding rules relating to accounting
for revenue recognition, arrangements involvingtipld deliverables, and operating leases, haventBckeen revised or are currently under
review. Changes to those rules or current integtimt of those rules may have a material adverfeetefn our reported financial results or on
the way we conduct our business.

We operate with significant levels of indebtednessl are required to comply with certain financiaha non-financial covenants; we are
required to maintain a minimum level of subordinatdoans to our subsidiary Supplies Distributors; dmwe have guaranteed certain
indebtedness and obligations of our subsidiariesp$lies Distributors and eCOST.

As of December 31, 2009, our total creditlfaes outstanding, including debt, capital leabigations and our vendor accounts payable
related to financing of IPS product inventory, veaproximately $54.2 million. Certain of the crefitilities have maturity dates in calendar
year 2011, but are classified as current liabgitie our
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consolidated financial statements. We cannot peegsurance that our credit facilities will be nged by the lending parties. Additionally,
these credit facilities include both financial ar@h-financial covenants, many of which also incladgss default provisions applicable to other
agreements. These covenants also restrict outyatmiltransfer funds among our various subsidiaridsch may adversely affect the ability of
our subsidiaries to operate their businesses oplyowith their respective loan covenants. We campmovide assurance that we will be able to
maintain compliance with these covenants. Any remewal or any default under any of our credit fied8 would have a material adverse
impact upon our business and financial conditioraddition we have provided $5.0 million of suboated indebtedness to Supplies
Distributors as of December 31, 2009. The maximewell of this subordinated indebtedness to Supplissibutors that may be provided
without approval from our lenders is $5.5 millidrhe restrictions on increasing this amount witheatler approval may limit our ability to
comply with certain loan covenants or further grand develop Supplies Distributors’ business. Weetguaranteed most of the indebtedness
of Supplies Distributors. Furthermore, we are ddithgl to repay any over-advance made to Supplidsiigrs by its lenders to the extent
Supplies Distributors is unable to do so. We hdse guaranteed eCOST'’s $7.5 million credit linewadl as certain of its vendor trade
payables. We currently expect that it may be necggs provide additional guarantees of certain 8C®endor trade payables in the future.

We are dependent on our key personnel, and we rteddre and retain skilled personnel to sustain obusiness.

Our performance is highly dependent on theisaed services of our executive officers and ottesr personnel, the loss of any of whom
could materially adversely affect our businessaddition, we need to attract and retain other lyigghilled, technical and managerial personnel
for whom there is intense competition. We cannetiesyou we will be able to attract and retaingbesonnel necessary for the continuing
growth of our business. Our inability to attractiaetain qualified technical and managerial persboould materially adversely affect our
ability to maintain and grow our business signifitia.

We are subject to risks associated with our intetioaal operations.

We currently operate a distribution centekigge, Belgium with approximately 150,000 squaret fend a distribution center in Toronto,
Canada with approximately 23,000 square feet, bbtbhich currently have excess capacity. We alserate a facility in the Philippines with
approximately 7,000 square feet to provide calteeand customer service functions, technical sttppooduct management and sales
activities. We cannot assure you that we will becessful in expanding in these or any additionirimational markets. In addition to the
uncertainty regarding our ability to generate rexefrom foreign operations and expand our inteonati presence, there are risks inherent in
doing business internationally, including:

. changing regulatory requiremen

. legal uncertainty regarding foreign laws, tariffelaother trade barrier
. political instability;

. potentially adverse tax consequenc

. foreign currency fluctuations; ar

. cultural differences

Any one or more of these factors could mallgradversely affect our business in a number ofsyauch as increased costs, operational
difficulties and reductions in revenue.

We are uncertain about our need for and the availlity of additional funds.

Our future capital needs are difficult to gotdWe may require additional capital to take attege of unanticipated opportunities, including
strategic alliances and acquisitions and to furpitabexpenditures, or to respond to changing lssirconditions and unanticipated compet
pressures. We may also require additional fundimémce operating losses. Should these circumssaaugge, our existing cash balance and
credit facilities may be insufficient and we mayeddo raise additional funds either by borrowingneyor issuing additional equity. We car
assure you that such resources will be adequateadlable for all of our future financing needs.r@ability to finance our growth, either
internally or externally, may limit our growth potéal and our ability to execute our business styat If we are successful in completing an
additional equity financing, this could result urther dilution to our shareholders or reduce tlaekat value of our common stock.
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We may engage in future strategic alliances or agitions that could dilute our existing shareholdgrcause us to incur significant
expenses or harm our business.

We may review strategic alliance or acquisitipportunities that would complement our currardibess or enhance our technological
capabilities. Integrating any newly acquired busges, technologies or services may be expensivéraaeconsuming. To finance any
acquisitions, it may be necessary for us to raisiti@nal funds through borrowing money or compigtpublic or private financings.
Additional funds may not be available on terms tratfavorable to us and, in the case of equignfaings, may result in dilution to our
shareholders. We may not be able to operate anyiradcpusinesses profitably or otherwise implenmenmtgrowth strategy successfully. If we
are unable to integrate any newly acquired enté@rgechnologies effectively, our operating resatisld suffer. Future acquisitions could also
result in incremental expenses and the incurrehdelat and contingent liabilities, any of which @harm our operating results.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately retpmur financial results or prevent fraud
As a result, current and potential shareholders dddose confidence in our financial reporting, whiccould harm our business, and tt
trading price of our common stock.

As of December 31, 2009 and based on the mureguirements, and our public float, we werenequired to comply with the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to ob&irport by our independent auditors opining orefifiectiveness of our internal controls
over financial reporting. We will be subject toghindependent auditor requirement for the yearrenBiecember 31, 2010. If we fail to correct
any issues in the design or operating effectivenégsernal controls over financial reporting ailfto prevent fraud, current and potential
shareholders could lose confidence in our finamepbrting, which could harm our business and ttaditg price of our common stock.

Delivery of our and our client’ products could be delayed or disrupted by factbesyond our control, and we could lose customersian
clients as a result.

We rely upon third party carriers for timelglidery of our and our clients’ product shipmems.a result, we are subject to carrier
disruptions and increased costs due to factorsatieabeyond our control, including employee strilkleslement weather and increased fuel
costs. Any failure to deliver products to our amal dients’ customers in a timely and accurate neamnay damage our reputation and brand
and could cause us to lose customers and clierdscafnot be sure that our relationships with thady carriers will continue on terms
favorable to us, if at all. If our relationship Wwiany of these third party carriers is terminatedrgaired or if any of these third parties is ule:
to deliver products, we would be required to userahtive carriers for the shipment of our anddignts’ products to customers. We may be
unable to engage alternative carriers on a timagsoor on favorable terms, if at all. Potentialexde consequences include:

. reduced visibility of order status and packagekiray;

. delays in order processing and product deliv

. increased cost of delivery, resulting in reducedgimes; anc

. reduced shipment quality, which may result in dagtbgroducts and customer dissatisfact

Our profitability could be adversely affected iféfpperation of our distribution or call center faldies were interrupted or shut down as the
result of a natural disaster.

We operate a majority of our distribution faigs in or around the Memphis, Tennessee aresbandall center operations are centered in
Plano, Texas. Any natural disaster or other seriisrsiption to these facilities due to fire, tornaflood or any other cause would substantially
disrupt our operations and would impair our abitiyadequately service our customers. In additi@could incur significantly higher costs
during the time it takes for us to reopen or replany one or more of these facilities, which maynay not be reimbursed by insurance. As a
result, disruption at one or more of these fae#ittould adversely affect our profitability.
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We may be a party to litigation involving our e-comerce intellectual property rights. If third parteeclaim we are infringing their
intellectual property rights, we could incur signéant litigation costs, be required to pay damagesgchange our business or incur licensing
expenses.

In recent years, there has been significéigation in the United States involving patent atler intellectual property rights. We may be a
party to intellectual property litigation in thetéwe to protect our trade secrets or know-how. &thBtates patent applications are confidential
until a patent is issued and most technologiesiaveloped in secret. Accordingly, we are not, samthot be, aware of all patents or other
intellectual property rights of which our servigeay pose a risk of infringement. Others assertigigts against us could force us to defend
ourselves or our customers against alleged infritege of intellectual property rights. We could insubstantial costs to prosecute or defend
any such litigation.

Third parties have asserted, and may in theduassert, that our business or the technolaeggesse infringe on their intellectual property
rights. As a result, we may be subject to intellatproperty legal proceedings and claims in tlténarry course of business. We cannot predict
whether third parties will assert claims of infrergent in the future or whether any future claimié prevent us from offering popular products
or services. If we are found to infringe, we mayéguired to pay monetary damages, which couldidetreble damages and attorneys’ fees
for any infringement that is found to be willfuhéeither be enjoined or required to pay ongoinglitees with respect to any technologies
found to infringe. Further, as a result of infringent claims either against us or against thoselighnse technology to us, we may be required,
or deem it advisable, to develop non-infringinghtealogy, which could be costly and time consumarggnter into costly royalty or licensing
agreements. Such royalty or licensing agreemdmsquired, may be unavailable on terms that aceptable, or at all. If a third party
successfully asserts an infringement claim agaisstnd we are enjoined or required to pay mon&lanyages or royalties or we are unable to
develop suitable non-infringing alternatives oelise the infringed or similar technology on reabtmterms on a timely basis, our business,
results of operations and financial condition cdvédmaterially harmed.

A breach of our -commerce security measures could reduce demandtfoservices. Credit card fraud and other fraududd adversely
affect our business.

A requirement of the continued growth of e-coence is the secure transmission of confidentfarimation over public networks. A party
who is able to circumvent our security measuresdcousappropriate proprietary information or intgst our operations. Any compromise or
elimination of our security could reduce demanddor services.

We may be required to expend significant @@ihd other resources to protect against seduréttches or to address any problem they may
cause. Because our activities involve the storaget@nsmission of proprietary information, suctceslit card numbers, security breaches
could damage our reputation, cause us to losetslienpact our ability to attract new clients ané @ould be exposed to litigation and possible
liability. Our security measures may not preverusigy breaches, and failure to prevent securigabhes may disrupt our operations. In cel
circumstances, we do not carry insurance agaiestisk of credit card fraud and other fraud, softtieire to adequately control fraudulent
transactions on either our behalf or our cliengbdf could increase our expenses.

We may be liable for misappropriation of our custens’ and our clients’ customers’ personal informaii.

Data security laws are becoming more stringettie United States and abroad. Third partiegagaging in increased cyber attacks against
companies doing business on the Internet and itails are increasingly subjected to identity amdlitrcard theft on the Internet. If third
parties or unauthorized employees are able to pmreaiur network security or otherwise misapprdpraur or our clients’ customers’ personal
information or credit card information, or if wevgithird parties or our employees improper acaessistomers’ personal information or credit
card information, we could be subject to liabilihis liability could include claims for unauthoeid purchases with credit card information,
impersonation or other similar fraud claims. Thébility could also include claims for other misas# personal information, including
unauthorized marketing purposes. Liability for npigeopriation of this information could decrease profitability. In such circumstances, we
also could be liable for failing to provide timeigtice of a data security breach affecting cegies of personal information. In addition, the
Federal Trade Commission and state agencies haugttrnumerous enforcement actions against
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Internet companies for alleged deficiencies in éhasmpanies’ privacy and data security practiced,they may continue to bring such actions.
We could incur additional expenses if new regutaticegarding the collection, use or storage ofqekinformation are introduced or if
government agencies investigate our privacy orrigqoractices.

We rely on encryption and authentication tetbgy licensed from third parties to provide thewgéty and authentication necessary to effect
secure transmission of sensitive customer infolwnaguch as customer credit card numbers. Advancesmputer capabilities, new discovel
in the field of cryptography or other events or elepments may result in a compromise or breacheatgorithms that we use to protect
customer transaction data. If any such compronfiseaurity were to occur, it could subject us #&bility, damage our reputation and diminish
the value of our brand-name. A party who is ableitoumvent the security measures could misappatgproprietary information or cause
interruptions in operations. We may be requiredxpend significant capital and other resourcegdtept against such security breaches or to
alleviate problems caused by such breaches. Ourisemeasures are designed to prevent securigches, but our failure to prevent such
security breaches could subject us to liabilitypdge our reputation and diminish the value of sant-name.

We also may provide non-secured channelsustoeners to communicate. Despite the increasedigedeks, customers may use such
channels to send personal information and othesithem data. In addition, “phishing” incidents ane the rise. Phishing involves an online
company'’s customers being tricked into providingititredit card numbers or account informationdmeone pretending to be the online
company’s representative. Such incidents have tlycgiven rise to litigation against online compesifor failing to take sufficient steps to
police against such activities by third parties] amy discourage customers from using online sesvic

We are subject to a dispute with a municipal autitgr which, if not resolved in our favor, may maieafly adversely affect our results of
operations.

We receive municipal tax abatements in celftatations. During 2004 we received notice fromninipal authority that we did not satisfy
certain criteria necessary to maintain the abatésnémDecember 2006 we received notice that theiopal authority planned to make an
adjustment to our tax abatement. We have disphteddjustment, but if the dispute is not resohaafably, additional taxes of approximately
$1.7 million could be assessed against us.

Risks Related to Our PFS and Supplies Distributor©perating Segments

Our service fee revenue and gross margin is dependgon our clients’business and transaction volumes and our costs; mahour client
service agreements are terminable by the clientvdl, we may incur financial penalties if we faild meet contractual service levels unc
certain client service agreements.

Our service fee revenue is primarily trangactased and fluctuates with the volume of transastor level of sales of the products by our
clients for whom we provide transaction managersentices. If we are unable to retain existing ¢feor attract new clients or if we dedicate
significant resources to clients whose business doegenerate sufficient revenue or whose prodi@tsot generate substantial customer <
our business may be materially adversely affedttmeover, our ability to estimate service fee rawefor future periods is substantially
dependent upon our clients’ and our own projectitims accuracy of which has been, and will contitwulee, unpredictable. Therefore, our
planning for client activity and targeted goals $ervice fee revenue and gross margin may be ratyeadversely affected by incomplete,
delayed or inaccurate projections. In addition, ynahour service agreements with our clients ammiteable by the client at will. Therefore, we
cannot assure you that any of our clients will curg to use our services for any period of timee Tdss of a significant amount of service fee
revenue due to client terminations could have aratadverse effect on our ability to cover oustsaand thus on our profitability. Certain of
our client service agreements contain minimum serigvel requirements and impose financial persitiese fail to meet such requirements.
The imposition of a substantial amount of such fiEsacould have a material adverse effect on aginess and operations.
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Our business is subject to the risk of customer angplier concentration.

For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 20085. government agency, a technology comparyaaronsumer products company
represented approximately 7%, 15% and 10%, res@gtiand approximately 37%, 10% and 6%, respelgtivé our total service fee revenue,
excluding pass-through revenue. Our activity uraercontract with the U.S. government agency cateduin the second quarter of 2009. PFS
currently operates three distinct geographicalremtiarrangements with the technology company, lwhaie aggregated in the service fee
revenue percentages above. During 2010, the teagmabmpany notified PFS that it is not renewing ¥ its three contracts with PFS
expiring during 2010. The non-renewal of these @mts has had, and may continue to have, a mateh@rse effect upon our business.

A substantial portion of our Supplies Disttilms product revenue is generated by sales of ptguiuchased under master distributor
agreements with InfoPrint Solutions Company (“IRShese agreements are terminable at will and serasce can be given that IPS will
continue the master distributor agreements withpBesp Distributors. Supplies Distributors does have its own sales force and relies upon
IPS’s sales force and product demand generatidvita for its sale of IPS product. Discontinuarafesuch activities would have a material
adverse effect on Supplies Distributors’ businegs@ur overall financial condition.

Sales by Supplies Distributors to two cust@recounted for approximately 30% of Supplies Distors’ total product revenue for each of
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (16%5¥cf our consolidated net revenues for the yeaded December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively). The loss of any one or more of studtomers, or non-payment of any material amourthége or any other customer, would
have a material adverse effect upon Supplies Digiors’ business.

Our operating results are materially impacted byrazlient mix and the seasonality of their business.

Our business is materially impacted by owrdlimix and the seasonality of their business. 8apen our current client mix and their
current projected business volumes, we anticipateservice fee revenue business activity will biésalibwest in the first quarter of our fiscal
year and that our master distributor product reedmusiness activity will be at its highest in tberth quarter of our fiscal year. We are une
to predict how the seasonality of future clientssimess may affect our quarterly revenue and whetieeseasonality may change due to
modifications to a client’s business. As such, whdve that results of operations for a quartedyiged may not be indicative of the results for
any other quarter or for the full year.

Our systems may not accommodate significant growtlour number of clients.

Our success depends on our ability to hanthege number of transactions for many differeigrdk in various product categories. We
expect that the volume of transactions will inceeaignificantly as we expand our operations. i ticurs, additional stress will be placed
upon the network hardware and software that managiegperations. We cannot assure you of our gltdiefficiently manage a large number
of transactions. If we are not able to maintairappropriate level of operating performance, we aleyelop a negative reputation, and impair
existing and prospective client relationships andhlsiness would be materially adversely affected.

We may not be able to recover all or a portion afrstart-up costs associated with one or more of clients.

We generally incur start-up costs in connectidth the planning and implementation of busingsgess solutions for our clients. Although
we generally attempt to recover these costs franclient in the early stages of the client reladip, or upon contract termination if the client
terminates without cause prior to full amortizatifithese costs, there is a risk that the clientra@t may not fully cover the start-up costs. To
the extent start-up costs exceed the stprtees received, certain excess costs will beresgubas incurred. Additionally, in connection witan
client contracts we generally incur capital expamais associated with assets whose primary usdai®d to the client solution. There is a risk
that the contract may end before expected and wenmitarecover the full amount of our capital costs.
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Our revenue and margins may be materially impactgdclient transaction volumes that differ from cli¢ projections and business
assumptions.

Our pricing for client transaction servicesgls as call center and fulfillment, is often baspdn volume projections and business
assumptions provided by the client and our antieip@osts to perform such work. In the event thieadevel of activity or cost is substantia
different from the projections or assumptions, wayrhave insufficient or excess staffing, incremeotsts or other assets dedicated for such
client that may negatively impact our margins aodiess relationship with such client. In the eweatare unable to meet the service levels
expected by the client, our relationship with thient will suffer and may result in financial petias and/or the termination of the client
contract.

We face competition from many sources that couldracsely affect our business.

Many companies offer, on an individual basisg or more of the same services we do, and wecfaopetition from many different sources
depending upon the type and range of services steldy a potential client. Our competitors includetical outsourcers, which are compal
that offer a single function, such as call centpahlic warehouses or credit card processors. \Wete against transportation logistics
providers who offer product management functionaraancillary service to their primary transpodatservices. We also compete against
other business process outsourcing providers, vehfopn many similar services as us. Many of thesepanies have greater capabilities than
we do for the single or multiple functions they yide. In many instances, our competition is théduse operations of its potential clients
themselves. The ihoeuse operations of potential clients often beliga they can perform the same services we ddewtiiers are reluctant
outsource business functions that involve direstamer contact. We cannot be certain that we ilhble to compete successfully against
these or other competitors in the future.

Our sales and implementation cycles are highly \adrie and our ability to finalize pending contracisay cause our operating results to vary
widely.

The sales cycle for our services is variatylgically ranging between several months to up year or longer from initial contact with the
potential client to the signing of a contract. Gsioaally the sales cycle requires substantiallyariome. Delays in signing and executing client
contracts may affect our revenue and cause ouabpgresults to vary widely. A potential clientlecision to purchase our services is
discretionary, involves a significant commitmentloé clients resources and is influenced by intense intemglexternal pricing and operati
comparisons. To successfully sell our servicesgereerally must educate our potential clients reigarthe use and benefit of our services,
which can require significant time and resourcemsegquently, the period between initial contact aedourchase of our services is often long
and subject to delays associated with the lengbipyaval and competitive evaluation processes timtally accompany significant operational
decisions. Additionally, the time required to fiizal pending contracts and to implement our systemisintegrate a new client can range from
several weeks to many months. Delays in signingitegrating new clients may affect our revenue eaugse our operating results to vary
widely.

Our business could be adversely affected by a syster equipment failure, whether that of us or oalients.

Our operations are dependent upon our abdifyrotect our distribution facilities, customensee centers, computer and
telecommunications equipment and software systgyasst damage and failures. Damage or failuresdoadult from fire, power loss,
equipment malfunctions, system failures, natursdsliers and other causes. If our business isupted either from accidents or the intentional
acts of others, our business could be materialeesly affected. In addition, in the event of véigeead damage or failures at our facilities,
short-term disaster recovery and contingency péemtsinsurance coverage may not be sufficient.

Our clients’ businesses may also be harmed &y system or equipment failures we experiencédt event, our relationship with these
clients may be adversely affected, we may losectiobents, our ability to attract new clients mayduversely affected and we could be
exposed to liability.

Interruptions could also result from the iritenal acts of others, like “hackers.” If our syst®are penetrated by computer hackers, or if
computer viruses infect our systems, our computeutd fail or proprietary information could be nmigeopriated.
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If our clients suffer similar interruptions tineir operations, for any of the reasons discussede or for others, our business could also be
adversely affected. Many of our clients’ computgstems interface with our systems. If our clienifes interruptions in their systems, the link
to our systems could be severed and sales of itat’slproducts could be slowed or stopped.

Risks Related to the Business Process Outsourcingdustry
If the trend toward outsourcing does not continueyr business could be adversely affect

Our business could be materially adverselgaéd if the trend toward outsourcing declinesewerses, or if corporations bring previously
outsourced functions back in-house. Particularlgrdugeneral economic downturns, businesses may lmihouse previously outsourced
functions to avoid or delay layoffs.

Our market is subject to rapid technological changad to compete we must continually enhance ourtegss to comply with evolving
standards

To remain competitive, we must continue toarde and improve the responsiveness, functioratitiyfeatures of our services and the
underlying network infrastructure. If we are unatdedapt to changing market conditions, clientinements or emerging industry standards,
our business could be adversely affected. Theriateand e-commerce environments are characterizegpltd technological change, changes
in user requirements and preferences, frequentomeduct and service introductions embodying newnetogies and the emergence of new
industry standards and practices that could readetechnology and systems obsolete. Our succéisdepiend, in part, on our ability to both
internally develop and license leading technologgesnhance our existing services and develop eewces. We must continue to address the
increasingly sophisticated and varied needs otbents and respond to technological advances aretgng industry standards and practices
on a coseffective and timely basis. The development of pedpry technology involves significant technicablabusiness risks. We may fail
develop new technologies effectively or to adaptproprietary technology and systems to client nesents or emerging industry standards.
Risks Related to eCOST, our Online Discount RetaiteSegment
We may not be able to achieve or maintain profitityi

We have incurred continuing operating lossebkraay not be able to achieve or maintain profiitgtdn a quarterly or annual basis. Our
ability to achieve or maintain profitability dependn a number of factors, including our ability to:

. increase sale:

. maintain and expand vendor relationsh

. obtain additional and increase existing trade treilh key suppliers

. generate sufficient gross profit; a

. control costs and generate the expected synergieable to the merge
We may need additional financing and may not be@lb obtain additional financing on favorable ternm at all, which could increase our
costs and limit our ability to grow.

We may need to obtain additional financing #rete can be no assurance that we will be albdbtain additional financing on commercie
reasonable terms or at all. Our failure to obtalditonal financing or our inability to obtain finaing on acceptable terms will materially
adversely affect our ability to achieve profitatyiland grow our business.

Our operating results are difficult to predict.

Our operating results have fluctuated in thstjand are likely to vary significantly in thedtg based upon a number of factors, many of
which we cannot control. We operate in a highlyayic industry and future results
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could be subject to significant fluctuations. Reveand expenses in future periods may be greates®than revenue and expenses in the
immediately preceding period or in the comparaleiéqal of the prior year. Therefore, period-to-pdrammparisons of our operating results are
not necessarily a good indication of our futuref@enance. Some of the factors that could causeperating results to fluctuate include:

. price competition that results in lower sales vadsimower profit margins, or net loss

. our ability to prevent credit card fraud and redobargeback activity

. the amount, timing and impact of advertising andkating costs

. our ability to successfully implement new technéésgor software system

. our ability to obtain sufficient financing

. changes in the number of visitors to our websitewrinability to convert those visitors into custers;
. technical difficulties, including system or Intetriailures;

. fluctuations in the demand for our products or st@rking or unde-stocking of products

. fluctuations in revenues and shipping costs, paeity during the holiday seasc

. economic conditions generally or economic condgispecific to the Internet, online commerce, thaikendustry or the mail orde
industry;

. changes in the mix of products that we sell;

. fluctuations in levels of inventory theft, damageobsolescenct

The failure to improve our financial and operatingerformance may result in a failure to comply withur financial covenants.

In the event we are unable to increase oweme® and/or gross profit from our present levetsdmnot achieve a sufficient level of
operating efficiencies, we may fail to comply withe or more of the financial covenants requiredenmdir working capital line of credit. In
such event, absent a waiver, the working capitadée would be entitled to accelerate all amountstanding thereunder and exercise all other
rights and remedies, including sale of collateral payment under the parent guaranty.

If we fail to accurately predict our inventory riskour margins may decline as a result of wi-downs of our inventory due to lower prices
obtained for older or obsolete products.

Some of the products we sell on our websitecharacterized by rapid technological change,lebsence and price erosion (for example,
computer hardware, software and consumer elecspraod because we may sometimes stock large tjeamti particular types of inventory,
inventory reserves may be required or may subselyymove insufficient, and additional inventoryite-downs may be required.

Increased product returns or a failure to accurayepredict product returns could decrease our reveswand impact profitability

We make allowances for product returns baselistorical return rates. We are responsible étwms of certain products ordered through
our website from our distribution center as welpasducts that are shipped to our customers dyréatin our vendors. If our actual product
returns significantly exceed our allowances foumes$, especially as we expand into new producgeaites, our revenues and profitability co
decrease. In addition, because our allowancesaaedlon historical return rates, the introductibnesv merchandise categories, new products,
changes in our product mix, or other factors mayseaactual returns to exceed return allowancebapsrsignificantly. Any policies intended
to reduce the number of product returns may réswaustomer dissatisfaction, increased credit chatgeback activity and fewer repeat
customers.

Our ability to offer a broad selection of productd competitive prices is dependent on our abilitynhaintain existing and build new
relationships with manufacturers and vendors. We dot have long-term agreements with our manufacttser vendors and some of our
manufacturers and vendors compete directly with us.

We purchase products for resale both dirdobiyn manufacturers and indirectly through distrirstand other sources, all of whom we
consider our vendors. We do not have any long-sggreements with any of these vendors. Any agreeswettt vendors governing our
purchase of products are generally terminable thyeeparty upon 30 days’ notice or less. In genevalagree to offer products on our website
and the vendors agree to provide us with
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information about their products and honor our aonr service policies. If we do not maintain relaships with vendors on acceptable terms,
including favorable product pricing and vendor ddegation, we may not be able to offer a broaddile of products or continue to offer
products at competitive prices, and customers rhapse not to shop at our website. In addition, seemelors may decide not to offer
particular products for sale on the Internet, atigtis may avoid offering their new products toifteta like us who offer a mix of close-out and
recertified products in addition to new productsorf time to time, vendors may terminate our righse¢ll some or all of our products, change
the applicable terms and conditions of sale orcedar discontinue the incentives or vendor consiiten that they offer. Any such termination
or the implementation of such changes could havegative impact on our operating results. Additignaome products are subject to
manufacturer or distributor allocation, which limthe number of units of those products that asélae to us and other resellers.

Our business is subject to the risk of supplier cemtration.

Our business is dependent on sales of HeRéetkard (HP) and HP-related products, which reptegeapproximately 44% of eCOST's net
revenues (11% of our consolidated revenues) in 200943% of eCOST'’s net revenues (9% of our codatdd revenues) in 2008. If our
ability to purchase direct from HP is terminatedestricted, or if the demand for HP and HP-relggextiucts declines, our business could be
materially adversely affected.

We are dependent on the success of our advertisind marketing efforts, which are costly and may raathieve desired results, and on our
ability to attract customers on cost-effective tegm

Our revenues depend on our ability to adverisd market our products effectively. Increasdhancosts of advertising and marketing,
including costs of online advertising, paper andtage costs, costs and fees of third-party sepriceiders and the costs of complying with
applicable regulations, may limit our ability tovaditise and market our business without impactimgpoofitability. If our advertising and
marketing efforts prove ineffective or do not prodwa sufficient level of sales to cover their costsf we decrease our advertising or
marketing activities due to increased costs, @giris enacted by regulatory agencies or for ahgrateason, our revenues and profit margins
may decrease. Our success depends on our abilityr&mt customers on cosffective terms. We have relationships with onkeevices, searc
engines, shopping engines, directories and othbsites and e-commerce businesses through whichavép advertising banners and other
links that direct customers to our website. We ekperely on these relationships as significantrses of traffic to our website and to generate
new customers. If we are unable to develop or ragirthese relationships on acceptable terms, dlityab attract new customers on a cost-
effective basis could be harmed. In addition, ¢ermé our existing online marketing agreements exjus to pay fixed placement fees or fees
for directing visits to our eCOST website, neitbéwhich may convert into sales.

Because we experience seasonal fluctuations in mwrenues, our quarterly results may fluctuai

Our business is moderately seasonal, refigttia general pattern of peak sales for the rigtdilstry during the holiday shopping season.
Typically, a larger portion of our revenues occuridg the first and fourth fiscal quarters. We beé that our historical revenue growth makes
it difficult to predict the effect of seasonality our future revenues and results of operationantitipation of increased sales activity during
the first and fourth quarters, we incur additioegbenses, including higher inventory and staffiogts. If sales for the first and fourth quarters
do not meet anticipated levels, then increasedresggemay not be offset which could decrease oditgidity. If we were to experience lower
than expected sales during our first or fourth tgrar for any reason, it would decrease our pruifitg.

Our business may be harmed by fraudulent activit@s our website.

We have received in the past, and anticigeewe will receive in the future, communicationsnfi customers due to purported fraudulent
activities on our eCOST website. Negative publigénerated as a result of fraudulent conduct brd iarties could damage our reputation and
diminish the value of our brand name. Frauduletivities on our eCOST website could also subjediussses. We expect to continue to
receive requests from customers for reimbursemeata purportedly fraudulent activities or threaftéegal action if no reimbursement is
made.
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If we do not successfully expand our eCOST webaite processing systems to accommodate higher lesfaisaffic and changing custome
demands, we could lose customers and our revenaesdcdecline.

To remain competitive, we must continue toarde and improve the functionality and featureswfwebsite. If we fail to upgrade our
website in a timely manner to accommodate high&rmaes of traffic, our website performance couldauénd we may lose customers. The
Internet and the eemmerce industry are subject to rapid technoldgicange. If competitors introduce new featuresaatlsite enhancemer
embodying new technologies, or if new industry deads and practices emerge, our existing eCOSTitgedrsd systems may become obsolete
or unattractive. Developing our eCOST website aherosystems entails significant technical andress risks. We may face material delays
in introducing new services, products and enhanaogné# this happens, customers may forgo the fisenoeCOST website and use those of
our competitors. We may use new technologies ingffely, or we may fail to adapt our website, traction processing systems and computer
network to meet customer requirements or emergidgstry standards.

If we fail to successfully expand our merchandisategories and product offerings in a ceeffective and timely manner, our reputation and
the value of our new and existing brands could barimed, customer demand for our products could deeland our profit margins could
decrease.

Historically, we have generated the substhntgority of our revenues from the sale of compiardware, software and accessories and
consumer electronics products. In recent yeard)ave added several new product categories, ingutfiar the Home” and sports and leisure.
While our merchandising platform has been incorfgarénto and tested in the online computer and wmes electronics retail markets, we
cannot predict with certainty whether it can becessfully applied to other product categories.ddition, expansion of our business strategy
into new product categories may require us to isggmificant marketing expenses, develop relatigpstvith new vendors and comply with
new regulations. We may lack the necessary expértia new product category to realize the expdogeefits of that new category. These
requirements could strain managerial, financial @perational resources. Additional challenges iy affect our ability to expand into new
product categories include our ability to:

. establish or increase awareness of new brandsraddqi categories

. acquire, attract and retain customers at a reatonoabt;

. achieve and maintain a critical mass of customedsaaders across all product categor

. attract a sufficient number of new customers to mvlmew product categories are targe

. successfully market new product offerings to ergitustomers

. maintain or improve gross margins and fulfillmeaosts;

. attract and retain vendors to provide an expanitedf products to customers on terms that arepdabte; anc
. manage inventory in new product categor

We cannot be certain we will be able to susftdly address any or all of these challengesnmaaner that will enable us to expand our
business into new product categories in a cost#ffe or timely manner. If our new categories adgcts or services are not received
favorably, or if our suppliers fail to meet our tarsers’ expectations, our results of operationsldsuffer and our reputation and the value of
the applicable new brand and other brands coulthbgaged. The lack of market acceptance of our medugt categories or inability to
generate satisfactory revenues from any expandstlipt categories to offset our cost could harmbusiness.

Credit card fraud could materially adversely affeatir business.

We do not currently carry insurance againstribk of credit card fraud, so the failure to ately control fraudulent credit card
transactions could reduce our revenues and groggm&Ve may suffer losses as a result of ordeasaal with fraudulent credit card data even
though the associated financial institution apptbpayment of the orders. Under current credit gaadtices, we may be liable for fraudulent
credit card transactions because we did not obtamrdholdes signature. If we are unable to detect or comtredlit card fraud, or if credit ca
companies require more burdensome terms, refuseckpt credit card charges or assess financialtgEnaur business could be materially
adversely affected.
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If we are unable to provide satisfactory customengce, we could lose custome

Our ability to provide satisfactory levelsafstomer service depends, to a large degree, affibient and uninterrupted operation of our
customer service operations. Any material disruptioslowdown in our order processing systems tiegufrom labor disputes, telephone or
Internet failures, power or service outages, natlisasters or other events could make it difficmslimpossible to provide adequate customer
service and support. If we are unable to contigyaibvide adequate staffing and training for oustomer service operations, our reputation
could be seriously harmed and we could lose cuswmrBecause our success depends in large partemineour customers satisfied, any
failure to provide high levels of customer servwiosuld likely impair our reputation and decrease i@venues.

We may not be able to compete successfully aganristting or future competitors.

The market for online sales of the productsffer is intensely competitive and rapidly evolyilnWe principally compete with a variety of
online retailers, specialty retailers and otheritesses that offer products similar to or the sameur products. Increased competition is likely
to result in price reductions, reduced revenuegands margins and loss of market share. We expegpetition to intensify in the future
because current and new competitors can enter dhleetrwith little difficulty and can launch new wates at a relatively low cost. In addition,
some of our product vendors have sold, and contmirgensify their efforts to sell, their productsectly to customers. We currently or
potentially compete with a variety of businessesluding:

. other mult-category online retailers and liquidatic-tailers;

. online discount retailers of computer and consuahestronics merchandise such as Buy.com, NewEgd eyatDirect;
. consumer electronics and office supply superstsuel as Best Buy, Office Depot, OfficeMax and Stapanc

. manufacturers such as Apple, Dell, Gateway, He-Packard and IBM, that sell directly to custom:

Many of the current and potential competidescribed above have longer operating historiegetacustomer bases, greater brand
recognition and significantly greater financial, nketing and other resources than we do. In additoline retailers may be acquired by,
receive investments from or enter into other conumaérelationships with larger, well-establishediamell-financed companies. Some of our
competitors may be able to secure products fromufiaaturers or vendors on more favorable terms, egeater resources to marketing and
promotional campaigns, adopt more aggressive grisirinventory availability policies and devote stantially more resources to website and
systems development than we are able to.

If the protection of our trademarks and proprietamghts is inadequate, our eCOST brand and reputaticould be impaired and we cou
lose customers.

We have five trademarks and/or service maraswe consider to be material to the successfetatipn of our business: eCOST ® ,
eCOST.com ® , eCOST.com Your Online Discount Supezs® , Bargain Countdown ® and Bargain Countdd®atinum Club ® . We
currently use these marks in connection with tedeygh mail order, catalog and online retail servi?®s rely on trademark and copyright law,
trade secret protection and confidentiality agre@s@ith our employees, consultants, suppliersaihdrs to protect our proprietary rights. (
competitors or others could adopt trademarks arsdvice marks similar to our marks, or try to gnetvus from using our marks, and/or cor
our registrations in and to our marks thereby inipgadur ability to build brand identity and possiliéading to customer confusion. Any claim
by another party against us for customer confusarsed by use of our trademarks and/or servicesnarlour failure to obtain registrations
for our marks, could negatively affect our competitposition and could cause us to lose customers.

Although we have received a patent from th®. Patent and Trademark Office for our proprieaygain Countdown ® technology, we
cannot provide any assurance that effective patethtrademark protection will be available in aliteances, including in other countries in
which our products and services may be available.
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Effective trademark, service mark, patent, donmame, copyright and trade secret protection noaye available in every country in which
we will sell our products and offer our servicesabldition, the relationship between regulationgegoing domain names and laws protecting
trademarks, service marks and similar proprietayiyts is unclear. Therefore, we may be unable ¢vqmt third parties from acquiring domain
names that are similar to, infringe upon or otheendecrease the value of our trademarks and/dceenarks and other proprietary rights. If
we are unable to protect or preserve the valueiofrademarks, service marks, domain names, cdupgritrade secrets or other proprietary
rights for any reason, our competitive positionlddae negatively affected and we could lose custeme

We may be subject to product liability claims thaduld be costly and time consuming.

We sell products manufactured and distribtgthird parties, some of which may be defectivenaly not comply with applicable laws or
regulations, such as laws or regulations requiwagning labels. If any product that we sell wereaoise physical injury or damage to property
or otherwise not comply with applicable laws orukegions, we may be subject to claims being assext@inst us as the retailer of the product.
Our insurance coverage may not be available orumtedo cover every claim that could be asserfedsticcessful claim were brought against
us in excess of its insurance coverage, it coupisa us to significant liability. Even unsuccessfalms could result in the expenditure of
funds and management time and could decreaseginitifif.

eCOST may be subject to future impairment chargekated to eCOST's intangible assets.

The valuation of intangible assets related@®ST is dependent upon, among other things, tireaed value of eCOST’s projected cash
flows for its business. In the event eCOST is uaablmeet such projections, or such estimated salue otherwise less than the carrying value
of such intangibles, we may be required under ogigecounting rules to record an impairment chamgmnnection with the write-down of
such intangibles.

Risks Related to Our eCOST Online Retailer Operatig Segment’s Industry

Additional sales and use taxes could be imposedast or future sales of our products or other prozta sold on our eCOST website, whi
could adversely affect our revenues and profitatyili

In accordance with current industry practiod aur interpretation of applicable law, we collant remit sales taxes only with respect to
physical shipments of goods into states where we hahysical presence. If any state or otherdigi®mn successfully challenges this practice
and imposes sales taxes on orders on which we tdmfiect and remit sales taxes, we could be exptssubstantial tax liabilities for past
sales and could suffer decreased sales in that@tgarisdiction in the future. In addition, a nioen of states, as well as the U.S. Congress, hav
been considering various legislative initiativeattbould result in the imposition of additionalesabnd use taxes on Internet sales. If any of
these initiatives are enacted, we could be requoellect sales taxes in states where we do anot la physical presence. Future changes i
operation of our business also could result initligosition of additional sales tax obligations. Tmposition of additional sales and use taxes
on past or future sales could adversely affectrewenues and profitability.

Existing or future government regulation could expe us to liabilities and costly changes in our busss operations, and could redu
customer demand for our products.

We are subject to general business regulatioddaws, as well as regulations and laws spetlifigoverning the Internet and e-commerce.
Such existing and future laws and regulations mgyeide the growth of the Internet or other onlimises. These regulations and laws may
cover taxation, user privacy, marketing and prooval practices, database protection, pricing, cant®pyrights, distribution, electronic
contracts, email and other communications, consymraection, product safety, the provision of oalpayment services, intellectual property
rights, unauthorized access (including the Complitaud and Abuse Act), and the characteristicsgaradity of products and services. It is
unclear how existing laws governing issues sugbragerty ownership, sales and other taxes, libetpiass, data mining and collection, and
personal privacy apply to the Internet and e-conemddnfavorable resolution of these issues may &xpa to liabilities and costly changes in
our business operations, and could reduce custdemand. The growth and demand for online commesiseahd may continue to result in
more stringent consumer protection laws that im@aséitional compliance burdens on online
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companies. For example, the laws of many statasreqotice to customers if certain personal infation about them is obtained by an
unauthorized person, such as a computer hackeseTdansumer protection laws could result in sultistacompliance costs and could decre
profitability.

Risks Related to Our Stock

The market price of our common stock may be vokatiYou may not be able to sell your shares at ooabthe price at which you purchased
such shares

The trading price of our common stock may ligiect to wide fluctuations in response to quarbequarter fluctuations in operating results,
announcements of material adverse events, geraditions in our industry or the public marketplacel other events or factors. In addition,
stock markets have experienced extreme price addhty volume volatility in recent years. This vdlgt has had a substantial effect on the
market prices of securities of many technologytesla&aompanies for reasons frequently unrelatetleémperating performance of the specific
companies. These broad market fluctuations mayradieaffect the market price of our common stdoladdition, if our operating results
differ from our announced guidance or the expemtatiof equity research analysts or investors, tlee pf our common stock could decrease
significantly.

Our stock price could decline if a significant nuneb of shares become available for sale.

As of December 31, 2009, we have an aggregate8 million stock options outstanding to empleggedirectors and others with a weighted
average exercise price of $4.75 per share. Thestwicommon stock that may be issued upon exestigese options may be resold into the
public market. Sales of substantial amounts of comstock in the public market as a result of thereise of these options, or the perception
that future sales of these shares could occurdamaluce the market price of our common stock aaklenit more difficult to sell equity
securities in the future.

Our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, ourhsreholder rights plan and Delaware law make it fidult for a third party to acquire us,
despite the possible benefit to our shareholders.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporatiaur bylaws, our shareholder rights plan and Datawaw could make it more difficult for a
third party to acquire us, even if doing so woudddeneficial to our shareholders. For example cettificate of incorporation provides for a
classified board of directors, meaning that onlgragimately one-third of our directors may be sabje re-election at each annual shareholder
meeting. Our certificate of incorporation also p#snour Board of Directors to issue one or moréesenf preferred stock, which may have
rights and preferences superior to those of thenmomstock. The ability to issue preferred stocklddave the effect of delaying or preventing
a third party from acquiring us. We have also addyat shareholder rights plan. These provisionsdcdiscourage takeover attempts and could
materially adversely affect the price of our stdckaddition, because we are incorporated in Delaywae are governed by the provisions of
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation,halich may prohibit large shareholders from conswating a merger with, or acquisition
of us. These provisions may prevent a merger aniaitgpn that would be attractive to shareholderd eould limit the price that investors
would be willing to pay in the future for our commstock.

There are limitations on the liabilities of our dactors and executive officers.

Pursuant to our bylaws and under Delaware ¢awdirectors are not liable to us or our sharééd for monetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty, except for liability for breach afdirector’s duty of loyalty, acts or omissionsagirector not in good faith or which involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation olaor any transaction in which a director has detien improper personal benefit.
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Item 2. Properties

Our general corporate headquarters and thpoate headquarters of our PFS service fee andigsjistributors businesses are located in
Plano, Texas, a Dallas suburb. Our eCOST corpbeddquarters is located in El Segundo, California.

In the U.S., we operate two distribution faigs in Memphis, Tennessee, with aggregate sphappyoximately 600,000 square feet. We
also operate approximately 825,000 square feeistilalition facilities in Southaven, Mississippiot of these complexes are located
approximately five miles from the Memphis Interoatal Airport. We also manage a distribution fagilit Grapevine, Texas with
approximately 200,000 square feet.

We operate a distribution center in Liege,ddeh with approximately 150,000 square feet, whiohtains advanced distribution systems
and equipment. We operate a distribution centdioironto, Canada with approximately 23,000 squaee f&/e also operate a facility in the
Philippines with approximately 7,000 square fegbttavide call center and customer service functid¥is operate customer service centers in
our facilities in Tennessee, Texas, Belgium andrhilippines. Our call center technology permits sutomatic routing of calls to available
customer service representatives in several o€allcenters.

Except for the Grapevine, Texas facility, whige manage on our client’s behalf, all of ourliies are leased and the material lease
agreements contain one or more renewal options.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not party to any legal proceedingsrdtiemn routine claims and lawsuits arising in theirary course of our business. We do not
believe such claims and lawsuits, individually mthe aggregate, will have a material adverse effieour business.

Item 4. Reserved
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stednolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Setias

Our common stock is listed and currently tsade the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol SWW" The following table sets forth
for the period indicated the high and low sale @fmr the common stock as reported by NASDAQ:

Price
High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2C
First Quarte| $6.0z $3.62
Second Quarte $5.5€ $3.5C
Third Quartel $4.85 $2.2:
Fourth Quarte $2.5¢  $0.6¢
Year Ended December 31, 2C
First Quarte $1.9C $0.7C
Second Quarte $1.7¢ $0.9C
Third Quartel $1.9C $1.11
Fourth Quarte $1.8% $1.22

As of March 3, 2010, there were approxima&#h00 shareholders of which approximately 107 wecerd holders of the common stock.

We have never declared or paid cash dividendsur common stock and do not anticipate the paywfecash dividends on our common
stock in the foreseeable future. We are also msttifrom paying dividends under our debt agreemevithout the prior approval of our
lenders. We currently intend to retain all earnit@gfinance the further development of our busin&se payment of any future cash dividends
will be at the discretion of our Board of Direct@nsd will depend upon, among other things, fut@miegs, operations, capital requirements,
the general financial condition of the Company gaderal business conditions and the approval ofemgers. See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result®©glerations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

None

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

We believe the following discussion and analysivigies information that is relevant to an assesdraad understanding of our
consolidated results of operations and financiatdition. The discussion and analysis should be ieambnjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto appg elsewhere in thiForm 10-K . This Management’s Discussion and Arniglydl help
you understand

. The impact of forward looking statemer

. Our financial structure, including our historicaidncial presentatior

. Our results of operations for the last three ye

. Our relationship with our subsidiaries Suppliestiiisitors and eCOS1

. Our liquidity and capital resource

. The impact of seasonality, inflation and recerglyuied accounting standards on our financial statesnanc

. Our critical accounting policies and estima

Forward-Looking Information

We have made forward-looking statements is eport on Form 18: These statements are subject to risks and wictets, and there ci
be no guarantee that these statements will probe worrect. Forward-looking
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statements include assumptions as to how we mdagrpem the future. When we use words like “seékttive,” “believe,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,” Will,” “may,” “could,” “intend,” “plan,” “target” and “estimate” or similar expressions, we are
making forward-looking statements. You should ustierd that the following important factors, in daufi to the Risk Factors set forth above
or elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-K, couldseaour results to differ materially from those eegsed in our forward-looking statements.
These factors include:

. our ability to retain and expand relationships vagtsting clients and attract and implement newntk;
. our reliance on the fees generated by the trarmsaetiume or product sales of our clier
. our reliance on our clier’ projections or transaction volume or product se

. our dependence upon our agreements with InterretiBusiness Machines Corporatic“IBM”) and InfoPrint Solutions Compat
(“1P£"), a joint venture company owned by Ricoh and IE

. our dependence upon our agreements with our migort<s;

. our client mix, their business volumes and the @eality of their busines:

. our ability to finalize pending contrac!

. the impact of strategic alliances and acquisitit

. trends in -commerce, outsourcing, government regulation batbign and domestic and the market for our sery
. whether we can continue and manage gro

. increased competitiol

. our ability to generate more revenue and achiestamable profitability

. effects of changes in profit margir

. the customer and supplier concentration of ourrtass;

. the reliance on thirparty subcontracted service

. the unknown effects of possible system failuresrapid changes in technolog

. foreign currency risks and other risks of operatmépreign countries

. potential litigation;

. our dependency on key persont

. the impact of new accounting standards, and changesdsting accounting rules or the interpretasiof those rules
. our ability to raise additional capital or obtauhd&ional financing;

. our ability and the ability of our subsidiariesitorrow under current financing arrangements andtaii compliance with del
covenants

. relationship with and our guarantees of certaithefliabilities and indebtedness of our subsid&
. taxation on the sale of our produc

. eCOST'’s ability to maintain existing and buildamneelationships with manufacturers and vendorstaedsuccess of its advertising and
marketing efforts

. eCOS™s ability to increase its sales revenue and salegimand improve operating efficiencies; ¢
. eCOS”s ability to generate projected cash flows suffiti® cover the values of its intangible ass

We have based these statements on our caxpattations about future events. Although we beltbe expectations reflected in our
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we daguerantee these expectations will actually beéeaeld. In addition, some forward-looking
statements are based upon assumptions as to éemnés that may not prove to be accurate. Thergfotaal outcomes and results may differ
materially from what is expected or forecasteduohsforward-looking statements. We undertake nigahibn to update publicly any forward-
looking statement for any reason, even if new imfation becomes available or other events occurarfuture. There may be additional risks
we do not currently view as material or that arepresently known. In evaluating these statemepots,should consider various factors,
including the risks set forth in the section egtitI'Risk Factors.”

Overview

We are an international business process ot provider of end-to-end eCommerce solutidis. provide these solutions to major
brand name companies seeking to optimize theirlgugtiain and to enhance their traditional and anbisiness channels and initiatives.
Through our eCOST.com® business unit, we are alsading multi-category online discount retailemefv, “close-out” and recertified brand-
name merchandise. V'
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derive our revenues from three business segmem€dmmerce and business process outsourcing, enudistribution and 3) online
discount retailing.

First, in our eCommerce and business procgis®orcing business segment, we derive our reveinomesa broad range of services,
including professional consulting, technology cotleation, order management, managed web hostingvaehdlevelopment, the deployment of
an eCommerce technology platform, customer relatignmanagement, financial services includingrlland collection services and working
capital solutions, kitting and assembly servicefgrimation management and international fulfillmand distribution services. We offer our
services as an integrated solution, which enahlesl@énts to outsource their complete infrastruetueeds to a single source and to focus on
their core competencies. Our distribution serveesconducted at warehouses we lease or manageciume real-time inventory management
and customized picking, packing and shipping of@diegnts’ customer orders. We currently provideasftructure and distribution solutions to
clients that operate in a range of vertical marketduding technology manufacturing, computer pratd, cosmetics, fragile goods,
contemporary home furnishings, apparel, aviatielecommunications and consumer electronics, amtrey

In this eCommerce and business process ogisgusegment, we do not own the underlying inventarthe resulting accounts receivable,
but provide management services for these cliemeohassets. We typically charge our service feeme® on a cost-plus basis, a percent of
shipped revenue basis or a per-transaction bagik,a&s a per-minute basis for web-enabled custoom@act center services and a per-item
basis for fulfillment services. Additional fees dni#led for other services. We price our servicasda on a variety of factors, including the
depth and complexity of the services provided,aim®unt of capital expenditures or systems custdinizaequired, the length of contract and
other factors.

Many of our service fee contracts involvedhirarty vendors who provide additional serviceshsae package delivery. The costs we are
charged by these third-party vendors for theseiees\are often passed on to our clients. Our g#lifor reimbursements of these costs and
other ‘out-of-pocket’ expenses include travel, sitig and handling costs and telecommunication @sand are included in pass-through
revenue.

Our second business segment is a product weveiodel. In this segment, we are a master distrilnf product for IPS and certain other
clients. In this capacity, we purchase, and thus,émventory and recognize the corresponding prockwenue. As a result, upon the sale of
inventory, we own the accounts receivable. Fredgists billed to customers are reflected as comgsredrproduct revenue. This business
segment requires significant working capital reguients, for which we have senior credit faciliteprovide for approximately $91 million of
available financing.

Our third business segment is a web-commenmgugt revenue model focused on the sale of predoca broad range of consumer and
business customers. In this segment we operatenattiacategory online discount retailer of newlg®e-out” and recertified brand-name
merchandise. Our product line currently offers agpnately 300,000 products in several primary martlise categories, primarily including
computers, networking, electronics and entertairtmiéw's, monitors and projectors, cameras and caders, memory and storage, “For the
Home” and sports and leisure.

Growth is a key element to achieving our fatgoals, including achieving and maintaining susthie profitability. Growth in our
eCommerce and business process outsourcing segmiivien by two main elements: new client relasioips and organic growth from
existing clients. We focus our sales efforts ogéarcontracts with brand-name companies within pwimary target markets, online brands and
retailers and technology manufacturers, which, &tyire, require a longer duration to close but hbsge the potential to be higher quality and
longer duration engagements.

Growth within our product revenue businegsrisarily driven by our ability to attract new mastistributor arrangements with IPS or o
manufacturers and the sales and marketing effétteeananufacturers and third party sales partners.

Growth within our web-commerce product revemadel is primarily driven by eCOST'’s ability tocirease sales by generating organic
growth, new customers and expanding its produet lin
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We continue to monitor and control our costfotus on profitability. While we are targetingraiew service fee contracts to yield increa
gross profit, we also expect to incur incremenmaestments to implement new contracts, investmaritdrastructure and sales and marketing
to support our targeted growth and increased publicpany professional fees.

Our expenses comprise primarily four categorlg cost of product revenue, 2) cost of servezerevenue, 3) cost of pass-through revenue
and 4) operating expenses.

Cost of product revenue- consists of the purchase price of product soltifeeight costs, which are reduced by certain reirsable
expenses. These reimbursable expenses includahpasgh customer marketing programs, direct costsried in passing on any price
decreases offered by vendors to cover price pioteend certain special bids, the cost of prodpotsided to replace defective product
returned by customers and certain other expensasfia&ed under the master distributor agreemergaddr marketing programs, such asogo-
advertising, also reduce cost of product revenue.

Cost of service fee revenue consists primarily of compensation and relateplesses for our webnabled customer contact center serv
international fulfillment and distribution servicaad professional consulting services, and otlxedfiand variable expenses directly related to
providing services under the terms of fee basetracts, including certain occupancy and informatechnology costs and depreciation and
amortization expenses.

Cost of pass-through revenue the related reimbursable costs for pass-throxglemrditures are reflected as cost of pass-throengénue.

Operating expenses- consist primarily of selling, general and admirsisve (“SG&A”) expenses such as compensationratated
expenses for sales and marketing staff, advertisiniine marketing and catalog production, disttitnu costs (excluding freight) applicable to
the Supplies Distributors and eCOST businessesuéixe, management and administrative personneb#imel overhead costs, including
certain occupancy and information technology cast$ depreciation and amortization expenses.

Monitoring and controlling our available casdances continues to be a primary focus. Our aagHiquidity positions are important
components of our financing of both current operatiand our targeted growth. In recent years we hdded to our available cash and
liquidity positions through various transactiong;luding working capital financing agreements far primary operating subsidiaries and
through sales of our common stock through privédegment transactions.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2008

The following table discloses certain finahaidiormation for the periods presented, expressadrms of dollars, dollar change, percentage
change and as a percentage of total revenue (liomsi.

% of Total
Change Revenue
2009 2008 $ % 2009 2008
Revenues
Product revenue, n $ 267.¢ $ 330. $ (62.9 (19.0% 75.% 73.2%
Service fee revent 58.€ 85.Z (26.¢) (31.9% 16.6% 18.9%
Pas-through revenu 26.2 35.¢ (9.6) (26.8% 7.5% 7.5%
Total net revenue 352.f 451.¢ (99.9) (22.0% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of Revenue
Cost of product revent 245.2 305.1 (59.9) (19.€)% 91.7%(1) 92.2%
Cost of service fee reven 41.¢ 58.C (16.7) (27.9% 71.5%(2) 67.%
Pas-through cost of revent 26.2 35.¢ (9.6) (26.8% 100.(%(3) 100.(%
Total cost of revenue 313.¢ 399.( (85.6) (21.9% 88.% 88.2%
Product revenue gross prc 22.4 25.¢ (3.0 (12.2% 8.2%(1) 7.7%
Service fee gross prof 16.7 27.2 (20.7) (38.9% 28.5%(2) 32.1%
Pas-through gross profi — — —
Total gross profi 39.1 52.¢ (23.7) (26.0% 11.1% 11.7%
Operating Expense 42.1 66.1(4) (24.0) (36.5)% 11.€% 14.€%
Loss from operation (3.2 (13.2 10.2 (77.)% (0.9% (2.9%
Interest expense, n 1.2 1.€ (0.4 (22.€)% 0.4% 0.2%
Loss before income taxi (4.9 14.¢ 10.€ (71.9% (1.2% (3.9%
Income tax expense, r 0.3 0.8 (0.5 (59.1)% 0.1% 0.2%
Net loss $ (4.€ $ (15.7 $ 111 (70.9% (1.9% (3.5%

(1) Represents the percent of Product revenue
(2) Represents the percent of Service fee reve
(3) Represents the percent of F-through revenue
(4) Includes a $16.3 million charge for goodwill antaingible asset impairmer
Product Revenue, netCOST product revenue was $84.6 million in 20085.8% decrease as compared to $99.8 million imptlee year.

The decrease was primarily due to an overall degtirsales in both its business to business (“B2Bgnnel and business to consumer (“BRC”
channel during the 2009 period primarily resultirgm the impact of the global economic environment.

Supplies Distributors product revenue of $088illion decreased $47.7 million, or 20.7% in 2GG9compared to the prior year. This
decrease was primarily due to decreased sales ealesulting from the impact of overall global econio pressures, inventory rationalization
by customers, reduced IBM and IPS printer instalfet in certain categories as well as the negéatiymct of foreign exchange rates compared
to the same period in the prior year.

We currently expect our total 2010 annual ptdevenue to remain relatively stable or increaseerately from 2009 levels as global
economic conditions improve.
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Service Fee Revenud@he decrease in service fee revenue for thegmeded December 31, 2009 was primarily due to tmeranewal of a
certain U.S. government agency client relationshigich ended in early 2009, partially offset byrieased service fees generated from the
impact of new service contract relationships. Thange in service fee revenue, excluding pass-tiroexenue, is shown below ($ millions):

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 85.«
New service contract relationships, including dertacremental projects under new contre 8.2
Change in existing client service fe (33.9
Terminated clients not included in 2009 reve (1.9

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 58.€

The $28.0 million reduction of service feearue that resulted from the non-renewal of the goSernment agency client is included in the
change in existing client service fees line iterowabas there was activity with this client in eaclthe years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008. The service fee revenue for the year endegieer 31, 2009 includes approximately $8 millibmewenue with clients that terminated
during 2009, including the U.S. government ageraytact. However, based on historical activity andrent projection of existing clients,
including new clients signed in 2008 and 2009,ai¢he impact from the non-renewal of certain diggnve currently anticipate that 2010
service fee revenue will increase from 2009 serfeéeerevenue levels.

Cost of Product Revenu€he gross margin for eCOST was $8.2 million or 9a®product revenue in 2009 and $8.8 million 0r98.8f
product revenue during 2008. Gross margin for eC@8feased from the prior year primarily due to ¢hietomer mix, which included a larger
percentage of sales to the higher margin busiresstisumer channel compared to the same periogidast We are targeting an increasing
percentage of eCOST revenues to be generated fr@imusiness-to-consumer channel, yet we contine&ite to improve our product sales
and gross margin in our business-to-business channe

Supplies Distributors cost of product revedeereased by $45.2 million, or 21.1%, to $168.9ionlin 2009, primarily as a result of
decreased product sales. The resulting gross pnafigin was $14.1 million or 7.7% of product reveriar the year ended December 31, 2009
and $16.6 million or 7.2% of product revenue fo20The gross profit margin for 2009 and 2008 idelgertain incremental inventory cost
adjustments. The 2009 margin percentage reflecisca@ase due to incremental gross margin earnguaruct sales resulting from certain
product price increases, which is partially offsgthe impact from a customer bankruptcy duringfitst quarter of 2009.

Cost of Service Fee Revenu@ross profit as a percentage of service feesragtto 28.5% in 2009 from 32.1% in 2008. The 26G8gins
include the benefit of a full year of higher margiaremental project work associated with the [g&ernment contract relationship that was
not renewed and was completed in the second quarg&09.

We target to earn an overall gross profit ®f30% on existing and new service fee contractswleuhave and may continue to accept lower
gross margin percentages on certain contracts degeon contract scope and other factors.

Operating ExpensesOperating expenses decreased by $24.0 milliorpaeoad to 2008. Operating expenses were $42.1 mikin11.9% c
total net revenues in the 2009 period and $66.llamjlor 14.6% of total net revenues in the prieay. Operating expenses in 2008 include a
goodwill and intangible asset impairment charg&18.3 million resulting from our annual analysiguged under accounting standards.
Excluding the impact of the $16.3 million impairmeharge for goodwill and intangible assets, opegatxpenses were 11.0% of total net
revenues in the 2008 period. The remaining incregasperating expenses as a percentage of netueges due to the reduction in total net
revenues, which decreased at a higher rate tharedoetion in operating expenses. During 2009, mglémented certain cost reductions,
primarily personnel related adjustments, as a te$uhe lower service fee revenue and productmage
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Income TaxedlNe recorded a tax provision associated primarihwiate income taxes and our subsidiary SupplissiButors’ Canadian
and European operations. During 2009, we recograzea benefit relating to our adoption of a neansfer pricing policy between certain
international subsidiaries. This policy adoptiosukted from the completion of a transfer pricingdst and its approval by appropriate tax
regulators. A valuation allowance has been providethe majority of our net deferred tax assetefd8ecember 31, 2009 and December 31,
2008, which are primarily related to our net opetoss carryforwards and certain foreign defeteedassets. We expect that we will conti
to record an income tax provision associated watesncome taxes and Supplies Distributors’ Caaradnd European results of operations.

Supplies Distributors and its Subsidiaries

Supplies Distributors and its subsidiariesasctaster distributors of various IPS and othedyets and, pursuant to a transaction
management services agreement between us and &ipdtributors, we provide transaction managerardtfulfillment services to Supplies
Distributors and its subsidiaries. In addition to equity investment in Supplies Distributors, veeé also provided Supplies Distributors wi
subordinated loan that, as of December 31, 20@®ahautstanding balance of $5.0 million.

Supplies Distributors has paid us dividend$2fL million and $3.0 million in 2009 and 2008spectively. Supplies Distributors has
received lender approval to pay dividends of apipnaxely $3.0 million in 2010, and to reduce its sidinated debt to us by $0.8 million, but
pursuant to the terms of its amended credit agratanis restricted from paying further cash dividemvithout the prior approval of its lenders.
In addition, no distribution may be made if, afg@ring effect thereto, Supplies Distributors orstsbsidiaries be in noncompliance with its
financial covenants under its current facilities.

eCOST and its Subsidiaries

eCOST is a multi-category online discountitetaf new, “close-out” and recertified brand-namerchandise, selling products primarily to
customers in the United States. As of DecembeB3Q29, we have advanced $15.8 million to eCOST ppstt its operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities $&< million for the year ended December 31, 2089 @imarily resulted from a decrease in
inventories of $8.8 million, a decrease in accouetgivable of $5.0 million and cash income befeozking capital changes of $3.8 million
partially offset by a decrease in accounts payatdésrred revenue, accrued expenses and othditiéebof $9.5 million. These changes
primarily resulted from decreased working capitgjuirements in our Supplies Distributors segmedated to decreased product revenues
compared to 2008.

Net cash provided by operating activities $8% million for the year ended December 31, 2088 @ximarily resulted from cash income
before working capital changes of $9.1 million,iacrease in accounts payable, deferred revenugjestexpenses and other liabilities of $5.3
million, a decrease in accounts receivable of $3llon and a decrease in restricted cash of $0lBom, partially offset by an increase in
prepaid expenses, other receivables and othesass®s.0 million and an increase in inventorie$82 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for ykears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 totalech$iflign and $5.6 million, respectively,
primarily resulting from capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures have historically corgigtrimarily of additions to upgrade our managenigormation systems and general
expansion of our facilities, both domestic and iigneand certain technology and development ces&ted to new client implementations. We
expect to incur capital expenditures to support nemtracts and anticipated future growth opportesitBased on our current client business
activity and our targeted growth plans, we antitdaur total investment in upgrades and additiorfatilities and information technology
services and capitalized implementation costsHerupcoming twelve months will be approximatelyn$idlion to $7 million, although
additional capital expenditures may be necessasypport the infrastructure requirements of newernts. To maintain our current operating
cash position, a portion of these expenditures beafinanced through debt, operating or capitaldsaadditional equity or implementation fees
charged to our clients. We may elect to modify efed a portion of such anticipated investmenth@dvent that we do not achieve the revenue
necessary to support such investments.
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Net cash used in financing activities was apipnately $5.4 million and $2.1 million for the yseended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, primarily representing payments oot @ad capital leases.

Our liquidity has been negatively impactecassult of the merger with eCOST. Since the mergEebruary 2006, eCOST has
experienced a net use of cash primarily due toaijmey losses. As a result, we have had to sup@®ST's cash needs with the goal of
reducing operating losses. The amount of furtheh ceeeded to support eCOST operations will depeod the financing available as well as
eCOST'’s ability to improve its financial result&€@ST'’s results, excluding the impact of any norhdagpairment charges, have improved in
recent years, and we expect continued improveneatrasult of efforts to increase sales, improwelpct mix and further improve operational
efficiencies.

Our liquidity has also been negatively impddty a decline in service fee revenue due to theentigeneral economic decline as well as the
nonrenewal of a U.S. government agency contractandin other contracts. To help minimize the intpd lower service fee revenue, we
have implemented certain measures that reduceablargosts and expenses and redeployed existirgginicture to other client activities. No
assurance can be given that a further declinerincgefee revenue will not have a material adveféect upon our business, financial condition
or results of operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, aukiwg capital decreased to $19.3 million from $2tillion at December 31, 2008,
partially due to the paydown of debt facilitiesradowith capital expenditures that were not finanttedugh financing arrangements or client
implementation fees. Working capital as of Decen8ier2009 included the benefit from certain cligmaying implementation fees in 2009
applicable to technology and development costswiiibbe incurred by us during 2010. To obtain dddhial financing in the future, in addition
to our current cash position, we plan to evaluatgous financing alternatives including the sale@ity, utilizing capital or operating leases,
borrowing under our credit facilities, expanding aurrent credit facilities, entering into new delgreements or transferring to third-parties a
portion of our subordinated loan balance due frarqppies Distributors. In conjunction with certaihtbese alternatives, we may be required to
provide certain letters of credit to secure thesargements. No assurances can be given we wsllibeessful in obtaining any additional
financing or the terms thereof. We currently bediewur cash position, financing available underayadit facilities and funds generated from
operations (including cost reductions related toribnrenewal of our U.S. government contract) sétisfy our presently known operating cash
needs, our working capital and capital expenditageiirements, our current debt and lease obligatiand additional loans to our subsidiaries
Supplies Distributors and eCOST, if necessaryafdeast the next twelve months.

During the past two years, the credit markeis the financial services industry have been éapeing a period of unprecedented turmoil
and upheaval characterized by the bankruptcy,riikeollapse or sale of various financial instag8 and an unprecedented level of intervel
from the United States and foreign governments.|&\thie ultimate outcome of these events cannotrédiqgied, they may have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity, financial conditjoesults of operations and our ability to renew aredit facilities.

In support of certain debt instruments andésaas of December 31, 2009, we had $2.1 milli@ash restricted for repayment to lender:
addition, as described above, we have provideadtesllized guarantees to secure the repaymenttafrcef our subsidiaries’ credit facilities.
Many of these facilities include both financial ameh-financial covenants, and also include cro$auleprovisions applicable to other credit
facilities and agreements. These covenants inchidanum levels of net worth for the individual bower subsidiaries and the parent
guarantor and restrictions on the ability of therbaver subsidiaries to advance funds to other begrcsubsidiaries. As a result, it is possible
one or more of these borrower subsidiaries tadaiheet their respective covenants even if andthelower subsidiary otherwise has available
excess funds which, if not restricted, could bedusecure the default. To the extent we fail to pnwith our debt covenants, including the
monthly financial covenant requirements and outiregl level of shareholders’ equity, and the lesdeacelerate the repayment of the credit
facility obligations, we would be required to replamounts outstanding thereunder. In particutathe event eCOST is unable to increas
revenue and/or gross profit from its present levalsf PFS service fee revenue declines from etgaelevels and it is unable to reduce costs to
correspond to such reduced revenue levels or ipBgDistributors revenue or gross profit declifresn expected levels, such events may
result in a breach of one or more of the financialenants required under their working capitaldioécredit. In such event, absent a waiver,
the working capital lender would be entitled toelecate all amounts outstanding thereunder anctimeeall other rights and remedies,
including sale of collateral and payment underganent guaranty. A requirement to

42




Table of Contents

accelerate the repayment of the credit facilityigdaiions would have a material adverse impact orfinencial condition and results of
operations. We can provide no assurance we wik lthe financial ability to repay all of such obligas. As of December 31, 2009, we wer
compliance with all debt covenants. Further, any-renewal of any of our credit facilities would leaa material adverse impact on our
business and financial condition. We do not haweather material financial commitments, althougtufe client contracts may require capital
expenditures and lease commitments to supporttivices provided to such clients.

In the future, we may attempt to acquire oth#sinesses or seek an equity or strategic parggnerate capital or expand our services or
capabilities in connection with our efforts to growr business. Acquisitions involve certain riskel ancertainties and may require additional
financing. Therefore, we can give no assurance regpect to whether we will be successful in idgimtg businesses to acquire or an equity or
strategic partner, whether we or they will be dblebtain financing to complete a transaction, bether we or they will be successful in
operating the acquired business.

To finance their distribution of IPS producssipplies Distributors and its subsidiaries hawa@tsterm credit facilities with IBM Credit LLC
(“IBM Credit”) and IBM Belgium Financial ServicesA. (“IBM Belgium”). We have provided a collateraéid guaranty to secure the
repayment of these credit facilities. These asaset credit facilities provided financing for upd®0.5 million and up to 16 million Euros
(approximately $23.0 million at December 31, 20@&h IBM Credit and IBM Belgium, respectively. Theagreements expire in April 2011.

Supplies Distributors also has a loan andrigcagreement with Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovi&d provide financing for up to
$25 million of eligible accounts receivables in theited States and Canada. The Wachovia facilipires on the earlier of March 2011 or the
date on which the parties to the IPS master digivibagreement no longer operate under the terragalf agreement and/or IPS no longer
supplies products pursuant to such agreement.

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary &dactoring agreement with Fortis Commercial FoeaN.V. (“Fortis”) to provide factoring
for up to 7.5 million Euros (approximately $10.8lioh at December 31, 2009) of eligible accountseieables through March 2011.

These credit facilities contain cross defaoltvisions, various restrictions upon the abilifySoipplies Distributors and its subsidiaries to,
among other things, merge, consolidate, sell assets indebtedness, make loans, investments apeh@nts to related parties (including
entities directly or indirectly owned by PFSwebg.)nprovide guarantees, make investments and |péedge assets, make changes to capital
stock ownership structure and pay dividends, atagdiinancial covenants, such as cash flow froerafions, annualized revenue to working
capital, net profit after tax to revenue, minimugt worth and total liabilities to tangible net waras defined, and are secured by all of the
assets of Supplies Distributors, as well as a toldized guaranty of PFSweb. Additionally, we srquired to maintain a subordinated loan to
Supplies Distributors of no less than $4.3 millianf maintain restricted cash of more than $5.0onil are restricted with regard to
transactions with related parties, indebtednesschadges to capital stock ownership structure améhamum shareholders’ equity of at least
$18.0 million. Furthermore, we are obligated toaypny over-advance made to Supplies Distributoits subsidiaries under these facilities if
they are unable to do so. We have also providesheagtee of the obligations of Supplies Distribsitand its subsidiaries to IBM and IPS,
excluding the trade payables that are financediby ¢redit.

Our PFS subsidiary has entered into a LoanSsdrity Agreement (“Agreement”) with Comerica BgfComerica”), which provides for
up to $10.0 million of eligible accounts receivabfeancing through March 2011. We entered this &gnent to supplement our existing cash
position, and provide funding for our current antufe operations, including our targeted growthe Rlgreement contains cross default
provisions, various restrictions upon our abilily among other things, merge, consolidate, seditasgicur indebtedness, make loans and
payments to subsidiaries, affiliates and relatetigg(including entities directly or indirectly e&d by PFSweb, Inc.), make capital
expenditures, make investments and loans, pledggsasnake changes to capital stock ownershiptatejas well as financial covenants of a
minimum tangible net worth of $20.0 million, as idefd, a minimum earnings before interest and tgxes, depreciation, amortization and non-
cash compensation accruals, if any, as definedaanahimum liquidity ratio, as defined. The Agrearhalso limits PFS’ ability to increase the
subordinated loan to Supplies Distributors to nthez $5.5 million and permits PFS to advance inemal amounts subject to certain cash
inflows to PFS, as defined, to certain of its sdiasies and/or affiliates, including eCOST. The égment is secured by all of the assets of |
as well as a guarantee of PFSweb.
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eCOST currently has an asset-based line ditdeeility of up to $7.5 million with Wachovia, ich is collateralized by substantially all of
eCOST’s assets and expires in May 2011. Borrowimgier the facility are limited to a percentageldilkle accounts receivable and letter of
credit availability is limited to a percentage ataunts receivable and inventory. As of DecembeB09, eCOST had $1.0 million of letters
of credit outstanding and $1.2 million of availabhkedit under this facility. The credit facilitysgicts eCOST’s ability to, among other things,
merge, consolidate, sell assets, incur indebtednesee loans, investments and payments to subigigiaffiliates and related parties, make
investments and loans, pledge assets, make chamgapital stock ownership structure, as well agr@mum tangible net worth of $0, as
defined. PFSweb has guaranteed all current andefatoligations of eCOST under this line of credit.

We financed certain capital expenditures tgloa Loan Agreement with the Mississippi Busindssiice Corporation (the “MBFC”)
pursuant to which the MBFC issued MBFC Taxable afaleé Rate Demand Limited Obligation Revenue BoBasies 2004 (Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc. Project) (the “BondsThe MBFC loaned us the proceeds of the Bonds ptirpose of financing the acquisition
and installation of equipment, machinery and relassets to support incremental business from th&een, Mississippi distribution facility.
The primary source of repayment of the Bonds &tt@il of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) issued Bypmerica pursuant to a Reimbursement
Agreement between us and Comerica under which evelaligated to pay to Comerica all amounts drawsenthe Letter of Credit. The Letter
of Credit has a maturity date of April 2011 at whtame, if not renewed or replaced, will resultairaw on the undrawn face amount thereof.
The amount outstanding on the Loan Agreement &eoémber 31, 2009 was $2.4 million. Our obligationder the Reimbursement
Agreement are secured by substantially all of #&=ts of our PFS subsidiary, including restricteshoof $0.7 million and a parent company
guarantee.

eCOST has historically incurred significanergting losses and used cash to fund its operatikma result, we have been required to invest
cash to fund eCOST’s operations, which we may eailtle to continue to do without approval from lemders. The amount of further cash
needed to support eCOST operations depends updimémeing available under its credit line as vadleCOST’s ability to improve its
financial results. Through March 31, 2010, we hasteanced $15.8 million to eCOST to fund eCOST $idlmv requirements and have lender
approval to advance incremental amounts subjemriain cash inflows to PFS, as defined, to cexéiour subsidiaries and/or affiliates,
including eCOST. In the event we need to advaniédu cash to eCOST, we may be required to seetoaalfrom our lenders to provide st
funds. We can provide no assurance that we wiivecsuch approval from our lenders or any termsooditions required by our lenders in
order to obtain such approval. In addition, PFSwab provided a guaranty of eCOST’s bank line odlitiend certain eCOST vendor trade
payables.

We receive municipal tax abatements in celtaiations. During 2004 we received notice fromniipality that we did not satisfy certain
criteria necessary to maintain the abatements elceber 2006 we received notice that the munieip#dority planned to make an adjustment
to our tax abatement. We have disputed the adjustaseof December 31, 2009, but if the disputeisresolved favorably, additional property
taxes of approximately $1.7 million could be assdsagainst us.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There are no off-balance sheet arrangemeatittve or are reasonably likely to have a cumeifiiture effect on our financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expgnssults of operations, liquidity, capital expimes or capital resources that is material to
investors.

Inventory Management

We manage our inventories held for sale byntagiing sufficient quantities of product to achéehigh order fill rates while at the same time
maximizing inventory turnover rates. Inventory ledas will fluctuate as we add new product linesrdauce the risk of loss due to supplier
price reductions, our master distributor agreementyell as certain vendor agreements in our eC@fSiness, provide for price protection
under which we receive credits if the supplier losvgrices on previously purchased inventory.
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Seasonality

The seasonality of our service fee businedgpendent upon the seasonality of our cliemisiness and sales of their products. Accordit
our management must rely upon the projections otbents in assessing quarterly variability. Wéidee that with our current client mix and
their current business volumes, our run rate seride business activity will be at its lowest ie tjuarter ended March 31. We anticipate our
Supplies Distributors’ product revenue will be héghduring the quarter ended December 31. Our ediDSifiess is moderately seasonal,
reflecting the general pattern of peak sales ferrétail industry during the holiday shopping seadwypically, a larger portion of our eCOST
revenues occur during the fourth fiscal quarter.Wkeve our historical revenue pattern makesfitcdilt to predict the effect of seasonality on
our future revenues and results of operations.

We believe that results of operations for artprly period may not be indicative of the restdisany other quarter or for the full year.

Inflation

Management believes inflation has not had &eriz effect on our operations.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accountiren8ards Update (ASU) 2009-14ultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements — a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Fo@®end certain guidance RASB Accounting Standards Codificatibh(ASC) 605,
Revenue Recogniti¢, 25, “Multiple-Element Arrangements.” The amendgilance in ASC 605-25 (1) modifies the separatigteria by
eliminating the criterion that requires objectivelaeliable evidence of fair value for the undeleatitem(s), and (2) eliminates the use of the
residual method of allocation and instead requiiesarrangement consideration be allocated, ahtieption of the arrangement, to all
deliverables based on their relative selling price.

The FASB also issued ASU 2009-Cértain Revenue Arrangements That Include Soft&Esments — a consensus of the FASB Emerging
Issues Task Forc, to amend the scope of arrangements under ASC3fisyare, 605, “Revenue Recognition” to exclude tangibledurcts
containing software components and non-softwarepoorants that function together to deliver a produessential functionality.

The amended guidance in ASC 605-25 and ASG6885s effective prospectively for revenue arrangats entered into or materially
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after J&%e 2010, with early application and retrospectipelication permitted. We are in the proc
of evaluating the impact the amendments to ASCBRand ASC 985-605 will have on our consolidatedrficial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have lpeepared in conformity with accounting principtemnerally accepted in the U.S. These
accounting principles require us to make estimatesassumptions that affect the reported amourdasssts and liabilities at the date of our
financial statements and the reported amountsvefinges and expenses during the reporting periodeWie do not believe the reported
amounts would be materially different, applicatafithese policies involves the exercise of judgnserd the use of assumptions as to future
uncertainties and, as a result, actual resultsdoditfier from these estimates. If there is a siigaifit unfavorable change to current conditions, it
would likely result in a material adverse impacbto business, operating results and financial itimmd We evaluate our estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis. We base our ¢stimaa experience and on various other assumgtansve believe to be reasonable under
the circumstances. All of our significant accougtpolicies are disclosed in the notes to our cadatgd financial statements.

We have defined a critical accounting estinzet@ne that is both important to the portrayalwffinancial condition and results of
operations and requires us to make difficult, sctbje or complex judgments or estimates
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about matters that are uncertain. During the paisetfiscal years, we have not made any materéaigés in accounting methodology used to
establish the critical accounting estimates disedi$®low. The following represent certain critiaatounting policies that require us to exer
our business judgment or make significant estimdieaddition, there are other items within our soliidated financial statements that require
estimation but are not deemed critical as defirzxa.

Product Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized when the title and ridkss are passed to the customer, there is péveuagdence of an arrangement for the sale,
delivery has occurred and/or services have beeaiered, the sales price is fixed or determinablecfidctability is reasonably assured. Under
these guidelines, we recognize a majority of olessancluding revenue from product sales and googisound shipping and handling charges,
upon receipt of the product by the customer. Hapralduct sales shipped directly from suppliersustomers, we are the primary obligor in the
transaction, and we take title to the products sploh shipment, bear credit risk, and bear invgntisk for returned products that are not
successfully returned to suppliers; therefore, @mgnize these revenues at gross sales amounts.

Sales are reported net of estimated returdaowances, credit card fraud and chargebackef alhich are estimated based upon histol
information such as return and redemption rates fiieud and chargeback experience. Managementatsiders any other current
information and trends in making estimates. If attales returns, allowances, discounts and cradit fraud and chargebacks are greater than
estimated by management, additional expense maycheed.

Cost of Service Fee Revenue

Our service fee revenue primarily relatesuodistribution services and order management/custaare services. Distribution services
relate primarily to inventory management, prodectiving, warehousing and fulfillment (i.e., picfirpacking and shipping). Order
management/customer care services relate printartBking customer orders for our clients’ produgtsvarious channels such as telephone
call-center, electronic or facsimile. These servialso entail addressing customer questions reflaterters, as well as cross-selling/up-selling
activities.

Our cost of service fee revenue representsdbeto provide the services described above,griiyncompensation and related expenses and
other fixed and variable expenses directly reléeproviding the services. These include certaitupancy and information technology costs
and depreciation and amortization expenses. Cesfdhese costs are allocated from general andradirdtive expenses. For these allocations,
we estimate the amount of direct expenses basadcbantspecific number of transactions processed. We\rleir allocation methodology
reasonable, however a change in assumptions wesldt in a different gross profit in our statemehbperations, yet no change to the resu
net income or loss.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The determination of the collectability of ammés due from our customers requires us to usmatds and make judgments regarding future
events and trends, including monitoring our cust@mgayment history and current credit worthinesdeétermine that collectability is
reasonably assured, as well as consideration aibrll business climate in which our clients andtomers operate. Inherently, these
uncertainties require us to make frequent judgmantsestimates regarding our clients and custonabikty to pay amounts due us to
determine the appropriate amount of valuation adloges required for doubtful accounts. Provisiomsl@ubtful accounts are recorded when it
becomes evident that the client or customer willmake the required payments at either contraclualdates or in the future.

With our master distributor and online discoretail businesses, we also maintain an allowdmcancollectible vendor receivables, which
arise from inventory returns to vendors, vendoatetand advertising programs, price protectionsather promotions. We determine the
sufficiency of the vendor receivable allowance blaggon various factors, including payment histémnounts received from vendors may v
from amounts recorded because of potential non-Gange with certain elements of vendor programsulf estimated allowances for
uncollectible accounts or vendor receivables sulsetty prove insufficient, additional allowance rbayrequired.
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Allowances for doubtful accounts totaled $hillion at both December 31, 2009 and 2008. Weebeliour allowances for doubtful accot
are adequate to cover anticipated losses undegrduwronditions; however, uncertainties regardirgnges in the financial condition of our
clients and customers, either adverse or positieeld impact the amount and timing of any additlgravisions for doubtful accounts that n
be required.

Inventory Reserves

Inventories (merchandise, held for resalepfllhich are finished goods) are stated at theetoof weighted average cost or market. Sup
Distributors and its subsidiaries assume respditgibor slow-moving inventory under certain mastkstributor agreements, subject to certain
termination rights, but have the right to returndarct rendered obsolete by engineering changetefased. eCOST assumes responsibility for
slow-moving inventory but has limited rights to retumoguct based on specific inventory agreements. &View inventories for impairment
a periodic basis, but at a minimum, annually. Recability of the inventory on hand is measured bmparisons of the carrying value to the
fair value of the inventory. This requires us toael provisions and maintain reserves for excesdbsolete inventory. If write-downs of
inventories are necessary, the cost basis of tlvahtory is adjusted. To determine these resenmiata, we regularly review inventory
guantities on hand and compare them to estimatkgw product demand and market conditions. Tlestienates and forecasts inherently
include uncertainties and require us to make juddgsegarding potential outcomes. At December 8092and 2008, our allowance for slow
moving inventory was $2.0 million and $2.1 millicespectively. We believe our reserves are adedqaoatever anticipated losses under cur
conditions. Significant or unanticipated changesupestimates and forecasts, either adverse @iyggxould impact the amount and timing
any additional provisions for excess or obsoleteimory that may be required.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used for determiningr income taxes, under which current and defemdiabilities and assets are recorded in
accordance with enacted tax laws and rates. Uhientethod, the amounts of deferred tax liabilidesl assets at the end of each period are
determined using the tax rate expected to be egcefffhen taxes are actually paid or recovered. &teln allowances are established to reduce
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat some portion or all of the deferred tax asgeil not be realized. In determining the need
for valuation allowances, we have considered andeniadgments and estimates regarding estimateteftaMable income. These estimates
judgments include some degree of uncertainty aad@bs in these estimates and assumptions couloleeguto adjust the valuatic
allowances for our deferred tax assets. The ulémaalization of our deferred tax assets dependsegeneration of sufficient taxable income
in the applicable taxing jurisdictions. Although Welieve our estimates and judgments are reasqretileal results may differ, which could be
material.

As we operate in multiple countries, we argjact to the jurisdiction of multiple domestic afodleign tax authorities. Determination of
taxable income in any jurisdiction requires theiptetation of the related tax laws and regulateams the use of estimates and assumptions
regarding significant future events such as thewarhdiming and character of deductions, permigsiblenue recognition methods under the
tax law and the sources and character of incoméandredits. Changes in tax laws, regulationsifpr currency exchange restrictions or our
level of operations or profitability in each taxipgisdiction could have an impact on the amounhobme taxes that we provide during any
given year.

Intangible Assets

We make judgments and estimates in conjunetitinthe carrying value of intangible assets, tidéhg amounts to be capitalized,
depreciation and amortization methods and usefetliAdditionally, we review intangible assetsifopairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amousnoisset may not be recoverable. We record impatriogses in the period in which we
determine that the carrying amount is not recoderdbecoverability of assets to be held and usetkiasured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to future net cash flows exgdotée generated by the asset. This may requite mske judgments regarding long-term
forecasts of our future revenues and costs retatéie assets subject to review. During the
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fourth quarter of 2008, we determined the carryiayes of the intangible assets resulting fromamgquisition of eCOST were impaired, wh
resulted in a $4.5 million write-off of intangibéessets in 2008. No intangible assets were detedninbe impaired during 2009.

Goodwill

The Company acquired eCOST in 2006 becaudeditrategic benefits expected to result from domf eCOST’s e-commerce platform
with PFSweb’s advanced technology and operatiorigdstructure thereby providing the combined conypaith the enhanced ability to
expand its market share in the fast growing webmerce market. Such benefits are the primary fa¢k@scontributed to a purchase price that
resulted in the recognition of goodwill.

Goodwill was derived by the excess of the pase price over the fair value of the net iderilBaassets acquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition of eCOST in 2006, and is includethe eCOST reportable segment. Goodwill, whiahoisdeductible for tax purposes, is not
being amortized but is subject to an impairmertteash year, using a fair-value-based approach.

We review goodwill for impairment at least aally on December 31. We record impairment lossdke period in which we determine that
the carrying amount is not recoverable. Recovdtgluf assets to be held and used is measuredchyngarison of the carrying amount of an
asset to future net cash flows expected to be gtrteby the asset. We estimate the fair valueeo€@OST reporting unit using a combination
of valuation models, including the income approathod, the guideline company method, and stodepriethod. These models require u
make judgments regarding long-term forecasts ofaure revenues and costs related to the asdgjescstio review, costs of capital and
residual values. During the fourth quarter of 2008,determined the carrying values of the goodwslulting from our acquisition of eCOST
were impaired, which resulted in an $11.8 millioriteroff of goodwill in 2008. As of December 31,09 the estimated fair value of the
eCOST reporting unit exceeded the carrying amourgdproximately 65%.
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccourtEinm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of PFSweb, Inc. (a Delaware corporasind)subsidiaries as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, shareholders’ equity and cormgnsive loss, and cash flows for the years
then ended. Our audits of the basic financial states included the financial statement schedusésdiin the index appearing under Iltem 15(a)
(1). These financial statements and the finant#ément schedules are the responsibility of the@my’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial staterreerddinancial statement schedules based on oit: aud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itsrimatiecontrol over financial reporting. G
audits included consideration of internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as a basis for designindiaprocedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compaimgernal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aullibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of PFSweb,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 808,2and the results of their operations and teesh flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America. Also in opinion, the related financial statement
schedules, when considered in relation to the Hamiacial statements taken as a whole, presery fai all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2010
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31
2009

December 31
2008

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 14,81 $ 16,05(
Restricted cas 2,09¢ 2,00¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfttounts of $973 and $980 at December 31, 200!

2008, respectivel 39,86: 44,54¢
Inventories, net of reserves of $2,016 and $2,1Peaember 31, 2009 and 2008, respecti 37,94¢ 47,18¢
Other receivable 11,60¢ 13,07:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,17( 3,80z

Total current asse 110,49¢ 126,66

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, ne 10,31« 12,10¢
IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLES, net 80& 961
GOODWILL 3,60z 3,60z
OTHER ASSET< 2,55¢ 1,18¢
Total asset $ 127,76¢ $ 144,52:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of lon-term debt and capital lease obligatit $ 19,17¢ $ 22,25!
Trade accounts payak 53,64 61,98¢
Deferred revenu 5,16¢ 3,64(
Accrued expense 13,18( 17,41«
Total current liabilities 91,16* 105,29:
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS, less currg portion 3,34¢ 4,951
OTHER LIABILITIES 3,90¢ 1,197
Total liabilities 98,41¢ 111,43t
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 1,000,000 sharg®rized; none issued and outstant — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 35,000,000 shatbeazed; 9,952,164 and 9,935,095 shares isst

December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively; and 98933nd 9,916,734 outstanding at December 31,

2009 and 2008, respective 10 10
Additional paic-in capital 93,15 92,72¢
Accumulated defici (65,967) (61,399
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 2,23¢ 1,82¢
Treasury stock at cost, 18,361 she (85) (85)

Total shareholde’ equity 29,35 33,08¢

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 127,76¢ $ 144,52:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES:
Product revenue, n
Service fee revent
Pas-through revenu

Total revenue:

COSTS OF REVENUES
Cost of product revent
Cost of service fee reven
Cost of pas-through revenu

Total costs of revenu

Gross profi

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, inclding stock based compensat
expense of $407 and $547 in the years ended Dece&1tp2009 and 2008, respectivi

AMORTIZATION OF IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLES

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSET IMPAIRMENT

Total operating expens:

Loss from operation

INTEREST EXPENSE, ne

Loss before income tax
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET LOSS

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and Dilutec

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDINC
Basic and Dilutec

2009

$267,61!
58,61¢
26,26¢
352,49¢

245,27
41,89¢
26,26¢

313,43!
39,06/

41,99¢
10%

42,10(
(3,036)
1,20¢

(4,247
32¢

$ (4,570

$ (0.4¢

9,92¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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2008

$330,53:
85,40¢
35,90¢

305,09(
58,00¢
35,90¢

399,00«

52,83¢
49,07
80€
16,25(
66,12¢
(13,290
1,56(

(14,85()
80F

$(15,65Y

$ (1.5¢

9,90¢
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Balance, January 1, 20!
Net loss
Stock-based
compensation
expense

Employee stock
purchase pla

Proceeds fron
exercised option

Other comprehensiv
loss—foreign
currency translation
adjustmen

Comprehensive los

Balance, December 31,

2008

Net loss

Stock-based
compensation
expense

Employee stock
purchase pla

Other comprehensiy
loss—foreign
currency translation
adjustmen

Comprehensive los

Balance, December 31,
2009

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total Comprehensive
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated  Comprehensive Treasury Stock _ Shareholder¢ Income
Shares Amount  Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares  Amount Equity (Loss)
9,909,40. $ 10 $92,12: $ (45,739 $ 2,53¢ 18,36: $ (85 % 48,84
— — — (15,655 — — — (15,659 $  (15,65%
— — 547 — — — — 547
7,522 — 26 — — — — 26
18,17: — 34 — — — — 34
— — — — (709) — — (709) (709)
$ (16,369
993509 $ 10 $92,72¢ $ (61,39) $ 1,82¢ 18,361 $ (85 $ 33,08t
— — — (4,570 — — — 4570 $ (4,570
— — 407 — — — — 407
17,06¢ — 17 — — — — 17
— — — — 414 — — 414 414
$ (@150
9,952,16- $ 10 $93,15. $ (65,969 $ 2,23¢ 18,36 $ (85 $ 29,35
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (4,570 $(15,65%)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,852 6,622
Goodwill and intangible asset impairme — 16,25(
Loss on sale of asse 6 17
Provision for doubtful accoun 147 174
Provision for excess and obsolete invent 99¢ 1,48:
Deferred income taxe (65) (299)
Stoclk-based compensation expel 407 547
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas (17) 291
Accounts receivabl 4,98 3,02(
Inventories, ne 8,79¢ (3,249
Prepaid expenses, other receivables and othes:i 69 (5,032
Accounts payable, deferred revenue, accrued expamgbother liabilitie (9,48¢) 5,27(
Net cash provided by operating activit 8,12¢ 9,451
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equiprmr (4,440 (5,759
Proceeds from sale of ass — 117
Net cash used in investing activiti (4,440 (5,637)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 17 60
Increase in restricted ca (77) (27¢)
Payments on capital lease obligatis (1,680 (2,797
Payments on debt, n (3,647) (41)
Net cash used in financing activiti (5,387) (2,050
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS 45€ 14
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (1,239 1,77¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 16,05( 14,27:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $14,81: $ 16,05(
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Property and equipment acquired under capital & $ 412 $ 584

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Overview

PFSweb, Inc. and its subsidiaries, includingies Distributors, Inc, and eCOST.com, Inc.@kectively referred to as the “Company;”
“Supplies Distributors” refers to Supplies Distribts, Inc. and its subsidiaries; “eCOST” refere@@OST.com, Inc.; and “PFSweb” refers to
PFSweb, Inc. and its subsidiaries excluding Supfistributors and eCOST.

PFSweb Overviey

PFSweb is an international business proces®orcing provider of end-to-end eCommerce solstionmajor brand name companies
seeking to optimize their supply chain and to eckaheir traditional and online business channedsiaitiatives in the United States, Canada,
and Europe. PFSweb offers such services as profedsionsulting, technology collaboration, manageth hosting and internet application
development, order management, web-enabled custmméact centers, customer relationship managerfieatcial services including billing
and collection services and working capital sohgianformation management, facilities and operatimanagement, kitting and assembly
services, and international fulfilment and distition services.

Supplies Distributors Overvie

Supplies Distributors, PFSweb and InfoPrinu8ons Company (“IPS”), a joint venture companyraal by Ricoh and International
Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”), have enteirgd master distributor agreements under whichpBep Distributors acts as a master
distributor of various products, primarily IPS pumd.

Supplies Distributors has obtained certaiariting (see Notes 3 and 4) that allows it to fureworking capital requirements for the sale of
primarily IPS products. Pursuant to the transaati@magement services agreements between PFSw&upplies Distributors, PFSweb
provides to Supplies Distributors transaction mamagnt and fulfillment services, such as managedhesking and maintenance, procurement
support, web-enabled customer contact center ssrvatistomer relationship management, financialaes including billing and collection
services, information management and internatidisatibution services. Supplies Distributors doeshave its own sales force and relies upon
IPS’s sales force and product demand generatidvitaes for its sale of IPS products. Supplies Bizitors sells its products in the United
States, Canada and Europe.

All of the agreements between PFSweb and $&sppiistributors were made in the context of ateglaarty relationship and were negoti
in the overall context of PFSweb’s and Suppliedritistors’ arrangement with IPS. Although managetimiieves that the terms of these
agreements are generally consistent with fair mar&keies, there can be no assurance that the mti@eged to or by each company under these
arrangements are not higher or lower than the pticat may be charged by, or to, unaffiliated tipiadties for similar services.

eCOST Overview

eCOST is a multi-category online discountitetaf new, “close-out” and recertified brand-namerchandise, selling products primarily to
customers in the United States. eCOST offers pitsdacseveral primary merchandise categories, diolyicomputers, networking, electronics
and entertainment, TV'’s, monitors and projectoasneras and camcorders, memory and storage, “Fétdhee”and sports and leisure. eCC
carries products from leading manufacturers suchaay, JVC, Canon, Hewlett-Packard, Denon, Cuisitsennheiser, Garmin, Panasonic,
Toshiba and Microsoft.

The Company liquidity has been negatively impacted as a tefithe merger with eCOST. Since the merger, eC@&Texperienced a |
use of cash primarily due to operating losses. Assalt, the Company has had to support eCOSTIsmasds with the goal of reducing
operating losses. The amount of additional casdexéo support eCOST operations will depend uporkiwg capital requirements, bank
financing availability as well as eCOST’s continwdllity to improve its financial results. Furthedvances to eCOST may be limited by the
Company'’s current cash and future cash flow and lbeasestricted by the Company’s credit facilityightions.
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In the event eCOST is unable to increaseeitemue and/or gross profit from its present levietsay fail to comply with one or more of the
financial covenants required under its working tapine of credit. In such event, absent a waitlkee, working capital lender would be entitled
to accelerate all amounts outstanding thereundegercise all other rights and remedies, includialg of collateral and demand for payment
under the Company parent guaranty. Any acceleratidhe repayment of the credit facility would havenaterial adverse impact on the
Company’s financial condition and results of opierat and no assurance can be given that the Compaulg have the financial ability to
repay all of such obligations.

Management currently believes eCOST will nieetCompany’s expectations related to improvedalprofitability. The Company has
reported improvement in eCOST'’s financial resuttgibning in 2007, excluding the impact of any nasftimpairment charges, and expects
continued improvement as a result of efforts tggase sales, improve product mix and further impraperational efficiencies, although there
can be no assurance that these future improvemahtse achieved. If eCOST does not meet expeatatithe Company anticipates that it
would be able to terminate or sublease eCOST 'fitfasj liquidate remaining inventory through the@ST website and reduce certain
personnel related costs as needed so as to minanizenaterial impact upon the Company’s other segsne

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior

All intercompany accounts and transactionsHaeen eliminated in consolidation.

Investment in Affiliates

Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. (“PFS”),veholly-owned subsidiary of PFSweb, has made adsta Supplies Distributors that are
evidenced by a Subordinated Demand Note (the “Slitated Note”). Under the terms of certain of ttmr@any’s debt facilities, the
outstanding balance of the Subordinated Note cammaicreased to more than $5.5 million or decréésdess than $4.3 million without prior
approval of the Company’s lenders (see Notes 3Aandls of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the outstanidalance of the Subordinated Note
was $5.0 million and $5.5 million, respectively.eT8ubordinate Note is eliminated in the Compangissolidated financial statements.

PFS has also made advances to eCOST, whickgajgd $10.9 million and $10.6 million as of Debem31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Certain terms of the Comparsytlebt facilities provide that the total advan@ese€COST may not be less than $2.0 million withaidrapprova
of eCOST'’s lender. PFS has received the approvits tdnder to advance incremental amounts subgectrtain cash inflows to PFS, as
defined, to certain of its subsidiaries and/orliats, including eCOST, if needed. PFSweb hasadsanced eCOST $5.0 million and
$4.7 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, eetyely.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestants and related disclosures in conformity wéhegally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make judgments, estimateassumptions that affect the reported amountss#ta, liabilities, revenues and expe!
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilifié® recognition and allocation of certain revenaed operating expenses in these
consolidated financial statements also require igament estimates and assumptions. The Companyisa¢ss and assumptions are
continually evaluated based on available inforrmaind experience. Because the use of estimatelsdseint in the financial reporting process,
actual results could differ from estimates.

Revenue and Cost Recognitic

Depending on the terms of the customer arnaege, Supplies Distributors recognizes product mereeand product cost either upon the
shipment of product to customers or when the custaeteives the product. Supplies Distributors pisrits customers to return product for
credit against other purchases, which include nstéor defective products (that Supplies Distribsitinen returns to the manufacturer) and
incorrect shipments. Supplies
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Distributors provides a reserve for estimated retiand allowances and offers terms to its custothatst believes are standard for its indus

Freight costs billed to customers are refi@ete components of product revenue. Freight costgried are recorded as a component of cost
of goods sold.

Under the master distributor agreements (s#te B), Supplies Distributors bills IPS for reimbaments of certain expenses, including: pass
through customer marketing programs, including treband coop funds; certain freight costs; direstxincurred in passing on any price
decreases offered by IPS to Supplies Distributorsaustomers to cover price protection and aegpecial bids; the cost of products provi
to replace defective product returned by custoraerd;certain other expenses as defined. Suppl&siliditors includes these reimbursable
amounts as they are incurred with a correspondidgation in either inventory or cost of producteeue. Supplies Distributors also reflects
pass through customer marketing programs as atiedwf both product revenue and cost of producéneie.

eCOST recognizes product revenue, net of asidnreturns, promotional discounts, credit caaddrand chargebacks, when both title and
risk of loss to the products has transferred tcctiomer, which eCOST has determined to occur ugoeipt of products by the customer.
eCOST generally requires payment by credit carchygacing an order, and to a lesser extent, g@etdit to business customers on normal
credit terms. eCOST permits its customers to retiefiective product for credit against other purelsas

For product sales shipped directly from eCQS/Endors to end customers, eCOST records revenliekated costs at the gross amounts
charged to the customer and paid to the vendodb@s@n evaluation of certain criteria. eCOS&Valuation is performed based on a numb
factors, including whether eCOST is the primaryigdnl in the transaction, has latitude in estabtighprices and selecting suppliers, takes title
to the products sold upon shipment, bears creskit énd bears inventory risk for returned prodtitas are not successfully returned to third-
party suppliers. eCOST recognizes revenue on egtenarranties and other services for which it isthe primary obligor on a net basis.

The Company’s service fee revenue primarilgtes to its (1) distribution services, (2) ordearmagement/customer care services and (3) the
reimbursement of out-of-pocket and third-party exqes. The Company typically charges its servicedeenue on a cost-plus basis, a percent
of shipped revenue basis or a per transaction bmsib as a per item basis for fulfilment servioes per minute basis for web-enabled
customer contact center services. Additional feesdled for other services.

Distribution services relate primarily to imtery management, product receiving, warehousimgfalfillment (i.e., picking, packing and
shipping) and facilities and operations managentenvice fee revenue for these activities is reamghas earned, which is either (i) on a per
transaction basis or (ii) at the time of produdtiftment, which occurs at the completion of thestlibution services.

Order management/customer care services i@iabarily to taking customer orders for the Comgartlients’ products via various
channels such as telephone call-center, electmyrficsimile. These services also entail addressiisgomer questions related to orders, as well
as cross-selling/upelling activities. Service fee revenue for thit\aty is recognized as the services are renddfeds charged to the client
on a per transaction basis based on either (ig-aletermined fee per order or fee per telephonetesrincurred, (ii) a per dedicated agent fee,
or (iii) are included in the product fulfillmentséce fees that are recognized on product shipment.

The Company’s billings for reimbursement of-oftpocket expenses, including travel and certhird-party vendor expenses such as
shipping and handling costs and telecommunicati@nges are included in pafsough revenue. The related reimbursable costeeflexted a
cost of pass-through revenue.

The Company’s cost of service fee revenueesgmting the cost to provide the services destibeve, is recognized as incurred. Cost of
service fee revenue also includes certain costidsed with technology collaboration and ongoiegiinology support that include
maintenance, web hosting and other ongoing progiamactivities. These activities are primarily pgrhed to support the distribution and
order management/customer care services and agnieed as incurred.
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The Company recognizes revenue and records &recounts receivables, pursuant to the methatsided above, when collectability is
reasonably assured. Collectability is evaluatethénaggregate and on an individual customer bakisg into consideration payment due date,
historical payment trends, current financial paositiresults of independent credit evaluations anahent terms. Related reserves are
determined by either using percentages applieéttaio aged receivable categories based on hiatagsults and are reevaluated and adjusted
as additional information is received or a spedintification method. After all attempts to calle receivable have failed, the receivable is
written off against the allowance for doubtful agots.

The Company primarily performs its servicegemone to three-year contracts that can gendsaltgrminated by either party. In
conjunction with these long-term contracts, the @any sometimes receives start-up fees to covenjilementation costs, including certain
technology infrastructure and development coste. Company defers the fees received, and the redatgd, and amortizes them over the life
of the contract. The amortization of deferred resers included as a component of service fee rexefoe amortization of deferred
implementation costs is included as a cost of serfge revenue. To the extent implementation dostson-technology infrastructure and
development exceed the fees received, the excetsam@ expensed as incurred. The following sunmesithe deferred implementation
revenues and costs, excluding technology and dewedat costs that are included in property and eqgeig (in thousands):

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Deferred implementation revenu
Current $ 3,94¢ $ 2,55¢
Non-current 3,68( 86¢

$ 7,62¢ $ 3,42¢

Deferred implementation cos
Current $ 1,621 $ 95¢€
Non-current 1,394 28¢

$ 3,01t $ 1,244

Current and non-current deferred implementatiosts, excluding technology and development castsa component of prepaid expenses
and other assets, respectively. Current and namtudeferred implementation revenues, which magegue the timing of when the related
implementation costs are incurred and thus defeererla component of deferred revenue and otHaliti@s, respectively.

Concentration of Business and Credit Risk

The Company’s service fee revenue is generatddr contractual service fee relationships withitiple client relationships. No
clients/customers exceeded 10% of consolidatechteduring the years 2009 and 2008. A summarye€tistomer and client concentrations
is as follows:

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Product Revenue (as a percentage of Product Reje

Customer ! 11% 12%
Service Fee Revenue (as a percentage of ServicRdwemue)

Client 1 7% 37%

Client 2 15% 10%

Client 3 1C% 6%
Accounts Receivable

Customer/Client : 8% 11%

Customer/Client : 11% 8%

Client 1 did not renew its contract with PRfetive January 2009, though certain project warktinued to occur through April 2009. PFS
currently operates three distinct geographicalremttarrangements with Client 2, which are aggesdat the service fee revenue percentages
reflected above. During 2010, Client 2 notified RR& it is not renewing two of its three contrawith PFS expiring during 2010.
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PFSweb has provided certain collateralizedantaes of its subsidiaries’ financings and cradidngements. These subsidiaries’ ability to
obtain financing on similar terms would be sigrafitly impacted without these guarantees.

The Company has multiple arrangements with &M IPS and is dependent upon the continuaticnici arrangements. These
arrangements, which are critical to the Companggoing operations, include Supplies Distributorsister distributor agreements and certain
of Supplies Distributors’ working capital financimgreements. Substantially all of the Suppliesribistors’ revenue is generated by its sale of
product purchased from IPS. Supplies Distributdse eelies upon IPS’s sales force and product dengameration activities and the
discontinuance of such services would have a nafenpact upon Supplies Distributors’ businessadidition, Supplies Distributors has
product sales to IBM and IPS business units an€Ctirapany has an IBM term master lease agreement.

eCOST’s arrangements with its vendors areitezbbe by either party at will. Loss of any vendoasild have a material adverse effect on
eCOST'’s financial position, results of operationd aash flows. Sales of HP and HP-related prodegtesented 44% of eCOST's net
revenues in 2009 (11% of consolidated net reverame$13% of eCOST's net revenues in 2008 (9% o$alilated net revenues).
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-tertmihlguid investments with original maturities, @ acquired, of three months or less.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash includes the following iteinstijousands):

December 31 December 31

2009 2008
Customer remittance $ 1,36¢ $ 45¢
Bond financing (see note 732 1,55(C
Total restricted cas $ 2,09¢ $ 2,00¢

In conjunction with certain of its financingr@ements, Supplies Distributors has granted teriders a security interest in certain customer
remittances received in specified bank accounts sse 4). At December 31, 2009 and 2008, thesk deeounts held $1.2 million and $0.2
million, respectively, which was restricted and cauty be used to reduce the outstanding debt.

In conjunction with certain of its financingr@ements, eCOST has granted to its lender a etugrest in certain customer remittances
received in specified bank accounts (see Note)oth years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 laegeaccounts held $0.2 million, wh
was restricted and can only be used to reduceutstamding debt.

Other Receivables

Other receivables include $8.0 million andéh®illion as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, re$palgt primarily for amounts due from IPS
and IBM for costs incurred by the Company undermttaester distributor agreements (see Note 6). litiaddother receivables included $3.6
million and $3.5 million as of December 31, 2009 908, respectively, applicable to value addedé¢arivables.

Inventories

Inventories (all of which are finished goodsg stated at the lower of weighted average costasket. The Company establishes inventory
reserves based upon estimates of declines in vl inventories that are slow moving or obsglekcess levels of inventory or values
assessed at lower than cost.

Supplies Distributors assumes responsibititystow-moving inventory under certain master distior
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agreements, subject to certain termination righis has the right to return product rendered olesdig engineering changes, as defined (see
Note 6). In the event PFSweb, Supplies Distribuéord IPS terminate the master distributor agreesnéimt agreements provide for the pat
to mutually agree on a plan of disposition of SiggpDistributors’ then existing inventory.

Supplies Distributors’ inventories include wmteandise in-transit that has not been received&yCbmpany but that has been shipped and
invoiced by Supplies Distributors’ vendors. Theregponding payable for inventories in-transit iduded in accounts payable in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

eCOST inventories include goods in-transitustomers.

The Company reviews inventory for impairmentsoperiodic basis, but at a minimum, annually.dvecability of the inventory on hand is
measured by comparison of the carrying value ofritaentory to the fair value of the inventory. Téléowance for slow moving inventory was
$2.0 million and $2.1 million as of December 3102@&nd 2008, respectively.

Property and Equipmen

The components of property and equipment as of Mbee 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (in thousands

December 31 December 31
2009 2008 Depreciable Life
Furniture and fixture $ 19,55: $ 19,12¢ 2-10 years
Purchased and capitalized software c 19,31 17,49( 3-5 years
Computer equipmet 11,88 10,77¢ 3-5 years
Leasehold improvemen 7,83¢ 7,62¢ 3-5 years
Other 1,00: 571 3-5 years
59,59: 55,58¢
Less-accumulated depreciation and amortiza (49,27)) (43,48))
Property and equipment, r $ 10,31« $ 12,10¢

The Company makes judgments and estimatesniuirection with the carrying value of these asdetduding amounts to be capitalized,
depreciation and amortization methods and usefetliAdditionally, the Company reviews lofiged assets for impairment whenever even
changes in circumstances indicate that the cargingunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Thep@oyrrecords impairment losses in the
period in which the Company determines that theyg@g amount is not recoverable. Recoverabilitps$ets to be held and used is measured
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an assktture net cash flows expected to be generatgtidbasset. This may require the Comg
to make judgments regarding long-term forecastsuoffuture revenues and costs related to the asgbjsct to review. During 2009 and 2008,
no impairment of property and equipment was idexttibr recorded.

Property and equipment are stated at costendepreciated using the straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the respective
assets. Capitalized implementation costs are digppeelcover the respective client contract peribgssehold improvements are amortized over
the shorter of the useful life of the related assdhe remaining lease term. Depreciation and #imaion expense related to property and
equipment, excluding capital leases, during 20@92008 was $5.0 million and $4.1 million, respeelyv

The Company’s property held under capitaldsaamount to approximately $2.1 million and $3.4iom, net of accumulated amortization,
of approximately $6.7 million and $8.4 million, Becember 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Depieniahd amortization expense related to
capital leases during 2009 and 2008 was $1.7 milhidboth years.

Intangible Assets

The Company makes judgments and estimatesnijurection with the carrying value of intangiblesats, including amounts to be
capitalized, depreciation and amortization methaoat$ useful lives. Additionally, the Company reviemangible assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances imdibat the carrying amount of an asset may notbeverable. The Company records
impairment losses in the period in which the Conypdetermines that the carrying amount is not reve. Recoverability of assets to be |
and used is measured by a comparison of the cgrayimount of an asset to future net cash flows drpdo be generated by the asset. This
may require the Company to make judgments regaildimgrterm forecasts of our future revenues antsaetated to the assets subject to
review.

In 2008, the Company determined that certhitsadentifiable acquired intangible assets wienpaired. The determination was based ol
carrying values exceeding the future undiscoungesth lows and fair value attributable to such igibte assets. As a result, the Company
recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $4.5anilliuring 2008, which represented the differende/éen the estimated fair values of these
long-lived assets and their carrying values. Faiues were determined based upon market conditibeselief from royalty approach which
utilized cash flow projections, and other factors.
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There are no residual values for any of thangible assets subject to amortization acquirethduhe eCOST acquisition. The Company is
amortizing the intangible assets acquired on agstrdine basis over their estimated remaining uskfes. Definite lived intangible assets
consist of (in thousands):

Trademar Customel
Name Relationship
Fair value at acquisitio $ 4,63F $ 2,74f
Impairment charge incurred in 20 (2,75€) (1,017
Adjusted fair value $ 1,87¢ $ 1,734
Trademar Customel Other
_Name Relationship Intangible: _Total
As of December 31, 20(C
Accumulated amortizatio (1,357) (1,739 (20) (20)
Net carrying valut $ 527 $ = $ 434 $ 961
As of December 31, 20(
Accumulated amortizatio (1,457 — (71) (52)
Net carrying value $ 422 $ — $ 38 $ 80t

The estimated remaining useful life of thelenmark name is four years as of December 31, 2009.

Amortization expense for intangible assets $@4 million for the year ended December 31, 2808 $0.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. Subsequent to the 2008 impairoiange, amortization expense for intangible assetstimated to be approximately
$0.1 million annually for each year through theipeending December 31, 2013.

Goodwill

The Company acquired eCOST because of theegitebenefits expected to result from combinin®&T’s e-commerce platform with
PFSweb’s advanced technology and operational infretsire thereby providing the combined companylie enhanced ability to expand its
market share in the fast growing web commerce niaBeh benefits are the primary factors that douated to a purchase price that resulte
the recognition of goodwill.

The excess of the purchase price over thev&ire of the net identifiable assets acquiredlmtiities assumed was allocated to goodwiill
and is included in the eCOST reportable segmendd@dl, which is not deductible for tax purposesnit being amortized but is subject to an
impairment test each year, using a fair-value-bagguoach.

The Company performs its annual goodwill innpegnt test as of December 31. During the Compa2@@8 annual analysis of the carrying
value of goodwill, the Company determined the dagwalue of goodwill exceeded its fair value, whiesulted in a non-cash write-off of
goodwill of $11.8 million. In 2008, as a resulttbe decline in stock price, the market capital@aiplus an implied control premium fell
significantly below the recorded value of its cdidated net assets as of the testing date. In paifig the goodwill impairment test, the
Company used current market capitalization, corgreimiums, discounted cash flows and other fa@esithe best evidence of fair value. The
remaining balance of goodwill related to eCOSTemthis impairment charge, was $3.6 million. No &imment was identified in the 2009
annual impairment test.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

For the Company’s Canadian and European apesathe local currency is the functional currently assets and liabilities are translated at
exchange rates in effect at the end of the pednd,income and expense items are translated avérage exchange rates for the period.
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The Company includes currency gains and losseshortterm intercompany advances in the determinatiamedincome and loss. Currer
gains and losses, including transaction gains esgkk and those on short-term intercompany advancegled in net loss were net gains of
approximately $0.1 million for both years ended &aber 31, 2009 and 2008. The Company reports gah$osses on intercompany foreign
currency transactions that are of a long-term itnaest nature as a separate component of sharefodgrity.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standar

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted tenEial Accounting Standards Boasdor FASB, new accounting guidance for the falug
measurement of all non-financial assets and ligdsli The guidance delayed the effective dateHertteatment of certain non-financial assets
and non-financial liabilities, except those tha eecognized or disclosed at fair value on a réogitrasis, at least annually, until fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interimgmsiwithin those fiscal years. The adoption of thiglance did not have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted nétagce contained in FASB Accounting Standards Gaatibn (“ASC”) 805, which
changed the method of accounting for business amatibns. Under ASC 805, an acquiring entity is regplito recognize all the assets acqu
and liabilities assumed in a transaction at theiattipn-date fair value with limited exceptionsS& 805 requires that transaction costs such as
legal, accounting and advisory fees be expensedegquidres a substantial number of new disclosuress. new standard did not have any
impact on the Company'’s consolidated financialestents.

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted nédagce contained in ASC 810, which establishes aewounting and reporting standards
for noncontrolling interests in a subsidiary andtfee deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The adoptibthe statement did not have any impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted thkcaple sections of ASC 350-30, which amends #wafrs that should be considered in
developing renewal or extension assumptions usddtermine the useful life of a recognized intalegdsset. ASC 350-30 applies
prospectively to all intangible assets acquiredraftnuary 1, 2009, whether acquired in a busic@®sdination or otherwise. The adoption of
the applicable sections of ASC 350-30 will impdet Company’s accounting for new intangible assegsiiaed in business combinations that
occur after January 1, 2009. The adoption of thidance did not have any impact on the Companysalidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB updated, and the Compmtgpted, th&ubsequent Event®pic of the FASB ASC to establish general stanslaifd
accounting for and disclosure of events that oefter the balance sheet date but before finantEit¢ments are issued or are available to be
issued. This topic requires the disclosure of e dhrough which an entity has evaluated subségvemts and the basis for that date, that is,
whether the date represents the date the finasteil@ments were issued or were available to bedsdthis topic was effective in the first
interim period ending after June 15, 2009 and areémh February 24, 2010. The adoption of this updat not have a material impact on the
Company'’s financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009@4nerally Accepted Accounting Principkesd approved the FASB Accounting Standards
Cadification (“Codification”) as the single sourofauthoritative nongovernmental US GAAP. The Ciadifion does not change previous US
GAAP, but is intended to simplify user access t@athoritative US GAAP by providing all the authtative literature related to a particular
topic in one place. All prior accounting standaotuments will be superseded and all other accogititerature not included in the
Cadification will be considered non-authoritativesU 2009-01 is effective for interim and annualipgs ending after September 15, 2009.
The implementation of this update did not havenapact on the Company’s consolidated financial statgs.

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accountiren8ards Update (ASU) 2009-1ultiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements — a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task For@end certain guidance WASB
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Accounting Standards Codificati(™ (ASC) 605,Revenue Recognitiqr25, “Multiple-Element ArrangementsThe amended guidance in A
605-25 (1) modifies the separation criteria by élating the criterion that requires objective aaliable evidence of fair value for the
undelivered item(s), and (2) eliminates the usthefresidual method of allocation and instead reguhat arrangement consideration be
allocated, at the inception of the arrangemenrdjltdeliverables based on their relative selliniggr

The FASB also issued ASU 2009-C&rtain Revenue Arrangements That Include Softisements — a consensus of the FASB Emerging
Issues Task Forc, to amend the scope of arrangements under ASCXfyare, 605, “Revenue Recognition” to exclude tangibledurcts
containing software components and non-softwarepoorants that function together to deliver a produessential functionality.

The amended guidance in ASC 605-25 and ASGC6885is effective prospectively for revenue arrangats entered into or materially
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after J&ge 2010, with early application and retrospectipelication permitted. The Company is in
the process of evaluating the impact the amendnie®®$C 605-25 and ASC 985-605 will have on itssmidated financial statements.

Income Taxes

For federal income tax purposes, tax yearsrédrmain subject to examination include years 2008ugh 2009. However, the utilization of
net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards that argser to 2005 remain subject to examination thiotlge years such carryforwards are
utilized. For Europe, tax years that remain sulfieetxamination include years 2006 to 2009. Howether utilization of NOL carryforwards
that arose prior to 2006 remain subject to exarinahrough the years such carryforwards are etlizor Canada, tax years that remain
subject to examination include years 2002 to 2d@@ending on the subsidiary. For state income taggses, the tax years that remain subject
to examination include years 2004 to 2009, depandpon the jurisdiction in which the Company fiteg returns. The Company and its
subsidiaries have various state income tax retuartifse process of examination or administrativeestp The Company does not expect that
these examinations will result in unrecognizediearefits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recmghfor the future tax consequences attributabtdifterences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitied their respective tax bases. Deferred tax aaset liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeerytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ofiange in tax rates is recognized in income im#réod that includes the enactment date.
Valuation allowances are established when necessaeduce deferred tax assets to the amount rikalg than not to be realized.

The Company recognizes interest and penak#iaged to certain tax positions in income tax exee

Self Insurance

The Company is self-insured for medical inegeabenefits up to certain stop-loss limits. Sua$tsare accrued based on known claims and
an estimate of incurred, but not reported (“IBNRI§ims. IBNR claims are estimated using historiaglinformation and other data provided
by claims administrators.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s finanaistruments, which include cash and cash equivalactcounts receivable, accounts payable
and debt and capital lease obligations, approxirtiegie fair values based on short terms to matunitgurrent market prices and interest rates.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined astiamge in equity (net assets) of a business eigernguring a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner ssuf@omprehensive income (loss) consists of netiiec(loss) and foreign currency
translation adjustments.
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Net Loss Per Common Sha

Basic and diluted net loss per share is coatphy dividing net loss by the weighted-average Imemof common shares outstanding for the
reporting period. Stock options not included in daéculation of diluted net loss per share forykars ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
were 1.8 million and 1.4 million, respectively,thg effect would be anti-dilutive.
Cash Paid For Interest and Taxes During Year

The Company made payments for interest ofapprately $1.3 million and $1.7 million and incorr@xes of approximately $0.7 million
and $1.6 million during the years ended DecembeRB@9 and 2008, respectively (see Notes 3, 4 and 8
Advertising Cost:

Advertising expenses for the Company, whidatesto eCOST, including those for catalog, inteéared other methods, were $0.9 million for
each of the years ending December 31, 2009 and 2@d&re included in selling, general and admiaiiste expenses.
Reverse Stock Spl

On June 2, 2008, the Company effected a Bfpreverse split (“Reverse Split”) of the Compangdmmon stock. Pursuant to the Reverse
Split, the common stock was combined and recl@&ssliiased on a ratio of 4.7 shares of issued amsthoding common stock being combined
and reclassified into one share of common stocksidre and per share amounts for common stockamtarand stock options have been
restated to reflect the Reverse Split on a rettxabasis.

Reclassifications

Prior year data related to deferred revengeuad expenses and interest expense, net havedmassified to conform to the current period
presentation. These reclassifications had no effegreviously reported net income (loss) or shaldrs’ equity.
3. Vendor Financing

Outstanding obligations under vendor finanangngements consist of the following (in thousdnd

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Inventory and working capital financing agreeme
United State: $ 16,07 $ 23,88t
Europe 15,64¢ 16,42:
Total $ 31,72 $ 40,30

Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreement)nited States

Supplies Distributors has a short-term crédiility with IBM Credit LLC to finance its distribstion of IPS products in the United States,
providing financing for eligible IPS inventory awdrtain receivables up to $30.5 million througheitpiration in March 2010. As of December
31, 2009, Supplies Distributors had $4.0 milliorawhilable credit under this facility. The creditility contains cross default provisions,
various restrictions upon the ability of Supplieistbbutors to, among others, merge, consolidatk assets, incur indebtedness, make loan
payments to related parties (including entitieedtly or indirectly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), proviglearantees, make investments and loans,
pledge assets, make changes to capital stock ompetsucture and pay dividends, as well as fir@nmbvenants, such as annualized revenue
to working capital, net profit after tax to revenaead total liabilities to tangible net worth, afided, and are secured by certain of the assets o
Supplies Distributors, as well as a collateraligedranty of PFSweb. Additionally, PFS is requirednaintain a minimum Subordinated Note
receivable balance from Supplies Distributors aD$&illion and a minimum shareholders’ equity oB¥Lmillion.
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Borrowings under the credit facility accrugeirest, after a defined free financing period,rahp rate plus 0.5% (3.75% as of both
December 31, 2009 and 2008). The facility alsoudes a monthly service fee.

On March 25, 2010, Supplies Distributors ezdento an amended credit facility with IBM CretltC, which extends the termination date
through April 2011, modifies certain financial conats and reduces the minimum Subordinated Nosmbalto $3.5 million. Given the
structure of this facility and as outstanding bats) which represent inventory purchases, aredepigin twelve months, the Company has
classified the outstanding amounts under thisifg@k accounts payable in the consolidated balaheets.

Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreemenigurope

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiariagéha short-term credit facility with IBM Belgiunirfancial Services S.A. (“IBM Belgium”) to
finance distribution of IPS products in Europe. Hsset based credit facility with IBM Belgium prdgs up to 16 million Euros (approximat
$23.0 million at December 31, 2009) in inventoryaficing and cash advances based on eligible inyeata accounts receivable through its
expiration in March 2010. As of December 31, 2083pplies Distributors’ European subsidiaries h&dmillion Euros (approximately
$6.8 million at December 31, 2009) of availabled@reT he credit facility contains cross default yigions, various restrictions upon the ability
of Supplies Distributors and its European subsieto, among others, merge, consolidate, seltgdgseur indebtedness, make loans and
payments to related parties (including entitieedtly or indirectly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), proviglearantees, make investments and loans,
pledge assets, make changes to capital stock omipestsucture and pay dividends, as well as finsnmvenants, such as annualized revenue
to working capital, net profit after tax to revenaead total liabilities to tangible net worth, afided, and are secured by certain of the assets o
Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary, as weltollateralized guaranties of Supplies Distobaiand PFSweb. Additionally, PFSweb is
required to maintain a minimum Subordinated Notergable balance from Supplies Distributors of $Billion and a minimum shareholders’
equity of $18.0 million. Borrowings under the crief@dicility accrue interest at Euribor plus 1.94% ¢ash advances, and, after a defined free
financing period, at Euribor plus 4.25% for invemtfinancings. As of December 31, 2009 there wereutstanding cash advances and the
interest rate was 4.7% on the $15.6 million of @mutding inventory financings. As of December 310&€the interest rate was 4.1%. Supplies
Distributors’ European subsidiary pays a monthlyise fee on the commitment.

On March 25, 2010, Supplies Distributors’ Eperan subsidiaries entered into an amended cradlityfavith IBM Belgium, which extends
the termination date through April 2011, modifiestain financial covenants and reduces the minirButmordinated Note balance to
$3.5 million. Given the structure of this faciliynd as outstanding balances, which represent iomeptrchase, are repaid within twelve
months, the Company has classified the outstaratimgunts under this facility as accounts payabtaénconsolidated balance sheets.

4. Debt and Capital Lease Obligations:

Outstanding obligations under debt and capetade obligations consist of the following (in eisands):

December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Loan and security agreements, United Stz
Supplies Distributor $ 8,921 $  9,64¢
PFS 6,00( 6,00(
Credit facility— eCOST — —
Factoring agreement, Euro 1,074 2,57
Taxable revenue boni 2,40( 3,20C
Master lease agreemel 3,467 4,657
Other 665 1,11¢
Total 22,521 27,20:
Less current portion of loi-term debt 19,17¢ 22,25:
Long-term debt, less current porti $  3,34¢ $ 4,957
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Loan and Security Agreemer— Supplies Distributors

Supplies Distributors has a loan and secagtgement with Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovia”ytmvide financing for up to $25 million
of eligible accounts receivable in the United Stated Canada. As of December 31, 2009, Suppligstitors had $0.7 million of available
credit under this agreement. The Wachovia facdlitpires on the earlier of March 2011 or the datevhith the parties to the IPS master
distributor agreement (see Note 6) no longer oparatier the terms of such agreement and/or IPSng®f supplies products pursuant to such
agreement. Borrowings under the Wachovia facildgrae interest at prime rate plus 0.25% to 0.75%uwbdollar rate plus 2.5% to 3.0%,
dependent on excess availability, as defined. mtezast rate as of December 31, 2009 was 3.75%5f@rmillion of outstanding borrowings
and 2.23% for $3.0 million of outstanding borrowsnés of December 31, 2008, the interest rate wa 4or $5.6 million of outstanding
borrowings and 2.5% for $4.0 million of outstandimgrrowings. This agreement contains cross defaaitisions, various restrictions upon the
ability of Supplies Distributors to, among otheintfs, merge, consolidate, sell assets, incur irathtess, make loans and payments to related
parties (including entities directly or indirecthyvned by PFSweb, Inc.), provide guarantees, malestments and loans, pledge assets, make
changes to capital stock ownership structure agdpédends, as well as financial covenants, stchamimum net worth, as defined, and is
secured by all of the assets of Supplies Distritstas well as a collateralized guaranty of PFSwelditionally, PFSweb is required to
maintain a Subordinated Note receivable balanaa Bopplies Distributors of no less than $4.3 milland may not maintain restricted cash of
more than $5.0 million, and is restricted with nefjeo transactions with related parties, indebtedred changes to capital stock ownership
structure. Supplies Distributors has entered ifbgked account agreements with its banks and Waalpursuant to which a security interest
was granted to Wachovia for all U.S. and Canadiestatner remittances received in specified bankwauiso At December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, these bank accounts held $1li6rmand $0.1 million, respectively, which was trated for payment to Wachovia.

Loan and Security Agreemer— PFSweb

PFS has a Loan and Security Agreement (“Caragkgreement”) with Comerica Bank (“Comericalhe Comerica Agreement provides
up to $10.0 million of eligible accounts receivabtencing through March 2010. As of December 3102 PFS had $3.8 million of available
credit under this facility. Borrowings under ther@erica Agreement accrue interest at a defined waiigh will generally be prime rate plus
2%, with a minimum of 4.5% (5.25% and 4.25% at Delger, 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively). The Coragkigreement contains cross
default provisions, various restrictions upon P&Hility to, among other things, merge, consolida&d, assets, incur indebtedness, make loans
and payments to related parties (including entiiesctly or indirectly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), readapital expenditures, make investments
and loans, pledge assets, make changes to capitkl@vnership structure, as well as financial c@rgs of a minimum tangible net worth of
$20 million, as defined, a minimum earnings befoterest and taxes, plus depreciation, amortizaditthnon-cash compensation accruals, if
any, as defined, and a minimum liquidity ratioda$ined. The Comerica Agreement restricts the amoitine subordinated note receivable
from Supplies Distributors to a maximum of $5.5lioi. The Comerica Agreement is secured by alhefassets of PFS, as well as a guarantee
of PFSweb, Inc.

On March 25, 2010, PFS entered into an ameadezkment with Comerica, which extends the tertimnalate through March 2011,
modifies certain financial covenants and providesapproval for PFS to advance incremental amauitject to certain cash inflows to PFS,
as defined, to certain of its subsidiaries andffilieges, including eCOST, if needed.

Credit Facility — eCOST

eCOST has an asset-based line of creditfiaofiup to $7.5 million from Wachovia, through Ma9@11, which is collateralized by
substantially all of eCOST'’s assets. Borrowingserrtie facility are limited to a percentage of ilig accounts receivable and inventory.
Outstanding borrowings under the facility beariegt at rates ranging from prime rate plus 0.75%.26% or Eurodollar rate plus 3.0% to
4.0%, depending on eCOST's financial results. Theree no outstanding borrowings as of DecembeRB@9 or 2008. As of December 31,
2009, eCOST had $1.0 million of letters of creditstanding and $1.2 million of available credit anthis facility. In connection with the line
of credit, eCOST entered into a cash managememmgement whereby eCOST’s operating amounts arédesed restricted and swept and
used to repay outstanding amounts under the lieeafit. As of December 31,
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2009 and December 31, 2008, the restricted cashimaas $0.2 million in each period. The creditiifgcrestricts eCOST's ability to, among
other things, merge, consolidate, sell assetsy imciebtedness, make loans, investments and pagrtenstibsidiaries, affiliates and related
parties (including entities directly or indirecttyvned by PFSweb, Inc.), make investments and Igdedge assets, make changes to capital
stock ownership structure, and requires a minimamgible net worth of $0, as defined. PFSweb hasagtieed all current and future
obligations of eCOST under this line of credit.

Factoring Agreement

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary &dactoring agreement with Fortis Commercial FoeaN.V. (“Fortis”) to provide factoring
for up to 7.5 million Euros (approximately $10.8linh at December 31, 2009) of eligible accountseieables through March 2011. This
factoring agreement is accounted for as a secuwedwing. As of December 31, 2009, Supplies Disifdios’ European subsidiary had
approximately 1.5 million Euros ($2.2 million) ofailable credit under this agreement. Borrowings'ae interest at Euribor plus 1.2% (1.6%
and 3.5% at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respegtividlis agreement contains various restrictionsnuiine ability of Supplies Distributors’
European subsidiary to, among other things, mexgesolidate and incur indebtedness, as well asdinhcovenants, such as minimum net
worth. This agreement is secured by a guarantS&aipplies Distributors, up to a maximum of 200,0Q0ds.

Taxable Revenue Bonds

PFS has a Loan Agreement with the Missisdjysiness Finance Corporation (the “MBFC”) in cortitwith the issuance by the MBFC
of $5 million MBFC Taxable Variable Rate Demand itied Obligation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Pyidtitlfillment Services, Inc.
Project) (the “Bonds”). The MBFC loaned the proceefithe Bonds to PFS for the purpose of finantiregacquisition and installation of
equipment, machinery and related assets locatdei€ompany’s Southaven, Mississippi distributiaaility. The Bonds bear interest at a
variable rate (0.6% as of December 31, 2009), teydéned by Comerica Securities, as RemarketinghAd®FS, at its option, may convert the
Bonds to a fixed rate, to be determined by the Rkeatag Agent at the time of conversion.

The primary source of repayment of the Bosds lietter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) isgslby Comerica pursuant to a Reimbursement
Agreement between PFS and Comerica under whichéi8igated to pay to Comerica all amounts drawdar the Letter of Credit. The
Letter of Credit has a maturity date of April 2Cdtlwhich time, if not renewed or replaced, willuksn a draw on the undrawn face amount
thereof. If the Letter of Credit is renewed or eg@d, the Bonds require future principal repaymeh&800,000 in January of each year thrc
2012. PFS’ obligations under the Reimbursement é&ment are secured by substantially all of the as¥dPFS, including restricted cash of
$0.7 million and a Company parent guarantee.

Debt Covenant:

To the extent the Company or any of its subsigs fail to comply with its covenants applicatidts debt or vendor financing obligations,
including the monthly financial covenant requirertsesnd required level of shareholders’ equity dnvmerth, and one or all of the lenders
accelerate the repayment of the credit facilityigdiions, the Company would be required to rephgrabunts outstanding thereunder. In
particular, in the event eCOST is unable to inaedtssrevenue and/or gross profit from its presevels, if PFS service fee revenue declines
from expected levels and it is unable to reducésdmscorrespond to such reduced revenue levétsSoipplies Distributors revenue or gross
profit declines from expected levels, such everdy nesult in a breach of one or more of the finahodbvenants required under its working
capital line of credit. In such event, absent avemithe working capital lender would be entitlecatcelerate all amounts outstanding
thereunder and exercise all other rights and reesedicluding sale of collateral and demand fompagt under the Company parent guaranty.
Any acceleration of the repayment of the creditlitées would have a material adverse impact onGleenpany’s financial condition and results
of operations and no assurance can be given tb&@dmpany would have the financial ability to repdyof such obligations. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company was in compliantieallidebt covenants.
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Master Lease Agreemen

The Company has a Term Lease Master AgreewidmtBM Credit (“Master Lease Agreement”) that pides for leasing or financing
transactions of equipment and other assets, whanbrglly have terms of three years. The amounttanding under this Master Lease
Agreement were $1.6 million and $1.7 million aD&fcember 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, whiclsaceared by the related equipment (see
Note 2).

The Company has two other master agreemettiiwancing companies that provide for leasindimmeincing transactions of certain
equipment. The amounts outstanding under thesemgr@s as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $0i@nand $1.5 million,
respectively, and are secured by the related eqgnpm

The Company has other leasing and financimgeagents and will continue to enter into thoserayements as needed to finance the
purchasing or leasing of certain equipment or o#fssets. Borrowings under these agreements areaffgrsecured by the related equipment.

Debt and Capital Lease Maturitie
The Company’s aggregate maturities of debt subsgqadecember 31, 2009 are as follows (in thousand

Fiscal year ended December

2010 $17,99:
2011 2,12:
2012 27¢€
2013 184
2014 35
Thereaftel —

Total $20,61:

The following is a schedule of the Companyife minimum lease payments under the capitatetmether with the present value of the
net minimum lease payments as of December 31, @go@Bousands):

Fiscal year ended December

2010 $ 1,27¢
2011 601
2012 164
2013 —
Thereaftel —

Total minimum lease paymer $ 2,04«
Less amount representing interest at rates rarfgong4.7% to 16.5% (129
Present value of net minimum lease paym 1,91
Less: Current portio (1,186

Long-term capital lease obligatio $ T2¢

5. Stock and Stock Options

On June 2, 2008, the Company effected a Uforeverse split (“Reverse Split”) of the Compangdmmon stock. Pursuant to the Reverse
Split, the common stock was combined and recl@&ssliiased on a ratio of 4.7 shares of issued amsthoding common stock being combined
and reclassified into one share of common stockfrlional shares were issued in connection vieghReverse Split. Shareholders who were
entitled to fractional shares received cash in ditfractional shares. All share, per share, wdraawl option amounts have been restated to
reflect the Reverse Split on a retro-active basis.

Preferred Stock Purchase Righ

On June 8, 2000, the Company’s Board of Dinectieclared a dividend distribution of one prefdrstock purchase right (a “Right”) for
each share of the Company’s common stock outstgradirduly 6, 2000 and each
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share of common stock issued thereafter. Each Rigfittes the registered shareholders to purchase the Company one one-thousandth of a
share of preferred stock at an exercise price d8$8, subject to adjustment. The Rights are noeatly exercisable, but would become
exercisable if certain events occurred relating ferson or group acquiring or attempting to aeyR@ percent or more of the Company’s
outstanding shares of common stock. The Rightsexpi July 6, 2010, unless redeemed, exchangextemded by the Company.

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

The Company offers the PFSweb Employee StockHase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) thatadifird under Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, to provide emplopédlse Company an opportunity to acquire a pragrieinterest in the Company. The
Stock Purchase Plan permits each U.S. employeehatcompleted 90 days of service to elect to ppatie in the plan. Eligible employees
may elect to contribute with aftéax dollars up to a maximum annual contributioi$®25,000. The Stock Purchase Plan provides for aitigun
of the Company’s common stock at a 5% discournthiéaomharket value on the date of purchase. The Coynpasmreserved 0.9 million shares of
its common stock under the Stock Purchase Plarin®the years ended December 31, 2009 and 200&dhegany issued 17,070 and 7,522
shares under the Stock Purchase Plan, respecthglyt December 31, 2009, there were 433,571 sta@table for further issuance under the
Stock Purchase Plan.

Stock Options and Stock Option Plal

The Company recognizes compensation costlfsharebased payments based on the grant date fair v@arapensation cost is recogni:
on a straight-line basis, net of estimated forfeisil over the requisite service period of each dwar

Stock-based compensation charged against imeams $0.4 million and $0.5 million for the yearsled December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. As of December 31, 2009, there was #0llion of total unrecognized compensation costated to unvested stock options, wl
is expected to be recognized over a weighted aegragod of approximately 1.7 years.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company hadaheving share-based compensation plans:

PFSweb Plan Option

The Company has an Employee Stock and Ineef/ian and an Outside Director Stock Option an@iRet Plan under which an aggregate
of 3,117,341 shares of common stock have been dzgldcfor issuance (the “Stock Options Plans”) andutstanding stock option agreement
under which 7,446 shares were originally authorioedssuance. The Stock Option Plans provide liergranting of incentive awards in the
form of stock options to directors, executive maeragnt, key employees, and outside consultantseo€tdmpany. The rights to purchase
shares under the employee stock option agreemgritally vest over a three-year period, one-twedflth quarter. Stock options must be
exercised within 10 years from the date of gratdciSoptions are generally issued such that theceseeprice is equal to the market value of
the Company’s common stock at the date of grant.

As of December 31, 2009, there were 1,2979B%es available for future grants under the S@uton Plans.
The following table summarizes stock optiotivéty under the Stock Option Plans:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Per Share Price Life Value
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 1,352,40 $1.8:—8$75.2( $5.71
Grantec 352,99: $ 1.01—$%$1.6C $1.47
Exercisec — — —
Cancelec (39,14) $1.8:—8$75.2( $7.4:
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 1,666,25! $1.01—$13.91 $4.71
Exercisable, December 31, 20 1,287,15: $1.01—$13.91 $5.5¢ 4.C $—
Exercisable and expected to vest, December 31, 1,603,88 $1.01—$13.91 $4.8¢ 3.8 $—
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The weighted average fair value per shargtibns granted during the years ended Decembe&2(®I8 and 2008 was $1.04 and $3.14,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of optiamsercised under the Stock Option Plans was $0.0#®mduring the year ended December 31,
2008.

PFSweb No-plan Options

Prior to the Company’s initial public offeringertain of the Company’s employees were holdéstazk options of the Company’s former
parent company, Daisytek International Corporaff@aisytek”), issued under Daisytek’s stock optjgans.

In connection with the completion of the Comyia spin-off from Daisytek on July 6, 2000 (thepiB-off”), all outstanding Daisytek stock
options were replaced with substitute stock opti@raisytek options held by PFSweb employees weraced (at the option holder’s election
made prior to the Spioff) with either options to acquire shares of PFBwemmon stock or options to acquire shares of Datisytek comma
stock and PFSweb common stock (which may be exatc@sparately) (the “Unstapled Options”). Optioakltby Daisytek employees were
replaced (at the option holder’s election madergddhe Spineff) with either options to acquire shares of D#&&ycommon stock or Unstapl
Options.

As a result of the stock option replacementpss described above, in conjunction with the -8ffirPFSweb stock options (the “Non-plan
Options”) were issued to PFSweb and Daisytek afficdirectors and employees. These options wenedsas one-time grants and were not
issued under the Stock Option Plans. The termgpemdsions of the Non-plan Options are substantide same as options issued under the
Stock Option Plans.

The following table summarizes stock optiotivéty under the Non-plan Options:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Per Share Price Life Value
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 91,02: $4.2¢ $4.2¢
Grantec — $ — $ —
Exercisec — $ — $ —
Cancelec — $ — $ —
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 91,02: $4.2¢ $4.2¢ 1.¢ $—
Exercisable, December 31, 20 91,02: $4.2¢ $4.2¢ 1.¢ $—
Fair Value

The fair value of each option grant is estedatn the date of grant using the Black-Schole®ogiricing model with the following
assumptions used for grants of options under thekSDption Plans:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Expected dividend yiel — —
Expected stock price volatilit 77%- 82% 81%- 85%
Weighted average stock price volatil 81% 84%
Risk-free interest rat 2.0%- 3.2% 3.1%- 3.8%
Expected life of options (year 6 6

The Black-Scholes option valuation model reggithe input of highly subjective assumptionsluding the expected life of the stock-based
award and stock-price volatility. The assumptidstet above represent management’s best estinmatiethese estimates involve inherent
uncertainties and the application of managememmeht. As a result, if other assumptions had besed uthe Company’s recorded and pro
forma stock-based compensation expense could reere different. In addition, the Company is requiteeéstimate the expected forfeiture rate
and only recognize expense for those shares expexiest. If the Company’s actual forfeiture rate
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is materially different from its estimate, the ghdased compensation expense could be materiffityeatit. The expected life of options has
been computed using the simplified method.

6. Master Distributor Agreements

Supplies Distributors, PFSweb and IPS haveredtinto master distributor agreements under w8igbplies Distributors acts as a master
distributor of various products, primarily IPS pumt, and PFSweb provides transaction managemerfulitidnent services to Supplies
Distributors. The master distributor agreementssaigect to periodic renewals, the next of whicmi®ecember 2010. Under the master
distributor agreements, IPS sells product to Sepglistributors and reimburses Supplies Distritaifor certain freight costs, direct costs
incurred in passing on any price decreases offieyd®S to Supplies Distributors or its customersdwer price protection and certain special
bids, the cost of products provided to replace a@fe product returned by customers and other iceetgpenses as defined. Supplies
Distributors can return to IPS product renderectdie by IPS engineering changes after customeaddrands. IPS determines when a
product is obsolete. IPS and Supplies Distribusdse have agreements under which IPS reimbursesllects from Supplies Distributors
amounts calculated in certain inventory cost adjesits.

Supplies Distributors passes through to custsmmarketing programs specified by IPS and adieirsisalong with a party performing
product demand generation for the IPS productd) puagrams according to IPS guidelines.

7. Supplies Distributors

Pursuant to a credit agreement, Suppliesibigbrs is restricted from making any distributiadoPFSweb if, after giving affect thereto,
Supplies Distributors’ would be in noncompliancehwits financial covenants. Under the terms ofitsended credit agreements, Supplies
Distributors is restricted from paying annual cdalidends without the prior approval of its lendésee Notes 3 and 4). Supplies Distributors
has received lender approval to pay approximatgl@ #illion of dividends in 2010. Supplies Distribts paid dividends to PFSweb of
$2.1 million and $3.0 million in 2009 and 2008,pestively.

8. Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the difference between thgpected income tax expense at the U.S. fedexaitsty corporate tax rate of 34%, and the
Company'’s effective tax rate is as follows (in teands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008

Income tax benefit computed at statutory | $ (1,449 $ (5,049
Impact of foreign taxatio 2 9
Foreign dividends receive 1,18 68€
Items not deductible for tax purpos 232 4,38
Change in valuation reser 1,28¢ (807)
Other (935) 1,602
Provision for income taxe $ 32¢ $ 80t

The consolidated income (loss) before incomxed, by domestic and foreign entities, is as ¥adl¢in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Domestic $ (6,729 $ (18,179
Foreign 2,48 3,32¢
Total $  (4,24)) $ (14,850
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Current and deferred income tax expense (fgrefummarized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Current
Domestic $ 13 $ 70
State 20:< 19&
Foreign 17¢ 833
Total current 394 1,09¢
Deferred
Domestic — —
State (42) —
Foreign (249 (293
Total deferrec (65) (293
Total $ 32¢ $ 80E&
The components of the deferred tax assetiltigbare as follows (in thousands):
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 797 $ 39C
Inventory reserv 713 762
Property and equipme 1,071 1,067
Net operating loss carryforwar 20,06¢ 19,03«
Other 1,32¢ 1,45¢
23,97: 22,711
Less— Valuation allowanct 23,32¢ 22,041
Total deferred tax ass 647 67C
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assel (143 (4]
Other (107) (13¢)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (250) (317)
Deferred tax assets, r $ 397 $ 3532

Management believes that PFSweb has not edtalla sufficient history of earnings, on a statahe basis, to support the more likely than
not realization of certain deferred tax assetsugess of existing taxable temporary differencesalvation allowance has been provided for the
majority of these net deferred income tax assetf Becember 31, 2009 and 2008. At December 319206 operating loss carryforwards
relate to taxable losses of PFSweb’s European diabgitotaling approximately $7.2 million, PFSwelCanadian subsidiary totaling
approximately $5.6 million and PFSweb’s U.S. suiasids totaling approximately $46.4 million thafpére at various dates from 2010 through
2029. The U.S. NOL carryforward includes $4.6 raillirelating to tax benefits of stock option exezsiand, if utilized, will be recorded agai
additional paid-in-capital upon utilization ratltban as an adjustment to income tax expense frarinting operations. The U.S. NOL also
includes approximately $21.0 million of NOL acquirdrough the acquisition of eCOST in 2006, wh&kubject to annual limits of
$1.2 million under IRS Section 382.

The Company evaluates its tax positions faeptial liabilities associated with unrecognizexl benefits. As of December 31, 2009 and
2008, no unrecognized tax benefits, penaltiesterast were identified or recorded. The Companysdume expect to record unrecognized tax
benefits in the next twelve months.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases facilities, warehouseg®ffiransportation and other equipment under opgrégases expiring in various years thro
December 31, 2014. In most cases, management sxpattin the normal course of business, leaskbaienewed or replaced by other
leases. The Company'’s facility leases generallyainrone or more renewal options.
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Minimum future annual rental payments under-nancelable operating leases having original témesxcess of one year are as follows (in
thousands):

Operating
Lease

Paymente
Fiscal year ended December
2010 $ 7,22¢
2011 3,631
2012 1,752
2013 1,071
2014 18C
Thereaftel —
Total $ 13,85¢

Minimum rental payments under operating leasegecognized on a straight-line basis overeha bf the lease including any periods of
free rent. Total rental expense under operatingeleapproximated $10.2 million and $10.8 milliontfee years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively. Certain landlord required dép@se secured by letters of credit.

The Company receives municipal tax abateniargsrtain locations. During 2004 the Company reseinotice from a municipality that it
did not satisfy certain criteria necessary to nainthe abatements. In December 2006 the Compaeyvezl notice that the municipal autho
planned to make an adjustment to the Company’albatement. The Company has disputed the adjusameaftDecember 31, 2009, but if the
dispute is not resolved favorably, additional prypéaxes of approximately $1.7 million could bsessed against the Company.

The Company is subject to claims in the ordir@urse of business, including claims of alleggdngement by the Company or its
subsidiaries of the patents, trademarks and otheltéctual property rights of third parties. Ther@pany does not believe any of such claims
will materially adversely affect its financial catidn or results of operations.

10. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company is organized into three operaemgments: PFSweb is an international providertebimted eCommerce and business prc
outsourcing solutions and operates as a serviceusieess; Supplies Distributors is a master tigtar of primarily IPS products; and eCOST
is a multi-category online discount retailer of néetose-out” and recertified brand-name merchamdis

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Revenues (in thousand:
PFSwelk $ 92,04 $ 129,91
Supplies Distributor 183,00¢ 230,71(
eCOST 84,60’ 99,82
Eliminations (7,167) (8,599

$ 352,49¢ $ 451,84

Income (loss) from operations (in thousan:

PFSwek $ (7,27¢) $ (69)
Supplies Distributor: 5,36¢ 5,86¢
eCOST (1,12 (19,08))
Eliminations — —

$ (3,036 $ (13,290
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Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Depreciation and amortization (in thousan:
PFSwelk $ 6,47: $ 5,607
Supplies Distributor 35 20
eCOST 344 99t

Eliminations — —
$ 6,852 $ 6,622

Capital expenditures (in thousanc

PFSwek $ 4,321 $ 5,367
Supplies Distributor: 2 87
eCOST 117 30C
Eliminations — —

$ 4,44( $ 5,75¢

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Assets (in thousands
PFSwelk $ 65,71¢ $ 108,43¢
Supplies Distributor: 69,29 82,28(
eCOST 13,57¢ 13,48¢
Eliminations (20,81 (59,68

$ 127,76¢ $ 144,52:

Geographic areas in which the Company opematésde the United States, Europe (primarily Beig), and Canada. The following is
geographic information by area. Revenues are atathbased on the Company’s domicile.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Revenues (in thousand:
United State: $ 268,54: $ 351,89(
Europe 81,46( 97,73¢
Canade 5,38¢ 5,82¢
Inter-segment elimination (2,899 (3,615

$ 352,49¢ $ 451,84

December 31 December 31
2009 2008
Intangible assets (in thousanc
United State: $ 80¢ $ 961
Europe — —
Canade — —

$ 80% $ 961

Goodwill (in thousands
United State: $ 3,60 $ 3,60
Europe — —
Canade — —

$ 3,60z $ 3,60z

Other lon¢lived assets (in thousand

United State: $ 11,77 $ 12,24:
Europe 90C 892
Canade 19E 16C

$ 12,86¢ $ 13,29
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11. Employee Savings Plan

The Company has a defined contribution emm@savings plan under Section 401(k) of the InteRetenue Code. Substantially all full-
time and part-time U.S. employees are eligibleddipipate in the plan. The Company, at its disoretmay match employee contributions to
the plan and also make an additional matching tmriton in the form of profit sharing in recogniti@f the Company’s performance. The
Company contributed approximately $0.1 million &@d2 million during the years ended December 3092ihd 2008, respectively, to match
an approved percentage of employee contributions.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9a. (T) CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Fic#l Officer, after evaluating the effectivene$®uor disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (theciiange Act”) Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ab®find of the period covered by this
report (the “Evaluation Date”), have concluded thabf the Evaluation Date, our disclosure contold procedures are effective, at a
reasonable assurance level, to ensure that infmmequired to be disclosed in the reports thafileeand submit under the Exchange Act (
recorded, processed, summarized and reported asteamdrequired and (ii) is accumulated and comnataitto our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial iO#fr, as appropriate, to allow timely decisionsareling required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our interndta@aover financial reporting that occurred durithg quarter ended December 31, 2009 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdincial reporting.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establisaimgmaintaining adequate internal control ovearitial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15
(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal contro¢iofinancial reporting is designed, under the suip&m of our principle executive and
principle financial officers, and effected by owdbd of directors, management and other persotptovide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external pugsois accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amdi@aAP). Our internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures
that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records, tinareasonable detail, accurately and fairlyeetffithe transactions and dispositions of our
assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thaactions are recorded as necessary to permit atépaof financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and that our receipts and expendituresb@ing made only in accordance with authorizatiminour management and Board of
Directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assuraegarding prevention or timely detection of unauithert acquisition, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on tlantial statements.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiver@dour internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2009. This evaluation
based on the framework in “Internal Control—IntegthFramework” issued by the Committee of Spongo@nganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). All internal control systems,matter how well designed, have inherent limitatiohherefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reabtnassurance regarding the reliability of finahoégporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance®HAP. Also, projections of any evaluation of tHéeetiveness of internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subjecttte risk that the controls may become inadedoatause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.
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Based on our evaluation under the framewothternal Control—Integrated Frameworlour Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that internal control over fineadaeporting was effective as of December 31, 2009

This annual report does not include an attiestaeport of our independent registered publicoamting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndiject to attestation by our independent registerdalic accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cissiom that permit us to provide only managemengfsort in this annual report.

Item 9b. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Reference is made to the information to bdah in the section entitled “Board of Directoraiid “Committees of the Board” in the
definitive proxy statement in connection with ounrual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Proxy Statefemthich section is incorporated her
by reference. Our Proxy Statement will be filedhthe Securities and Exchange Commission not fhger 120 days after the last day of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information required by Part 111, Item 11, idle included in the section entitled “Executiven@ensation” of our Proxy Statement relating
to our annual meeting of shareholders and is iraratpd herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aManagement and Related Shareholder Matters

Information required by Part 111, Item 12, idile included in the Sections entitled “ElectionDifectors” and Security Ownership of Certa
Beneficial Owners and Management” of our Proxy &tent relating to our annual meeting of shareheldad is incorporated herein by
reference.

The following table summarizes informationhwespect to equity compensation plans under widglity securities of the registrant are
authorized for issuance as of December 31, 2009:

Number of securities  Weighted-average Number of

to be issued upon exercise price of securities
exercise of outstanding remaining
outstanding options options and available for
Plan category (1) and warrants warrants future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs| 1,666,25 $ 4.7 1,297,96!
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgers 91,02: $ 4.2¢ —
Total 1,757,28| 1,297,96!

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentaore detailed information regarding the regis’s equity compensation plar

Item 13. Certain Relationship and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain of our relatibis and related transactions will be includechim $ection entitled “Certain Relationship and
Related Transactions” of our Proxy Statement medptd our annual meeting of shareholders and @rpurated herein by reference.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by Part Ill, Item 14, Wl included in the section entitled “RatificatiohAppointment of Independent Auditors” of
our Proxy Statement relating to our annual mesatinghareholders and is incorporated herein by eefss.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of tlepart:
1. Financial Statements
PFSweb, Inc. and Subsidiari

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiinm

Consolidated Balance She:

Consolidated Statements of Operati

Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity and Comprehensive Income (La
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Financial Statement Schedu

Schedule — Condensed Financial Information of Registr
Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

All other schedules are omitted because the redjimfermation is not present in amounts sufficientequire submission of the schedule or
because the information required is included infitn@ncial statements or notes thereto.

2. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits
3.1(2) Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRFESweb, Inc
3.1.1 (20) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatetifi@ate of Incorporation of PFSweb, Ir
3.1.2 (32) Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of PFSweb, Inc
3.1.3 (36) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatatificate of Incorporation of PFSweb, Ir
3.2(1) Amended and Restated Byla
3.2.1 (26) Amendment to the Amended and Restate-Laws of PFSweb, Inc
4.1 (30) Rights Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2000, bettieeGompany and ChaseMellon Shareholder Serit€s,
4.1 (31) Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as of 83 2008 between the Company and Mellon InveS&vices

LLC, as successor to ChaseMellon Shareholder Sexyvicl .C., as rights aget
10.1 (17) PFSweb, Inc. 2005 Employee Stock Purchase |
10.2 (18) Amendment 3 to Loan and Security Agreem
10.3 (18) Amendment 6 to Agreement for Inventory Financi
10.4 (18) Amendment 1 to First Amended and Restated LoarSawedrity Agreemen
10.5 (16) Amendment 5 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefnent
10.6 (16) Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdite Discounting Schedul
)

Amendment No. 5 to Agreement for Inventory Finagc
10.8 (1) Industrial Lease Agreement between Shelby Drivep@a@tion and Priority Fulfilment Services, Ir
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits

10.9 (1) Lease Contract between Transports Weerts and fyriaulfillment Services Europe B.)

10.10 (2) Form of Change of Control Agreement between the oy and each of its executive offic

10.11 (4) Ninth Amendment to Lease Agreement by and betweBBRI ATRIUM. L.P., and Priority Fulfillment Servieg Inc.

10.12 (5) Agreement for Inventory Financing by and among Bess Supplies Distributors Holdings, LLC, Suppliéstributors,
Inc., Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., PFSweéhc., Inventory Financing Partners, LLC and IBM @iteCorporatior

10.13 (5) Amended and Restated Collateralized Guaranty bybahdeen Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. andMECredit
Corporation

10.14 (5) Amended and Restated Guaranty to IBM Credit Cotmmdy PFSweb, Inc

10.15 (5) Amended and Restated Notes Payable SubordinatiogefAtent by and between Priority Fulfillment Sersidac.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpaoat

10.16 (5) Amended and Restated Platinum Plan Agreement (mithice Discounting) by and among Supplies Distiilos, S.A.,
Business Supplies Distributors Europe B.V., PFS®ah, and IBM Belgium Financial Services S.

10.17 (5) Amended and Restated Collateralized Guaranty betWweerity Fulfillment Services, Inc. and IBM Belgn Financial
Services S.A

10.18 (5) Amended and Restated Guaranty to IBM Belgium Firs@r8ervices S.A. by PFSweb, Ir

10.19 (5) Subordinated Demand Note by and between Suppligsilitors, Inc. and Priority Fulfillment Servicdsc.

10.20 (5) Notes Payable Subordination Agreement between @ggedfinancial Corporation (Southwest) and Pridtitfillment
Services, Inc

10.21 (5) Guarantee in favor of Congress Financial Corponafouthwest) by Business Supplies Distributorsditgis, LLC,
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. and PFSweb, .|

10.22 (5) General Security Agreement by Priority Fulfilme$grvices, Inc. in favor of Congress Financial Coagion (Southwest

10.23 (5) Inducement Letter by Priority Fulfillment Servicdésc. and PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Congress Firar€orporation
(Southwest)

10.24 (6) Form of Executive Severance Agreement between tiep@ny and each of its executive office

10.24.1 (33 Form of Amendment to Executive Severance Agreen

10.24.2 (33 Form of Amendment to Change in Control Severanceedmgent

10.25 (7) Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing hg among Business Supplies Distributors Holdind<; L Supplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Serviceb)c., PFSweb, Inc., Inventory Financing PartnetsCland IBM Credit
Corporation

10.26 (7) Amendment to Amended and Restated Platinum Plarekgent (with Invoice Discounting) by and among Siegp
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBrtgope B.V., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Finan@arvices S.A

10.27 (7) Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subordinatioeeftgent by and between Priority Fulfillment Sersidac.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpaoat

10.28 (7) Amendment to Factoring agreement dated March 232 B@tween Supplies Distributors S.A. and Fortim@eercial
Finance N.V.

10.29 (8) Unconditional Guaranty of PFSweb, Inc. to ComeBeak— California

10.30 (8) Security Agreement of PFSweb, Inc. to Comerica E— California

10.31 (8) Intellectual Property Security Agreement betweenrRy Fulfillment Services, Inc. and Comerica Be— California
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits

10.32 (8) Amendment 2 to Amended and Restated Platinum Pgaaeinent (with Invoice Discounting) by and amongSies
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBr¥., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Financial SerscS.A.

10.33 (8) Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing by among Business Supplies Distributors HoldindsZ LSupplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfilment Servicekic., PFSweb, Inc., and IBM Credit LL

10.34 (9) Amendment to factoring agreement dated April 3@3Between Supplies Distributors S.A. and Fortim@ercial
Finance N.V.

10.35 (9) Loan and Security Agreement by and between Condgiessicial Corporation (Southwest), as Lender amgpfies
Distributors, Inc., as Borrower dated March 29, 2(

10.36 (9) General Security Agreeme— Business Supplies Distributors Holdings, LLC indawef Congress Financial Corporati
(Southwest

10.37 (9) Stock Pledge Agreement between Supplies Distrisutac. and Congress Financial Corporation (Sousty

10.38 (9) First Amendment to General Security Agreement bgrRy Fulfilment Services, Inc. in favor of Conggs Financie
Corporation (Southwes

10.39 (12) Industrial Lease Agreement between New York Lifeurance Company and Daisytek, |

10.40 (12) First Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreement betwdew York Life Insurance Company, Daisytek, laed Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.41 (12) Second Amendment to Industrial Lease AgreementdmtviProLogis North Carolina Limited Partnership Bmnidrity
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.42 (12) Modification, Ratification and Extension of LeasstWween Shelby Drive Corporation and Priority Futiint Services,
Inc.

10.43 (13) Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing bg among Business Supplies Distributors HoldindgsZ LSupplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Serviceb)c., PFSweb, Inc., and IBM Credit LL

10.44 (13) Amendment 4 to Amended and Restated Platinum Pgaaeinent (with Invoice Discounting) by and amongSies
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBr¥., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Financial SerscS.A.

10.45 (13) Third Amended and Restated Notes Payable Suboiaindgreement by and between Priority Fulfilmemr@ces, Inc.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpaoat

10.46 (13) First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementrny lzetween Congress Financial Corporation (Southwes Lende
and Supplies Distributors, Inc., as Borrow

10.47 (13) Form of Modification to Executive Severance Agream

10.48 (14) Industrial Lease Agreement by and between Induddeaelopments International, Inc. and Priority fitihent Services,
Inc.

10.49 (14) Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Industrial Bl®pments International, In

10.50 (14) Lease between Fleet National Bank and Priorityilfaként Services, Inc

10.51 (14) Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Fleet NatiodBahk

10.52 (14) Amendment No. 3 to Lease dated as of March 3, b@d®@een Fleet National Bank and Priority Fulfillm&ervices, Inc

10.53 (15) Loan Agreement between Mississippi Business Fin&uarporation and Priority Fulfillment Services, Intated as of
November 1, 200

10.54 (15) Reimbursement Agreement between Priority Fulfillingarvices, Inc. and Comerica Be

10.55 (15) First Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ageeely and between Comerica Bank and Priority Hulént
Services, Inc

10.56 (15) Remarketing Agreement between Priority Fulfillm&etrvices, Inc. and Comerica Securi
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits

10.57 (20) Amendment to factoring agreement dated Decembe20@) between Supplies Distributors S.A. and F@tsmercia
Finance N.V.

10.58 (21) Fourth Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subticiregreement by and between Priority Fulfillm&srvices, Inc
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpaoat

10.59 (21) Amendment 7 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.60 (21) Amendment 6 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefent

10.61 (21) Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdite Discounting Schedul

10.62 (21) Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeinblybetween eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Capitelricie
Corporation (Western

10.63 (21) Amendment 4 to Loan and Security Agreem

10.64 (21) Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc., in favor of Wachovia @dptinance Corporation (Wester

10.65 (21) Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated &ondrSecurity Agreement by and between Comerick Bad
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.66 (23) Tenth Amendment to Lease Agreement by and betwkssoRAtrium, LLC and Priority Fulfillment Servicebc.

10.67 (24) Fifth Amended and Restated Notes Payable SubordinAggreement by and between Priority Fulfillmerir8ces, Inc.
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpavat

10.68 (24) Amendment 8 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.69 (24) Fourth Amendment to the Loan and Security Agreerbgrand between eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Qdpitance
Corporation (Western

10.70 (24) Amendment 5 to Loan and Security Agreem

10.71 (24) Amendment 7 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefent

10.72 (24) Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdice Discounting Schedul

10.73 (25) Fifth Amendment to First Amended and Restated Layzch Security Agreement by and between Comerica Bad
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.74 (27) Second Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreementiyb&tween Industrial Property Fund VI, LLC andoRty
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.75 (29) Sixth Amended and Restated Notes Payable Suboialinagreement by and between Priority Fulfillmerirdces, Inc.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpavat

10.76 (29) Amendment 9 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.77 (29) Amendment 8 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢aaeinent

10.78 (29) Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdice Discounting Schedul

10.79 (29) Sixth Amendment to First Amended and Restated lasehSecurity Agreement by and between Comerica Bad
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.80 (34) Sixth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementdidsuary 6, 2009 between Wachovia Bank and S
Distributors, Inc.

10.81 (34) Fifth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementddenuary 6, 2009 between Wachovia Bank and eC@OSiTlac.

10.82 (35) Seventh Amended and Restated Notes Payable Suatodigreement by and between Priority Fulfillm&etrvices
Inc., Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Creditr@oration.

10.83 (35) Amendment 10 to Agreement for Inventory Financ

10.84 (35) Amendment 9 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefnent

10.85 (35) Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdice Discounting Schedul

10.86 (35) Seventh Amendment to First Amended and Restated &od Securit
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits
Agreement by and between Comerica Bank and Pribritfiliment Services, Inc

10.87 (35) 2009 Management Bonus Pl
10.88 (36) Amended and Restated 2005 Employee Stock and imedpian of PFSweb, Ini
10.89 (36) Amended and Restated N-Employee Director Stock Option and Retainer PlaR©Sweb, Inc
21 (37) Subsidiary Listinc
23.1 (37 Consent of GRANT THORNTON, LLP, Independent RegitePublic Accounting Firr

)
31.1 (37) Certifications of Principal Executive Officer Puesu to 18 U.S.C. Section 13!
31.2 (37) Certifications of Principal Financial Officer Puesut to 18 U.S.C. Section 13!
32.1 (37) Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1280Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

(1) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Regfistn Statement on Forn-1 (Commission File No. 3:-87657).
(2) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2(

(3) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q/A for the quarterly period ended September 30
(4) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the transition period ended December 31, z
(5) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2

(6) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2

(7) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2

(8) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2

(9) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2

(10) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, :
(11) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repotftorm K filed on November 10, 20C

(12) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2

(13) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
(14) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, :
(15) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(16) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
(17) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repofform K filed on June 14, 200!

(18) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2

(19) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. CurRegort on Form-K filed on November 30, 200!
(20) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(21) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
(22) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. CurReagort on Form-K filed on June 2, 200t

(23) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2
(24) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(25) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
(26) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoiftorm K filed on November 13, 200

(27) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(28) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoiftorm K filed on May 2, 2008

(29) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
(30) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Regfisin Statement on Forn-A filed on June 14, 200(
(31) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoiftorm 8K filed on May 30, 200

(32) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repofform K filed on June 2, 200¢

(33) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoiftorm K filed on January 6, 200!
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(34) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Repoftorm -K filed on January 9, 200!
(35) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q filed on May 15, 200¢

(36) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q filed on August 14, 200!

(37) Filed herewith
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SCHEDULE |
PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
BALANCE SHEETS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
(In thousands)
December 31 December 31
2009 2008
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivale! $ 182 $ 92€
Receivable from Priority Fulfillment Services, It 5,39( 5,62¢
Receivable from eCOST.com, Ir 4,95( 4,70(
Investment in subsidiarie 18,83 22,60¢
Total asset $ 29,35¢ $ 33,85¢
LIABILITIES:
Payable to PFSweb BV SPF $ — $ 774
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stoc — —
Common stocl 10 10
Additional paic-in capital 93,15: 92,72¢
Accumulated defici (65,969) (61,399
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 2,23¢ 1,82¢
Treasury stocl (85) (85)
Total shareholde’ equity 29,35: 33,08t
Total liabilities and shareholde equity $ 29,35! $ 33,85¢

The condensed financial statements should be reeshjunction with the consolidated financial staémts and notes.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2009

EQUITY IN NET LOSS OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIE $ (4,570
NET LOSS $ (4,570

The condensed financial statements should be reegnjunction with the consolidated financial stagsts and notes.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss $ (4,570)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Equity in net loss of consolidated subsidia 4,57(

Net cash provided by operating activit —

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of common st 17
Increase in receivable from eCOST.com, (250)
Increase (decrease) in payable due to PFSweb B\L! (737)
Increase (decrease) in receivable from Prioritfilaent Services, Inc., ne 234
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (736
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN (8
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI (744)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 92€
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $ 18z

The condensed financial statements should be reegnjunction with the consolidated financial stagsts and notes.

85

SCHEDULE |

2008
$(15,65¢)
15,65¢
59
714
(22)
751

751
17¢

$  92¢
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Year Ended December 31, 20(

Allowance for doubtful accoun

Year Ended December 31, 20(
Allowance for doubtful accoun

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Amounts in thousands)

SCHEDULE Il

Additions
Balance at  Charges to Cost
Beginning and Charges to Other Balance Acquired Balance at End of
of Period Expenses Accounts via Acquisition Deductions Period
$1,48: 174 — — (677) $98C
$ 98C 147 — — (154) $97¢
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 185¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tlegiBtrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

By: /sl THOMAS J. MADDEN
Thomas J. Madder
Executive Vice President al
Chief Financial and Accounting Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidredolw by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl MARK C. LAYTON Chairman of the Board, President and March 31, 2010
Mark C. Layton Chief Executive Officer (Principi
Executive Officer
/sl THOMAS J. MADDEN Executive Vice President and Chief March 31, 2010
Thomas J. Madde Financial and Accounting Office
(Principal Financial and Accountir
Officer)
/s/ DR. NEIL JACOBS Director March 31, 201(
Dr. Neil Jacob:
/s/ TIMOTHY M. MURRAY Director March 31, 2010

Timothy M. Murray

/sl JAMES F. REILLY Director March 31, 201(
James F. Reill

/s/ DAVID |. BEATSON Director March 31, 2010
David |. Beatsor
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Name

Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

Priority Fulfillment Services of Canada, Ir

PFSweb BV SPRL (f/k/a Priority Fulfillment ServicEsirope, B.V.)
Business Supplies Distributors Holdings, L

Supplies Distributors, Inc

Supplies Distributors of Canada, It

Supplies Distributors S./

eCOST.com, Inc

eCOST Philippines Services, LL

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction
Delaware
Ontario
Belgium
Delaware
Delaware
Ontario
Belgium
Delaware
Philippine:



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&GRM

We have issued our report dated March 31, 2010, regpect to the consolidated financial statemamtisschedules in the Annual Report of
PFSweb, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended Deegr8h, 2009. We hereby consent to the incorpordtjoreference of said reports in the
Registration Statements of PFSweb, Inc. on Forr@{Ele Nos. 333-164973, effective February 18, B®33-128486, effective

September 21, 2005, 333-75764, effective Decembe2@1, 333-75772, effective December 21, 2003: 83096, effective September 19,
2000; 333-42186, effective July 25, 2000 and 333240 effective June 23, 2000) and on Forms S-& (Rds. 333L64971, effective March 1
2010, 333-135794, effective July 17, 2006 and 3B3853, effective December 1, 2003).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

I, Mark Layton, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of PEBwINnc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the periods covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepare

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@@orting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtiae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principle

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluati

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting tha@tcurred during the registragtmost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlteaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registre’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiethe registrant’s board of directors (or pessparforming the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize, and refrmahcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registra’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date: March 31, 2010

By: /s/ Mark C. Laytor
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

I, Thomas Madden, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of PEBwINnC.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaior@ny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the periods covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduties tiesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgisgrant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepare

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahaaorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principle

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld@ire controls and procedures and presentedsimgort our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluati

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatowed during the registre s most recel
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlteaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registre’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize, and refpmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date: March 31, 2010

By: /s/ Thomas J. Madde
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxégyf 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section(l. Z&hapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), each of the undersigned officers of PFSwveb (the “Company”), does hereby certify that:

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeademhDecember 31, 2009 (the “Form 10-K”) of the Camypfully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applécaif the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 andfi@mation contained in the Form 10-K
fairly presents, in all material respects, thefficial condition and results of operations of thenpany as of, and for, the periods presented in
the Form 10-K.

March 31, 2010 /sl Mark C. Laytor
Mark C. Layton
Chief Executive Officer

March 31, 2010 /s/ Thomas J. Madde
Thomas J. Maddel
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished asexhibit to the Form 10-K pursuant to Item 601882)(of Regulation S-K and Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a)lndf Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Udittates Code) and, accordingly, is not
being filed as part of the Form 10-K for purposéSection 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@34whether made before or after the date
hereof, regardless of any general incorporatiogdage in such filing.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to PFSwebaht will be retained by PFSweb, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiots staff upon request.



